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Watkin Jones is a leading
developer and manager of
residential for rent homes
in the UK. We focus on the

student accommodation,

build to rent and affordable
housing sectors.

We source sites for development in high quality, mainly
urban, locations. Through cur capital-light medel, we
forward sell these developments 1o institutional investors,
working with them to achieve the right design. Our Delivery
teamn then builds the project to that spacification.

Fresh, our Accommodation Management business,
completes our end-to-end solution. Fresh also generates
invaluable insight from residents, helping us to evolve our
developments in line with changing expectations. '
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Our approach 1o sustainability

Sustainability is inherent within our purpose -
we transform mainly urban brownfield sites into 3
. homes and communities. Our sustainability strategy
o encapsulates three elements: the people who work
va with us, the places we create and our impact on

T e
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the planet. L
Our future people Qur future places Qur future planet

Read,more.on pages.o2to}7 0]
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Our year in numbers

Revenue

£407.1 million

-5.4%

Operating profit

£24.3 million

-57.6%

2021 £57.3m
2020

Adjusted PBT*

£48.8 million

-4.5%
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2020 £45.8m

Earnings per share

5.2 pence

-68.3%

2021,

-|

2020

Dividend per share

7.4 pence
-9.8%

2021 8.2p
2020 ] 7.35p

Gross profit

£67.6 million
-20.3%

2021 £84.8m

[
[=]
A2
(=]

£75.9m

Adjusted operating profit'

£54.7 million

-4.5%

2020 £61.7m
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Adjusted net cash?

£82.6 million

2001 £124.3m

2020 £94.8m

Adjusted earnings per share’

14.8 pence
-9.8%

201 ) 16.4p

2020 1470

Return on capital employed?®

63.1%

-9.0 percentage points

2021 - 721%

2020 58.5%

Adjusted performance measures have been provided where appropriate to help users of the annual report gain

a clearer view of the underlying financial performance of the Group. An explanation of tha use of tha alternative

performance measures used and their calculation is provided on page 39.

1. Adjusted oparating profit, adjusted prolfit before tax and adjusted basic earmings per share arg calculated
belcre exceptional charges (FY22: £30.4 million, FY21: NI, FY20: £20.5 million}.

2. Adjusted net cash is stated after deducting interest-bearing loans and borrowings, but before decucung
IFAS 16 lease liabilities of £49.1 million at 30 September 2022 (30 September 2021: £129.3 million,

30 September 2020: £134.5 millign).

3. Return on capital employed is calculated as operating profil befora exceptional items, dwnded by average
capital employed, baing net asssats excluding intangible assets, lease asseis and liabilities, and net cash.
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Business overview

We have four complementary
business units, which together
position us to achieve our purpose
of creating the future of living.

Student
’
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BTR is a rapidly growing sector. People are
increasingly lcoking for their accommodation
to provide more than a home. Access to gyms,
cinema rooms and ready-made communities
are all part of the attraction of purpose-built
rental accommodation. We completed our
first purpose-bullt BTR developmesil in 2017,
and we have now completed more than 1,600
apartments, leveraging our PBSA success into
the BTR sector.

There is a significant shortage of student
accommaodation In the UK. As well as providing
modern, fit-for-purpose homes for students,
they free up private housing for non-student
househclds. We are the UK's leading PBSA
developer and have operated in this seclor
since the 1990s. We have a reputation for
ligh qualily and vieline Jdetvery, svlucl is
particulary important ahead of the start of
the academi¢ year, and have dellvered nearly
20,000 student beds since our IPO in 20186.

We combine our expertise in developiny
homes with our low-risk forward sale model
to create developments led by affordable
housing, for sale to institutions and housing
associations. These developments may also
include some private homes for sale.

Fresh is a market-leading independent
manager of residential for rent assets acruss
the UK and Ireland. We offer a complete
manragement sotution for our institutiunal
clients, as well as creating communities for
our residents.

Watkin Jones ple | Annual report and finanzial statements 2022
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Our development locations

0;21'"

Case study

Bath Junction, Bath
Read more on page 32

Student
Q Accommodation
(PBSA)

Q Build To Rent
@TR
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Chair’s statement

Dear Shareholder

This has been a year in which Watkin
Jones, and indeed the broader property
and construction sectors, have had to face
into a unique combination of factors across
supply chain, build cost inflation, labour
availability and latterly significant capital
market uncertainty.

Despite these challenges, for the majority
of the year, institutionat demand in the
residential for rent sector remained strong,
and we were able to mitigate higher build
costs through increased pricing for our
assets, thereby maintaining operating
margins. In May 2022 we completed cur
largest ever portfolio sale tc EQT Real
Estate Fund Il of five purpose built student
accommodation schemes which included
two operational PBSA assets. In aggregate
this comprised 2,063 beds which will be
managed by Fresh.

In September we saw a pericd of significant
capital markets instability fallowing the
government’'s mini-Budget. This led to

a2 number of our institutional purchasers
withdrawing from the market and two
significant forward sales, anticipated to
clase in September, having to be deferred.
This had a material impact on forecast
revenue and profitability for FY22, which
we communicated to the market in earty
October 2022,

Alan Giddins

Cotwe

d .
Nexpertiselprovides
fusiwithladistinctis
competitive IS
advantag ey

—- B .,

While we have seen same interest from
institutional investors since the year end,
my expectation is that it will take time
before we see a full recovery in the depth

of institutional demand. We would therefore
expect new forward sales to be weighted to
the second half of FY23. in the meantime,
we have looked carefully at our cost base
and implemented a number of targeted
overhead savings.

Financial and eperational
performance

Revenue for the year was £407.1 million
(FY21: £430.2 millign} and operating profit
was £24.3 million (FY21: £57.3 million).
Operating profit, excluding an exceptional
charge for fire safety remediation, was
£54.7 million. Year-end adjusted net cash
was £82.6 million (FY21: £124.3 million}.

At an operational level we completed

the eight BTR and PBSA developments
that were scheduled for delivery. Fresh
similarly had a good year, with a number

of new contract wins, resulting in a 3.3%
increase in the number of units it has under
management,

Building safety

We remain proactive in our approach
to building safety. Following updated
government guidance an cladding, we
made a provision of £15 millien in 2020,
of which E3 million remained at the end
of FY22.

The Building Salety Act, implemented in
April 2022, extended developers’ liahility
to fire safety defects on buildings over 11
metres tall and up tc 30 years old. While
there remains some uncertainty as to how
the Act will be implemented in practice, the
Group recognised an exceptional charge
in the year of £30.4 million for the potential
costs of the remediation wark required,
which is expected to be incurred overa
period of up to five years. As we undertake
this remedial work, | will be asking
management to regularly update the Board
both in terms of delivery and cost against
the level of provisioning we have made.

People

Listening to and understanding the views
of our employees is critical. We ran an
all-employee engagement survey again
this year. Qur overal! engagement score
increased, refiecting in part the actions we
took in response to last year’s employee
feedback. Our net promoter score,

which rates how likely employees are to
recommend us as a good place to work,
showed particularly strong improvement.

As an organisation, we remain focused on
impraving diversity acrass our employee
base; during the year we held a diversity
summit with partner organisations including
Stonewall and Women Into Construction,
to share ideas on how we can improve
diversity throughout the business.

Watkin Jones plc | Annual report and financial staterments 2022
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Beard changes

In my last report, | indicateg that the
Nomination Committee would look at the
shape of the Board to ensure that it has the
appropriate level of diversity of thinking and
experience to best serve the Group. During
the year we welcomed three new members
to the Board. Following Simon Laffin's
decision to retire from the Board, Rachel
Addison was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director in April 2022,
becoming Chair of the Audit Committee in
August 2022,

In Qctober 2022, both Francis Salway
and Alex Pease were appointed to the
Board, the former as an independent
MNon-Executive Girector. Francis was
previously Chief Executive Officer of Land
Securities PLC and brings with him a
wealth of property expertise. Alex joined
Watkin Jores in 2010 and has been Chisf
Investment Officer since 2021,

On behalf of the Board and shareholders,
I would like to thank Simon Laffin for his
significant contribution to Watkin Jones.
Simon jeined the Board at the time of the
1PQin 2016 and has been instrumental in
enhancing the Group’s governance and
control framewark.

Governance

ESG

In our annual report last year we

talked about our ESG strategy, Future
Foundations, which included a set of KPIs
and detailed short and medium-term
action plans. While there remains much
to be done here, | have been impressed
by management's commitment to deliver
against the targets we set.

Dividend

The Beard is proposing a final dividend of
4.5 pence per share. Combined with the
interim dividend of 2.9 pence per shareg,
this gives a tota! dividend for the year of
7.4 pence, down 10% on the total dividend
paid in respect of FY21.

The full-year dividend is 2.0x caovered by
adjusted earnings, in line with our stated
policy. The final dividend will be paid on
2 Mareh 2023 to shareholders on the
register on 3 February 2023.

Watkin Janes pl¢ | Annual repart and financial statements 2022
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Looking forward

The residential for rent sector continues

to offer an attractive end market with
strong growth fundamentals, and we have
entered the new finangial year with arecord
pipeline. Cur end-to-end expertise, from
identifying prime sites for development
through to accommodation management,
pravides us with a distinct competitive
advantage. We also have an excellent
senior management team and highiy
committed employee base.

While we may continue to see certain
short-term market challenges, | remain
confident about our medium and
longer-term prospects.

Alan Giddins
Chair

25 January 2023



Why invest?

Attractive markets with
long-term growth trends

The residential for rent market is influenced by trends that are
increasing the need for high guality, environmentally friendly

homes of the sort we develop.

Demand for new housing
exceeds supply

There is a long-standing supply and demand imbalance in the housing market.

Between 2017 and 2022, the government targeted 300,000 new homes each year in

England but deiivery has coensistently fallen short, with around 216,000 completed
in 2020/21. This means there is a substantial and growing housing deficit and
significant unmet demand for much-needed modern housing.

House purchases are
unaffordable for many

Buying a house is increasingly becoming out of reach for many people. UK house
prices have consistently risen over many years, while average real earnings

have often stagnated. Homs buyers need substantial deposits, which can take
many years to save, and recent sharp rises in interest rates have increased the
cost of mortgages. Growing numbers of people see longer-term rental as an
attractive option.

The landscape of the private
rental sector is changing

Increasing regulations around tandlord responsibilities, together with less favourable
tax incentives, have led many private landlords to sell their rental stock. Conversely,

institutional investers and pension funds are looking for attractive, stable returns
through modern, high quality and sustainabie PBSA and BTR developments,

Our response

Residential for rent has a vital

role in helping to solve the UK's
housing issues. The BTH sector
can significantly increase the
number of new homes available
each year and it is highly suited to
modern lifestyles. We are therefore
leveraging our expertise and supply
chain to capitalise on the growth
opportunities in this market.

Our response

Our response is twofold. First, we
are continuing to expand aur pipeline
of BTR developments, 1o provide
homes for those who choose to rent.
To address affordability, we have
created an affordabia-led housing
business, o create developments in
areas of strong demand.

Our response

We have built strong relationships
with institutional partners over many
years. Our combination of consumer
and insti{utional knowledge heips us
o create developments that meet
the needs of cur clients and provide
homes in which people want 1o live.

Watkin Jones ple | Annual report and financial statements 2022
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Demand for UK university
places remains strong

The number of 18 year olds in the UK is set to rise steeply in the caming years, and
the proportion who want a university place is also increasing, with more than 44% of
18 year olds applying for a full-time undergraduate course during 2022, International
demnand also remains strong, with rising application numbers fram outside the EU.
In addition, much university-owned accommeoedation is outdated, meaning there

is strong demand for new PBSA. PBSA also has the benefit of freeing up private
housing, for sale or rent to non-student households.

Onsite amenities are
increasingly attractive

People are increasingly looking for their accommaodation to provide moare than

a home. Many want amenities such as gyms, cinema rooms and workspaces.
Wellbeing is anather area of focus, particularly since the pandemic — BTR provides
an opportunity to maove into a community. Residents are also looking for greater
flexibility in how they live, making 8TR accommaodation a natural lifestyle choice.

Sustainability is key

The huilt environment is respansible for around 40% of the UK’s carbon footprint.
Net zero legislation and growing public concern about climate change mean our
clients and residents are increasingly focused on the environmental sustainability
of our developments, both during censtruction and in operation. The building’s
design and the materials and fittings play an important part here. A sustainable
development must also remain an attractive place to live for years to come, with
residents locking for excellent amenities and a strong sense of community.

Watkin Jones plc | Annual report and tinancial statemants 2022
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Thames
Quarter,
Reading

Qur response

We continue to see excellent
prospects for high quality PRESA
developments, Selectivity is key

and we therefore look to build in the
towns and cities which are most
in-demand with students and choose
the most attractive locations within
those areas.

Our response

Fresh provides us with valuable
feedback about what residents want
from their accommodation. We have
a team focused on design innovation
to ensure we harness this feedback
and continue to evalve aur offering.
Flexible tenancy arrangements help
meet residents’ Ifestyle needs.

Our response

We have set net zero targets for our
emissions. We aim to achieve net
zero scope 1 and scope 2 emissions
and make a meaningful impact on
scope 3 emissions by 2030. We

have also set targetls to increase
the amenity space and improve the
environmental performance of aur
huildings, and we are implementing
modern methods of canstruction,
which can reduce waste and
maximise efficiency.




Why invest? continued

Capital-light
business model

Our capital-light forward sale model allows us to operate the
business with a highly attractive return on capital employed.

0 ©

Identify potential
development sites

End-to-end access to
investor and consumer
insights:

Our target locations are informed by
arange of data together with insight
from owr institutional partners and

Fresh, which interacts with thousands
of students and residents every day.

Creating communities:

We generally target urban brownfield
sites, bringing them back to life with
energy-efficient homes and vibrant
communities.

Strang relationships:

Our extensive network and ability to
deliver enables us t¢ buy many of our
sites off-market, at attractive prices.

Track record:

QOur track record, reputation and
financial standing help us to close
transactions, since we can offer vendors
greater certainty of completion.

In-house know-how:

Ourin-house knowledge of markets,
planning and understanding of
institutional client demand is crucial
ta making the right investments.

Disciplined selection:

Site acquisitions are subject to our
rigorous investment approval process
before they can proceed.

Site procurement
and planning

Risk mitigation:

We typically secure sites subject to
satisfactory planning consent, to
reduce risk. Occasionally we buy sites
unconditionally, where the margin
potential outweighs the additional

risk and we are confident of obtaining
planning consent.

In-house expertise:

Qur in-house teams liaise with the
planning authorities to obtain planning
permission; this maintains planning

expertise as well as minimising delays.

Strict environmental and
social criteria:

Our planning proposals include
environmental and social impact
assessments and take into account
stakeholder views on matiers such
as amenity space, afforcdable housing
and the environment. We target the
achievernent of recognised industry
standards around environmental
efficiency and residents’ wellbeing
which wauld benchmark our
developments as bestin class.

Transaction
and funding

Capital-light model:

We generally aim to forward sell each
scheme to an investor before we start
construction, reducing our risk and
working capital requirements. We may
on occasion decide not to immediately
forward sell a development, when we
can earn a higher sale price by waiting.

Excellent visibility:

Forward sales give us excellent
visibility of our earnings and cash flow,
sO we can plan our working capital
requirements effectively.

Strong partnerships:

Selling our developments means we
do not compete with our institutional
clients and can forge stronger
relationships with them.

Combined vision:

" We partner with investors who

share the same vision of creating
communities and constructing better,
environmentally friendly homes that
people are proud to live in.

watkin Jones ple | Annual report and financial statements 2022
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Construction
and delivery

Construction expertise:

Unlike many developers, we are
experienced constructors. We
self-build most of our developments
and employ third-party contractors for
the remainder.

Cur self-build model gives us greater
control over delivery and ensures

we maintain the environmental and
wellbeing industry standards achieved
at planning.

We employ expert construction
directors and project managers, who
know what good looks like and can
hold our third-party suppliers to our
high standards.

Operational flexibility:

QOur mix of self-build and third-party
contractors allows us to flex our
construction capacity, depending

on the progress of our developments.

Strong partnerships:

We have long-term relationships with
key suppliers, wha understand our
requirements. This helps us daliver
to consistently high standards.

Common standards:

We select subcontractors and
third-party contractors who share
our focus on health and safety,
sustainability and doing business
responsibly.

Accommodation
management

Complete solution:

Fresh manages PBSA and BTR
schemes, enabling us to offer a
carmplete property development
and management solution to aur
institutional clients.

Portfolio management:

We focus on repeat business with
institutions, with a view to managing
portfolios of assets for them.

High barriers to entry:

We have invested significantly in
systems tailored to residential for

rent. The required level of investment,
together with the need to employ
experts across disciplines such as
health and safety, marketing, property
management, customer experience and
finance, means that accommodation
managers need significant scale to
aperate and barriers to entry are high.

Focus on wellbeing:

Fresh has invested in a wellbeing
programme for residents, for which it
has wen a number of industry awards.

Resident feedback:

Recent investmentin a resident insight
too! will give further insight into what
residents want, enabling us to drive
innovaticn in the right areas and inform
our site identification and planning
processes.

Watkin Jones plc | Annual report and financial staiements 2022
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Why invest? continued

Strong development pipeline

Securing the majority of our sites subject to planning

limits the capital we tie up in land and enables us to build
a substantial pipeline of development opportunities.

The estimated future revenue value of this pipeline at

30 September 2022 was c.£2 billion.

At 30 September 2022, our development pipeline Some of the successes that contributed to this
comprised: pipeline are highlighted below.

4,400 6,500

BTR apartments PBSA beds

February 2022
« Exchanged contracts to acquire a
Decem er 2021 214-hame BTR scheme with glanning
* Agreed a £47 million forward funding deal with Vita Group consent in Leatherhead, Surrey, including
to deliver a 285-unit mixed development in Edinburgh, . 36 affordable homes to rent. The scheme

consisting of 60 BTR apartments, 20 affordable was forward sold to Get Living for
apartments and 205 student beds. £71 million in July 2022,

October 2021 March 2022

* Acquired a brownfield site in Stratford, East London, on * Completed the acquisition of an 819-bad PBSA
an unconditional basis, for a 397-bed PBSA development. development scheme witli planning consent in
Planning permission was granted in April 2022, Bedminster, Bristol.

* Agreed a £130 million forward funding deal with
Legal & General Investment Management to deliver a
322-apartment BTR scheme in Lewisham, South East
Londen.

10 Watkin Jones ple | Annual report and financial statements 2022
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Chief Executive Officer’s review

The resilience of our
business model means
we are well placed to

withstand the current
uncertain economic
environment.

Richard Simpson
Chief Executive Officer

We delivered a good operational
performance across the Group during
FY22 and made further progress

with implementing our strategy. The
resilience of our business, based on
our strong balance sheet, capital-light
model and high visibility of development
pipeline, gives us confidence that we
can withstand the current uncertain
econamic environment and benefit from
cpportunities created by it. Qccupier
demand across the residential for rent
sector remains strong, which should
support investor demand for our assets
once market conditions normalise.

Performance

The Group performed solidly across all four
divisions. We delivered eight developments
and secured new sites and planning
cansents, finishing the year with a record
pipeline capable of delivering £2.0 billion

of revenue over the coming years. We
campleted £0.9 billion of forward sales,
across 11 schemes, as investor demand for
residential for rent assets remained strong
for rost of the year. Fresh also further
enhanced its reputation for great customer
service, supporting new mandate wins.
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As we announced in Qctober 2022, our
overall revenue and prefit was impacted
by market volatility towards the end of aur
financial year. This impacted two forward
sale transactions which were planned

to close in September 2022. The effect

of these was partially offset by the profit
on the sale of two leased assets, which
tagether resulted in our adjusted operaling
profit being 10% below our expectations
for the year. These forward sales are now
expected 1o transact in FY23.

Despite the market volatility, our busingss
remains cash generative. As we generally
anly start construction once developments
are forward sold, our exposure to
significant expenditure is limited. As
aresult, we were able to raintain our
dividend payments to shareholders,
declaring a dividend of 4.5 pence

per share,

Results

Revenue for FY22 was £407.1 million,
down 5% (FY21: £430.2 milhen}, while
gross profit was 20% lower at £67.6 million
(FY21: £84.8 millicn). Adjusted operating
profit, which excludes the impact of the
£30.4 millicn exceptional provision for
building remediation, was £54.7 million
(FY21: £57.3 million).

BTR has continued to grow rapidly.
Revenues were £191.2 million, representing
38% growth (FY21: £138.6 million).

We made good progress with our schemes
on-site and forward sold five develapments
during the year. Qur secured pipeline
stands at 4,400 apartments. Notable
successes in the year included agresing

a £200 millign forward fund transaction on
a 715-unit development in Cardiff.

In PBSA, we delivered seven schemes with
1,813 beds ahead cf the 2022/23 academic
year. Revenues were £180.0 million

(FY21: £259.9 million) and we forward

sold five developments. Our secured
pipeline now stands at around 6,457 beds.
During the year, we acquired an 819-bed
consented site in Bristol and a 397-bed

site in Stratford, London, subsequently
securing planning consent on the Stratford
development. We alsg agreed the sale

of a PBSA portfolio totalling 2,063 beds,
comprising a forward funding deal for three
PBSA development schemes and the sale
of two operational PBSA assets.
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We progressed our affordable-led
developments, continuing to wark through
the remaining sites from owr traditional
business building private hames far sale.
Revenue was £14.5 million (FY21: £22.7
millian).

Fresh performed well, with revenue
increasing to £9.1 million (FY21: £7.8
million), reflecting higher student
occupancy and an increased number

of units under management. It achieved
outstanding ratings for custamer service,
both from clients and residents, and won a
number of prestigious awards. At the year
end, Fresh had 22,896 student beds and
apartments under management. By 2024,
it is currently expected to manage almost
25,000 units, including expected renewals.

The Group remains cash generative,
reflecting our capital-ight model. At the
year end, we had adjusted net cash of
£82.6 million.

L~
G"-Ou#

Strategy

We continue to folfow a clear strategy
based on delivering growth across the
Group, operational excellence through
continuous improvement and ensuring we
have responsible operations.

There is good momentum underlying the
sectors we gperate in, with rising consumer
demand for student accommodation, BTR
and affordable housing.

Despite current investment markel volatility,
we expect these sectors will remain highly
attractive to institutional investors, based
on strong consumer demand, forecast
rental growth and the secure income that
residential for rent assets deliver.

Qur self-delivery model helps to ensure
we deliver on time and to budget, and we
have continued to refine our operational
structures and processes to further
enhance our delivery. We also wark

with third-party contractors to provide
additicnal capacity where needed,
particularly in locations where we do not
have a local presence.
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In times of supply chain disruption, it is
impaortant that we partner with the best.
We have leng-standing relationships with
much of cur supply chain, including firms
we have worked with for decades. We
are further improving the way in which we
manage and work with cur supply chain,
to ensure efficiency and consistency of
product. We know the sustainability of our
supply chain is key to achieving our own
sustainability targets, and in Naovember
2022 we held a supplier conference to set
out our expectations in this regard.

One of the key demonstrations of our
responsible business principles in action
during the year refated to remediating

fire safety issues in the Group's histarical
developments, which | discuss on page 12.

Mare broadly, this was the first full year

of the ESG strategy we launched in FY21,
covering pecple, places and planet. We are
pleased with our progress so far and while
there is a long way tc go, we remain on
track to meet our multi-year targets. Mare
detail is set out in our sustainability report
on pages 52 to 70.
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Chief Executive Officer’s review continued

People

Achiaving high health and safety
standards is critical and our approach has
continued to produce a significantly better
performance than the national average.
QOurincident rate, which is the number of
incidents recorded per 100,000 employees
was 175 (FY21: 102}). This compares with
2,880 for the wider industry (Scurce: HSE).

Unfortunately, in November 2022, we

tock the difficult decision to enter into

an employee consultation to restructure
some areas of the business and reduce
headcount by around 40 roles. This
followed a review of our ways of working
and took into account the macroeconomic
uncertainty. The restructure will reduce our
cost base while ensuring we are operating
more effectively and efficiently to support
our long-term success.

Outlock

Macroeconomic conditions remain
challenging and uncertain in the short
term. However, the underlying market
drivers supporting the residential for rent
sector remain strong. We expect the
housing supply/demand imbalance, rising
interest rates and increasing numbers of
full-time: students to continue to fuel strang
consumer demand for rented homes.

This should translate intc strong occupancy
levels and further rental growth.

We therefore anticipate that, despite
elevated barrowing costs, the opportunity
for higher yields and long-term returns
will ensure that residential for rent assets
remain attractive o institutional investors.
However, we also believe it is prudent to
assume that higher borrowing costs for
our institutional clients will resultin margin
pressure continuing into FY23, and that
new forward sales will be weighted to the
second half of FY23,

Qur balance sheet strength provides a
distinct competitive advantage for the
Group and we have a resilient business
model which is well positioned for success.
Cur cash-generative, forward-selling,
capital-light model means we have very
good visibility of our development pipeline
and minimal assets on the balance sheet
that are exposed to a decline in value.

We have €2 billion of secured development
pipeline and entered FY23 with secured
revenue of around £270 million.

Delays in the UK planning system appear ta
be easing and we have secured a number
of planning consents on prime assets
which will enable us to respond quickly

to investor demand as capital markets
recover. In the meantime we will look for
attractive land acquisition epporturities to
drive future revenue and protit growth and
restore margins back lo target.

Richard Simpson
Chief Executive Officer

25 January 2023
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We have three strategic priorities which aim to deliver
sustainable growth across the Group.

®

Growing our presence across the residential

for rent sectors

Strategic focus

* Leverage our leadership position in PBSA development

¢ Buildd momentum in the growing BTR market by drawing on our
PBSA expertise, selecting high quality locations and listening

to resident insight to develop our products

Link to risk

« Econamic cycle

* Increased competition
* Land availability

* Liquidity

+ Continue to evolve our affardable-led homes development

business, replicating our capital-light modet by forward selling

developments

services

QOur progress in FY22

Secured seven new sites, including
a major PBSA site in Bristol
Obtained seven planning consents,
including a BTR scheme in Belfast
and a PBSA scheme in Stratford
Forward sold 11 dovolopmante for
£0.0 billion

Secured an affordable housing site
at Flint for 200 units and obtained
planning permission for 150
affordable housing units in Belfast
Grew our units under management
by 3%

Watkin Jones plc | Annual report and financial statements 2022

« Offer high quality institutional-grade letting and management

Priorities for FY23

« ldentify attractive land acquisition
opportunities which may arise due
to the recessionary environment

* Forward sali tha developments for

which we obtain planning

Find further sites tn sipport our

affardahiadad hritsing pineling

Continue to grow Fresh by winning
new mandates te manage PBSA,
BTR and co-living schemes




Our strategy continued

Operationallexcellencel B

Strategic focus

* Optimise the way the business is structured, to suppart
cross-functional working and empower our teams

—
Linkitolvisk]
o

[« M BUild quality,
s} Capacity;and. capability;

* Invest in our systems and processes to increase efficiency and

effectiveness

Our progress in FY22

+ Continued to implement our target
operating model in Group Delivery,
including establishing a Praduct
Development, Innovation & Supply
Chain Management discipline

= Farmed a Product Develapment

Group, agreed product innovation

workstreams and agreed design

guides for each ot our products

Analysed and rationalised our suooly

chain tc ensure standardisation and

consistency of product and identify
nr stratagie atthrontractnre

Conducted a triat on timber frames at

our site in Crewe

Rolled out our bespoke property

management platform across our

Fresh portfolic

= Continue to embed our desired culture throughout the Group

Priorities for FY23

¢ Embed new ways of working foliowing
an efficiency raview which led to a
reduction in the size of our workforce
* Work with cur supply chain to
drive further efficiencies and
standardisation
* Continue to embed our property
management platform in Fresh
Assess the outcome of our timber
framo trial and coneidor how to
further utilise modern methods of
construction

18
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Strategic focus

* Our future people: create and maintain a company that is great
to werk for, celebrates diversity and inclusion, and prioritises

everyone’s health and wellbeing

o Magdlii-z
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+ Qur future places: enhance customer experience and client
satisfaction by delivering the highest-quality buildings
and services

* Qur future planet: minimise our environmental tootprint by

reducing carbon emissions focusing on our supply chain,
making our workplaces and developrnents more energy and
water efficient, reducing waste and being innovative

Qur progress in FY22

Achieved 6% of the national average
incident rate for the construction
industry, slightly above our 2025
target of 5%

Outsourced the provision of plant and
machinery to ensure the yse of newer,
mare prvirnnmentally friandly rranas,
general plant and tocls without
capital investment

Gamed accreditation under the 15U
45001 occupational health and safety
standard with no non-confarmities
Evongthonod prosuramant preocascs
for suppliers 10 take account of our
sustainability agenda and net zero
ambllons

Received a client net promoter score
of +47 and a resident net prometer
score of +34 tor bresh

Ut seven PESA schemes submitfed
for planning, designed five to
Excellent and one to Outstanding
under BREEAM quality standards
which measure environmental

e nanee
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Prigrities for FY23

Set near and long-term
science-based targsts for the
reduction of uur yrewenhiouse gas
emissions

Hold supplier conferences to set out
our expectations on sustainability far
our suppliers

Build on our strong progress in
designing envircnmentally efficicnt
buildings by maintaining those ratings
through the construction phase




Key performance indicators

We have established a range of key performance indicators
for the Group, to measure our progress towards achieving
long-term, sustainable value growth for shareholders.

Financial KPls:

Gross margin
)

FY22 16.6%

| Fy2i 19.7%|

FYao 21.4%

Purpose

Shows our ability to maintain
and improve the quality of our
garnings over time, oy selecting
the right development projects
and continually impraving our
coperational effectiveness.

Definition

Gross profit as a percentage

of revenue.

Performance

Gross margin reduced slightly due
to changes in mix, with a higher
proportion of land sales in the year
which typically are made at a lower
margin than development revenue.

20

Basic EPS [adjusted)
(pence)

Fy22 14.8p

p—— -

Fy21

FY20 14.7p

Purpose

Shows our ability to deliver
profitable growth and underpins our
progressive dividend policy.
Definition

Profit from continuing operations
attributable to ordinary
shareholders, excluding exceptional
items, divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue
in the year.

Performance

Adjusted basic earnings per share
fell slightly to 14.8 pence, supported
by the centinued strong growth

of the BTR sectar, offset by the
deferred completion of two forward
sales from September.
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Return an capital employed
{ROCE) (%)

Y22 63.1%

72.1%

58.5%

Purpose

Demanstrates how efficiently our
working capital-light, forward sales
maodel utilises the capital employed
in the business, which in turn
underpins our dividend payout and
our strong financial position.
Definition

Operating profit before exceptional
items, divided by average capital
employed, being net assets
excluding intangible assets, lease
assets and liabilities, and net cash.

Performance

Qur ROCE performance fel! slightly
to 63.1%, but remained in line with
historic performance despite the
deferred completion of two forward
sales in September. This reflects
the benefit of our capital-light
forward sale business model, with
our operating profit generated from
a relatively consistent and modest
leve! of capital employed.



Strategic report

Non-financial KPls:

Secured BTR pipeline
(apartments)

FY22

Purpose

Shows our ability to build a strong
pipeline of BTR developments,
Definition

The number of BTR apartments
expected to be delivered from
development sites which are
secured.,

Performance

Progress in evolving the secured
BTR pipeline was maintained,
increasing by 368 apartments on
the prior year. The future estimated
revenue value of the secured
pipeline is £1.0 billion (FY21: £0,95
billion), of which £E517 million is
currently forward sold.

Governance

Financial statements

Secured PBSA pipeline
(beds}

6,457

Purpose

Shows our ability to maintain our
PBSA development pipeline, which
currently provides the core of our
earnings and cash flow.

Definition

The number of PBSA beds which
are expected to be delivered
from development sites which are
secured.

Performance

The lower number of student
beds at the year end reflected the
campletion of over 1,860 beds
during the year.
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Company information

Student beds and BTR units
under management

Purpose

Shows aur ability to expand cur
high-margin Accommeodation
Management business, which
provides an ongoing regular income
and cash flow.

Definition

The number of student beds and
build to rent units that Fresh is
contracted to manage on behalf of
gur institutiona! clients.

Performance

Fresh maintained a good increase
in the number of units under
management, taking management
of four additional PBSA and BTR
schemes during the year.
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Operating review

Build
To Rent

BTR development delivered further
strong growth, with revenues of £191.2
million (FY21: £138.6 million), up 38%
due to the five forward sales that

we completed during the year. The
71-bed BTR element of the Steelworks
development in Sheffield achieved
practical completion in March 2022
and we continued to progress the
forward sold developments at Hove
and Lewisham, which are due tareach
practical completion in 2023 and 2024
respectively.

We forward sold five BTR schemes

in FY22, totalling more than 2,000
apartments, which generated revenue from
the asscciated land sales during the year.
These schemes are in:

+ Lewisham (322 apartments),

« Birmingham (551 apartments,
including 47 affordable homes);

* lLeatherhead (214 apartments,
including 36 affordable homes);

+ Bath (316 apartments, with n2arly
one-third to be let at a discount to
market rent); and

Cardiff (718 apartments).

BTR generated gross profit of £32.8 million
(FY21: £29.8 million), an increase of 10%.
The gross margin for the year was 17.2%
{FY21: 21,5%). We continue to target a BTR
gross margin of 15% in the medium term,
comprising a margin on land sales of 10%
and a development margin of 16%.

During the year, we received a resolution to
grant planning consent for a 778-apartment
development in the regeneration area of
Titanic Quarter in Belfast. We also secured
sites in Leeds (230 apartments) and Hove
(82 apartments) subject to planning. The
current secured development pipeline for
BTR is shown opposite.
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Loxley
Heights,
Sheffield

Key statistics

Forward sold Secured pipeline Delivered FY22

schemes apartments

BTR apartments {estimated year of physical completion)
Total pipeline FY23 Frz4 FY25 FYZ86 FYzr
2,380 397 456 80% 402 318

apartments apartments

legals -
Sites secured with planning 1444 T ITUrmom I T eyt T ees T —
Sites secured subject to planring 856 — 0TI T et T sea T s
Total secured 4,380 397 456 1,272 1,788 467

The secured development pipeline has an estimated future revenue value to us of £1.0 billion (FY21: £8.95 billion), of which £517 million
is currently forward sold (FY21: ¢.£197 million).

Watkin Jones ple | Annual report and financial statements 2022




Operating review

Build
- To Rent

The market opportunity

Increasing numbers of people in the UK are renting their
homes for the medium to long term, resulting in strong
demand for high quality BTR accommodation.

The UK has a long-standing need for new
homes, with supply failing to keep up

with demand. Between 2017 and 2022,
the government targeted a net increase

of 300,000 homes in England each

year. However, actual complstions have
consistently fallen short, with the most
recent figures showing there were 232,820
additional homes in England in 2021/22.
This was a 10% increase on 2020/21.

Urbanisation is another important factor.
The UK has one of the highest rates of
urbanisation, which influences issues such
as infrastructure constraints, competition
for land, planning, lagistics and housing
affordabifity, Many of the locations where
we see the greatest potential for BTR are
in urban areas with universities, where
education leads to employment and the

-=need for housing..- -— « —~—=— ~—-— -—

Lifestyles are also changing. Pecple are
getting married and having children later,
delaying the point at which they buy a
house. Young people often see renting as
a better lifestyle choice, providing quality
of living while maintaining flexibility, in the
expectation of moving locations for jobs
more frequently than in the past. BTR alse
offers good home-working facilities and
sense of community, which is increasingly
attractive given the meve to flexible and
home working since the pandemic.

Affordability is becoming increasingly
irmportant, particufarly in the current
climate of rising mortgage costs and record
house prices. As the cost of living crisis
continues, renters are likely tc look for ways
of reducing costs — this might include zero
deposit schemes such as those provided

in many BTR developments. Further

added value is gained through inclusive
amenities such as co-working or meeting
spaces, outdoor space, gyms, security

and concierges.

With consistently strong demand for
hausing, the supply of 8TR apartments
continues to grow. At the end of September
2022, the British Property Federation
estimated that the BTR sector had grown
by 15% compared to one year earlier. The
total number of BTR homes completed,
under construction or in the pipeline was - - -~
over 240,000 units. Of these, around 77,000
had been completed, with 50,000 under
construction and the remainder in planning.
Almost half of local authorities had BTR in
their planning pipeline - a record number -
and growth in the regions was significantly
stronger than in London, partly due to the
growth of single family BTR.

Savills has calculated that there are

4.5 million households in private rented
accommadation. With consensus
estimates showing that BTR could account
for 30% of the market at fuil maturity, there
is considerable scope for growth for years
1o come, ’

Ownership of UK rented housing remains
highly fragmented, with only around 1.7%
estimated to be owned by institutional
investors, well below the levels seen

in countries with mare mature rental
markets such as Germany and the USA.
This percentage shoutd rise over time, as
BTR assets are attractive to institutional
investors, given their rental growth, high
jevels of gccupancy and rent collection
rates that typically exceed 95%, Investment
into BTR assets exceeded £5 billion in the
12 months to Q3 2022, with investment———
in Q3 alone up 75% on the previous year.
There were numerous new entrants to the
invastor market, primarily from overseas.
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Student
Accommodation

PBSA revenues were £180 million {FY21:
£259.9 million), a decrease ot 31%. This
was predominantly due to the deferral
of the PBSA scheme due to complete

in September 2022, We delivered seven
PBSA developments totalling 1,813 beds
as planned during the year, all of which
had been forward sold. We also forward
sold a further five schemes in:

¢ Edinburgh (279 beds, for delivery in
FY23),

Colchester (286 beds, for delivery in
FY23j;

Swansea (370 beds, for delivery in
FY23);

Noettingham (354 beds, for delivery in
FY24); and

Bath (335 beds, for delivery in FY24).

Governance

Financial statements

Company information

For Colchester, the client acquired the
land directly, meaning we only recorded
revenues on four land sales during the year.

FBSA revenues also include rental income
from our historic leased PBSA assets.

The rental income on these assets was
£13.6 million (FY21: £10.8 million), an
increase of 26% as a result of improved
student occupancy following the easing of
the pandemis restrictions.

During the year, we sold two of the six
assets, generating a profit of £18.3 million
which was recognised centrally.

Gross profit from PBSA development

was £26.4 mitlion (FY21: £50.5 million),
representing a gross margin of 14.7%
{FY21: 19.4%). This reflected a higher
weighting towards lower-margin land sales
from forward sales completed in the year.
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Qur target margin in PBSA is 20%,
comprising a ¢.10% margin on land sales
ang a development phase margin of
c.22.5%.

We have continued to add to the PESA
pipeline and to progress sites through the
planning process. Sites acquired during
the year included an 819-bed development
scheme in Bedminster, Bristol. We also
purchased a site in Stratford (397 beds} on
an unconditiona! basis, with the resolution
to grant planning permission received in
April 2022.

Qur first fully co-living studio development,
a 133-bed scheme in Exeter, is under
construction and will be available to rent
to the wider residential tenant markst,
including students.




Sweent
Accommoedationy

The current secured development pipeline for PBSA is as shown below,
PBSA beds (estimated year of physical completion)

Total pipeline FY23 FYz4

Fyas FY28 FY27

Forward sold

Sites secured subject to planning

1787
Forward sales in legals

1088 8

408 1450 515

Total secured

1,916 1.450 515

The estimated future revenue value to the
Group of the secured development pipeline
is ¢.£1.C billion (F¥21: £0.9 billion), of which
£130 million is currently forward sold {FY21:
£150 million).

In 2020/21, there were around 2.2 million
full-time students, up 8% on 2019/20
(source: HESA). Of these, Cushman &
Wakefield (C8W) estimates that 1.6 million
students require a bed during their course.

Key statistics

Forward sold

Trends in demand for UK university places
remain positive. UCAS reported nearly
684,000 applications had been received for
2022 by the June 2022 deadline, of which
549,000 were fram the UK. Demagraphic
factors mean the number of 18 year olds in
the UK is set to increase until 2030, while
the proportion of 18 year olds applying

for higher education continues to grow,
reaching 44.1% in 2022.

Secured pipeline

The number of international students is
also important, as they are more likely 1o
live in PBSA than UK students. Applications
from non-EU countries increased by 9% in
2022, to just under 112,800. The number

of EU applications has fallen post-Brexit,
reaching 23,000 in 2022, less than half the
leveal in 2020.

Delivered FY22

B ]850

Lo} (Y1574

beds]
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The number of full-time students in the UK continues to grow
steadily and is a key determinant of demand for PBSA.

The growth in non-EU applications has
made up much of the difference and with
the EU now providing just over 3% of
applications, the level of demand from the
EU does not have a meaningful impact on
overall demand for UK university places.

A notable trend in higher education is

the flight to quality. With universities
charging the sarie uition fees and no cap
on student numbers, better institutions
have grown and lower-quality institutions
have struggled. The latest data show that
applications for higher tariff institutions
were aver 50% higher than applications
for lower tariff universities. This has clear
implications for the location of new PBSA
developments.

There is a long-term dermand-supply
imbalance for PBSA. This imbalance is
expected to increase, with the predicted
annual increase in the number of students
exceeding the supply of new beds. There
are currently around 698,000 PBSA beds
In the UK, with privately owned PBSA
accounting for more than 53%. In total,
around 24,600 new beds were delivered in
2021/22, only 700 more than in the previous
year (source: CAW).

Much PBSA stock is outdated and

needs redevelopment, presenting further
opportunities. Around one quarter of total
P8SA is urrefurbished, first-generation
stock, built pre-1939. A number of these
beds are therefore reaching the end of their
operatianal lives and will need replacing
(source: C&W}.

Institutional investors remain attracted

to UK PBSA as a mature, stable and
income-producing asset class. Knight
Frank reporied £6.9 billion of transactions
in 2022, the highest investrment volume on
record, driven by the sale of the Student
Roost portfolio. A ksy lrend has been new
ingtitutions entering the market, with the
likes of EQT Exeter, Ares, Apolto and Cain
all making significant acquisitions.

In

*a

[N 3
Y

AN

1)

RN

AN

#
§
¢
’
g
)
g
L
”

\

[WatknTones plc 'Agouakienniand financialstate ment=t .22




Afifondalblesied

S=S==—"r

Revenue for the Affordable-led

Homes division was £14.5 million

(FY21: £22.7 million), a reduction of 38%.
This was principally due to the continuing
transition of our legacy house-building
business to AHordable-led Homes. It was
alsc impacted by construction delays at
our site in Preston due to supply chain
shortages.

Gross profit for the division was £1.9 million
{FY21: £2.6 millian), reflecting a margin of
13.2% (FY21: 11.3%). This was the result of
the evolving mix of sales during the year,
as the FY22 margin included the sale of a
nymber of units at a higher margin.

Key statistics

Affordable housing pipeline

We are warking on site at Crewe, which
was forward sold during FY21. Work is
pregressing well and we have commenced
our trial an timber-framed homes. As well
as being mare environmentally friendly by
using renewable construction materials,
timber-framed homes have an increased
element of off-site construction, which
should make progress on site faster

and more efficient. At our Llay site,

we are contiuing to work through the
pre-commencerment planning conditions.

Traditional housing pipeline

housestand pents -

We made good progress in adding to

our pipeline, exchanging contracts on

a site in Flint for 200 units. In addition,

we obtained planning permission for our
Belfast site, which includes 150 affordable
units as part of the overall development. In
conjunction with good asset management
of our existing land bank, this has brought
the current affordable homes pipeline to
over 500 units for delivery over the pericd
to FY28.
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The market opportunity

The National Planning Policy Framework defines affordable
housing as housing for sale or rent, for people whose needs

are not met by the market.

There are several types of affordabia
housing. One example is social rent, where
local authorities or registered providers
{such as heousing associations) own the
homes. Social rents are set by government
guidelines and usually covered by housing
benefit or local housing allowance. There
are also homes with affordable rents, which
are subject to rent controls that require the
rent to be no more than 80% of the iocal
market rent, including service charges. In
additicn, there are tenures such as shared
ownership and other forms of low-cost
home awnership, where people are
supported to buy some or all of the aquity
in their home.

There is significant unmet demand for
afferdable housing. The National Housing
Federation estimates that the UK needs
145,000 new affordable homes to be built
each year. However, the average annual
delivery since 2013 has besn just 45,000
homes, with around 50,000 completed in
the year to March 2022 {scurce: Hames
England angd the Greater London Authority
(GLA}.

Property developers looking to secure
planning consent from local authorities
will usually be required to undertake
what are known as section 106
requirements, designed to reduce the
impact of their development on the local
community. These requirements often
include constructing affordable housing.
On average, around 50% of all affordable
housing is delivered in this way.

Historically, the balance has been provided
by housing associations, usually with

grant suppoert from bedies such as Homes
England and the GLA. The government has
committed £11.4 billion to deliver 180,000
affordable homes between 2021 and 2026.
Homes England will be making £7.4 billion
available to deliver 130,000 homes outside
London, while the GLA will make £4 bitlion
available to deliver 50,000 homes in
Greater London. At just under £64,000

per home, this scheme offers more than
double the grant per home of the 2016-21
programime.

There has also been a steep rise in

private capital looking to deploy inta
affordable housing, due to the sector’s
favourable long-term dermand, the return
characteristics, the potential for growth and
insulation from volatility. This investment
appetite is now broadening to encompass
traditional private housing for single
families, enabling investors to access
additional BTR income streams. With a
growing number of investors looking to
diversify investments across different

and multiple residential tenures, this

new residential option sits comfortably
alongside traditiona! affordable housing
and further supports the investment case
far & capital-light housing development
model.

Affordable housing also provides the best
opportunity for social impact and investars
are increasingly looking for opportunities to
enhance their ESG credentials.

)
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Accommedation
Manacdemneint

Fresh increased revenue to £9.1 million
(FY21: £7.8 million), reflecting higher

levels of student occupancy as the sector
recovered from the pandemic. It also
reflected the increase in student beds and
BTR apartments under management, from
22,155 at the start of FY22 to 22,896 at the
end of FY22. We saw overall cccupancy
levels rise tc 95.4% (FY21: B4.5%), with the
majority of assets achieving between 99%
and 100% occupancy.

Gross profit for the year was £5.9 millicn
(FY21: £4.1 million}, at a margin of 64.8%
(FY21: 52.6%), benefiting from the increase
in variable fee income related te occupancy
levels in the vear.

Fresh took over the management of four
schemes during the year, for three student
schemes and one BTH scheme. It was
also appointed to manage the 133-unit
co-living scheme in Exeter developed by
the Group. There has been strong interest
in the scheme, given the lack of affordable
housing options for young people in Exeter.

For FY24, Fresh is currently forecast to
manage 24,721 student beds and BTR
apartments across 75 schemes.

Key statistics

FY22 student beds and BTR
apartments under management

This was a highly successful year for Fresh
from a customer service perspective.

The business increased its resident net
promoter score to +34 in the Global
Student Living Survey, against the
benchmark for large providers of +8.

It obtained a client net promoter score of
+47, an increase of +35. Fresh also won
numerous awards during the year, including
Student Operator of the Year at the Resi
Awards 2021. It also won Best Private
Housing (UK & lretand) for the second
yearin a row, along with Best Learning
Environment {UK & Ireland) and Best
Individua! Property (UK & Ireland} at the
2022 Global Student Living Awards. These
awards are parlicuiarly impertant as they
are based on independent feedback from
students.

Our Be welibeing programmie has been a
key contributor to high levels of customer
satisfaction, providing vital suppert to
residents during the pandemic. This year,
we expanded the programme by recruiting
students to support it, with more than
180 signed up across the portfolio. They
research what their fellow residents want
and come up with ideas, such as events,
that are tailored to those needs and

the location,

FY23 student beds and BTR
apartments under management

.y

PR

During the year, we farmalised aur
custamer proposition, which we call ‘The
Fresh Difference’. This will ersure everyone
in Fresh has a common understanding of
what we sland for, what we are looking
to achieve and what we need to do to
further improve customer service, s0

we continue to differentiate ourselves
from our competitars. To help us recruit
the right people, we have rewritten qur
joh descriptions to reflect our customer
proposition.

We introduced and launched the Yardi
property management software as a single
system to create synergies and efficiencies.
Since the launch, we have continued to
lead the development of the software and
hone the functionality of and expertise in
the product. We have focused cn securing
direct bookings and as a result the Fresh
website is performing strangly in the UK
and overseas, with a significant increase in
traffic compared with the previous website.

watkinJones pic | Annual report and f nancial statements 2022
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The market opportunity

The accommodation management market continues to grow,
as institutional investors seek partners to work with them to

Financial statements

Company infarmation

drive the performance of their residential for rent assets.

The growth in the accommodation
management market is directly linked to
the number of new developments coming
through, as described on the preceding
pages. In the student market, there are
also opportunities for providers to increase
market share by taking cn the management
of existing developments, as the previous
provider's contract comes to an end. As the
BTR sector is still at a relatively early stage,
this secondary market is yet to emerge.

Atter a signiticant slowdown in
opportunities during the pandemic, we saw
a bounceback during FY22. In PBSA, these
have come from a mix of new and existing
schemes. There was also a meaningful
increase in tenders to manage both BTR
and co-living schemes. With build costs
increasing during FY22, some schemes
that were in the industry pipeline have been
delayed. This may result in a slower market
for managing new developments in FY23.

Many of the larger accommodation
managers are the in-house arms of
owner-operators. The pool of pure
third-party operators of student
accommeodation remains small and
Fresh is the third largest of these in the
UK. Successful operation in the market
requires sufficient scale to invest in the
infrastructure and the specialist skills.
At ieast 5,000 beds under management
is seen as the minimum level, making

it difficult for new operators to enter
the market.

Even $0, we are seeing increasing
numbers of providers targeting the
accommoedation management space.
Some owner-operators of residential for
rent assets are looking to win third-party
management contracts, while existing
managers af student accommodation are
targeting the BTR and co-living markets.

Watkin Jones plc | Annual report and financial statements 2022

However, we believe there are several
factors that make Fresh a strong
competitor. The quality of our customer
service and our customer-focused culture
will continue to make Fresh stand out.
Qur scale, with almaost 23,000 units under
management across the country, means
we have a detailed understanding of local
rmarkets and the buying power to secure
favourable prices for our clients. We also
benefit from the efliciencies of having a
single brand and management platform,
whereas competitors often create different
brancs for PBSA, BTR and co-living.
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Revenue

Revenue of £407.1 million was delivered in
the year, down 5.4% from £430.2 million
in FY21. Market volatility experienced in
September 2022 affected the completion
of two forward sales. These sales are now
forecast to complete in FY23.

BTR development revenues grew by 38.0%
to £191.2 millicn (FY21; £138.6 million) with

the forward sale of five new developments

during tho yoar.

Revenues from our PBSA develapment
business were £180.0 million (FY21:
£259.9 million), a decrease of 30.7%,
predaminantly drivan hy the deferral nf tha
HFBDA 5CNeme wiich was Jdue 1o coinplele
in September. Seven schemes compieted
in tho ycar and five developments were
forward suld. PBSA revenues also inglude
the rental income from our six leased
student accommodation assets. The rental
income on these was £13.6 milllon (FYZ21:
£10.8 millon), an increase of 259%, driven
by strong student cccupancy following the
easing ot the pandemic restrictions.

The Affordable Homes business deliverad
revenues of £14.5 million, down 36.1%% cn
the £22.7 million recorded in FY21.
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The contribution from our BTR business
increased to one-third of Group revenues.

Revenues in the year fell below the prior
year, predominantly due to the continued
transition of our legacy house-building
business to Afferdable Homes.

Fresh, our Accommeodaticn Mzanagement
business, achieved record revenues of
£9.1 million (FY21: £7.8 millicn), largely due
to improved occupancy levels across its
portfolio following the easing of pandemic
restrictions.

In addition ioc our core businesses, we
recorded revenues of £12.3 million (FY21;
£1.3 million) from developing commercial
property alongside PBSA and BTR
developments, which is reported within
our Corporate segment.

Revenue by operating segment
Student

Operating profit

Gross profit for the year was £67.6 million
(FY21: £84.8 million), a decrease of 20.3%.
This resulted in a gross margin of 16.8%
(FY21: 19.7%).

BTR development gross profit increased
by 10.1% in the year to £32.8 million {FY21:
£29.8 million), reflecting the strong revenue
growth but some softening of the gross
margin to 17.2% (FY21: 21.5%j), although
this remains well ahead of the BTR target
margin of 15%,

Gross profit from PBSA development of
£26.4 militon, compared with £50.5 million
in FY21, reflected the deferred completion
of a forward sale from September. The
grass margin was 14.7% (FY21; 19.4%),
reflecting a blended margin mix weighed
more towards lower-margin land sales from
the forward sales completed in the year.

Annnmmnation e T—— ——

£180.0m

Company information

In Attordable Homes, gross profit was
£1.9 million (FY21: £2.6 million), resulting
in a gross margin of 13.2% (FY21: 11.3%).
The impravement in gross margin reflects
a stronger mix of sales in the year on new
developments.

Fresh generated a gross profit of

£5.9 million {FY21: £4.1 million] with the
gross margin increasing by 43.9% as
strong occupancy fevels returned.

Buring the year we disposed of two leased
PBSA investment properties (Dunaskin
Mill and New Bridewell) which were sold
as part of a portfolio, including three new
PBSA schemes, to EQT Exeter. A profit

on disposal, following the release of

net liabilities and adjustments for rent

and operating cost apporticnment,

was recarded of £18.3 millian within
administrative expenses.

B 2239 911
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Financial review continued

Operating profit continued

Gross administrative expenses {excluding
the above lease disposal) increased by
13.5% to £31.2 milon (FY21: £27.5 million},
reflecting increased leve'ls of activity and
associated staff costs.

Qgperating profit before exceptional

items of £54.7 miilion was delivered

(FY21: £57.3 million), at an aperating margin
before exceptional items of 13.4% (F¥21:
13.3%). This result was despite the impact
of market volatility leading to the deferral

of two forward sales. Operating profit was
£24.3 million (FY21: £57.3 million).

Exceptional items

In response to the new Building Safety Act
and following a review of all buildings over
11 metres tall developed by the Group over
the last 30 years, we have recognised an
excepticnal charge of £30.4 miltion for the
potential costs of the remediation work
required, which are expected to be incurred
over a peried of up to five years. No
exceptional items were incurred in FY21.

Finance costs

The net finance cost for the year was
£6.0 million {FY21: £6.1 millien}. These
costs are primarily the finance cost of
capitalised leases under IFRS 16, which
totalled £4.5 million (FY21: £4.9 million).
The balance of our finance costs
represents the fees associated with

the availability of our revolving credit
facility (RCF) with HSBC and the interest
cost of the 10ans we have with Svenska
Handelsbanken AB (see ‘Bank facilities'
on page 38).

Profit before tax

Profit before tax for the year was

£18.4 million {(FY21: £51.1 million}, For FY22,
adjusted profit before tax, which excludes
the impact of the exceptional items for that
year, was £48.8 million (FY21: £51.1 million).

Taxation

The corporation tax charge was £5.0 million
{FY21; £9.2 million). The effective tax

rate of 27% (FY21: 18%) was more than

the standard UK corporation tax rate of
19%, primarily as a result of a £1.1 million
adjustment in respect of prior year claims
for land remediation relief. The effective

tax rate in FY21 was reduced by a prior
year tax credit relating to the taxation of
distributions fram the Curlew Student Fund,
which had already been taxed at source,
and the higher proporticnate benefit
relative to the lower profit of specific tax
allowances, including land remediation
expenditure.

Information on our tax strategy can be
found in the Investor section of our website,
watkinjonesplc.com.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share from continuing
operations for the year was 5.2 pence
[FY21. 16.4 pence). Adjusted basic earnings
per share, which exciudes the impact of the
exceptional items, was 14.7 pence (FY21:
16.4 pence).

Dividends

The Board has proposed a final dividend

of 4.5 pence per share (FY21: 5.6 pence
per share). Taken together with the interim
dividend of 2.9 pence per share (FY21:

2.6 pence per share), this will give a total
dividend for the year of 7.4 pence per share
(F¥21: 8.2 pence per share). The dividend
is 2.0x coverad by adjusted earnings, in line
with our stated policy. -

At 30 September 2022, the Company had
distributable reserves of £56.1 million
available to pay dividends.

EBITDA
EBITDA, which is calculated as set out

on page 39, was £32.7 million after the
inclusion of exceptional provision costs of
£30.4 million (FY21: £65.9 million). Adjusted
EBITDA, which excludes exceptional items,
was £63.1 miilion, with an adjusted EBITDA
margin of 15.5%.

Return on capital employed

The return on capital employed (ROCE)

for the year, calculaled as set out on page
39, was strong at 63.1% (FY21: 72.1%)}.

Our ROCE performance reflects the henefit
of our capital-light forward sale business
madel, with our operating profit generated
from a relatively consistent and modest
level of capital employed.

Statement of financial position

At 30 September 2022, non-current
assets amounted to £49.6 million

{FY21: £124.7 million}, with the most
significant item being the carrying value
of the leased student accommodation
investment properties amounting to
£27.3 million (FY21: £98.6 million).

The reduction in these balances is

mainly due to the disposal of two PBSA
leased properties during the year.
Right-of-use assets relating to office

and car leases amounted to £4.7 million
{FY21: £4.5 million). Intangible assets
relating to Fresh amounted to £12.2 million
(FY21: £12.7 million) and were reduced
by the amortisation charge of £0.5 million
in the year.

Inventory and work in progress was

£147.1 million. These were £19.5 millicn
higher than the prior year (FY21:

£127.6 million) and reflect investment in
new land sites for development in Stratford,
Birmingham and Bristol, partially offset by
the sale of the Group's Lewisham site.

Contract assets increased significantly

in the year to £50.8 million (FY21:

£13.8 million}. These mainly relate to

the final payment balances which are
received on completion of developments
in build. The increase in the year reflects
the increased contributions from BTR
developments which typically have a
longer construction period and don't reach
practical completion dates just pricr to the
Group’s year end as PBSA development
typically do. Contract tiabilities amounted
to £5.1 milfion and were £2.3 million higher
than at 30 Septernber 2021.

36
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The Building Safety Act provision of
£33.4 million is predominantly classified
as non-current liabilities, based on our
anticipated expendilure over the next
five years. The increase in the provision
of £30.4 million in the year is considerad
under the review of ‘Exceptional

items’ above, and is in addition to a
brought-forward provision of £3.1 millien
for cladding-related costs.

Governance

Financial statements

Interest-bearing loans and

borrowings staad at £28 2 million at
30September 2022, up from £12.0 million a
year ago. The increase primarily relates to
the drawdown of loans against new sites-in
Stratford and Bristol. The current poriion
of our loans has decreased by £4.7 millien
to £Nil, which reflects the renewal of cur
facilities with Svenska Handelsbanken AB
{see ‘Bank facilities’ on page 38).

Company information

Lease liabilities arising from the adoption
of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ in the prior year were
reduced by £80.2 million to £49.1 million
(FY21: £129.3 miflion), reflecting capital
repayments made in the year and a
disposal of £76.7 million mainly due to the
disposal of twa PBSA leased properties.

Cash and net debt
Fyz2 Fyz1
£m £m
Operating profit before exceptional items 54.7 57.3
Profit 0ndl5p053| of fi)(ad assets {209)‘ _ .

Depreciation and amortisation

(Increase)/decrease in working capital

Finance costs paid

Tax paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Sate/(purchase] of fixed assets

h flow from joint venture interests

Payment of lease liabillties @7 ®.1)
Cash flow from borrowings Te3 @ig
Increase/{decrease) in cash (25.5) 1.8
Cash at beginning of year 1383 1345
Cash at end of year 10.8 136.3
Less: borrowings (282) S (120)
Net cash before deducting lease liabilities 82.6 124.3
Less: lease liabllties ey (1283)
Net cash/(debt} 335 (5.0}
Tota! cash and available facilities
Fyz2 FY21
£m
Cash and cash equivale 136.3
Revolving credit facility 1000
Drawn baiance o RCF sy 08
Overdratft T 100 100
Total cash and available facilities 196.0 238.5
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Cash and net debt continued

At the year end, we had a cash balance of
£110.8 million and loans of £28,3 million,
resulting in a net cash position of

£82.5 million. At 30 September 2021,

we had a cash balance of £136.3 million,
loans of £12.0 million and net cash of
£124.3 millign.

Net cash balances are stated before
deducting the lease lizbilities of £49.1
million (30 September 2021: £129.3 million),
arising as a result of applying IFRS 156.

The lease liabilities relate primarily to
several historic student accommodation
sale and leaseback properties, for which
the future lease rental iabilities are
expected to be substantially covered by
the future net student rental incomes to
be received.

In a typical year, the Group’s cash

balance peaks around the year end, as

we receive the final payments on student
accommodation developments completing
ahead of the new academic year, as

well as initial proceeds from the latest
forward sales.

The Group is then a net user 6f cash
unti! the following year end, as a result
of outflows such as tax and dividend
payments, overhead costs and land
purchases.

38

The cash balance at the year endis
therefore impoertant for funding our
day-to-day cash requirements and for
putting the Group in a strong pasition when
bidding for new sites.

The Group’s net cash outflow from
operating activities for the year was

£26.9 million (FY21: inflow of £61.4 million),
reflecting investment in new development
sites and the stages of development of
sites under construction. This net outflow
was exacerbated by two forward sales that
were forecast to complete being affected
by the market volatility in September 2022
such that they didn’t close before the year
end and are now forecast to close in FY23.

Finance costs paid totalled £5.8 million
{FY21: £6.7 million), including the finance
charges on the capitalised lease liabilities
of £4.5 million (F¥21: £4.9 million}, for
which the capital payments amounted to
£4.7 million {FY21: £6.1 million).

Cividends paid in the year totalled

£21.8 million (FY21: £25.5 million}. The
dividend payments in FY21 included both
the full-year dividend for FY20, following
the suspension of the interim dividend for
that year, as well as the interim dividend for
FY21. Dividends paid in FY22 comprised
the fina! dividend for F¥21 and the interim
dividend for FYZ22.

Bank facilities

The Group has a £100.0 million RCF which
runs until May 2025, At the year end,

£24.8 million was drawn against the tacility
(30 September 2021: £7.8 million), giving
headroom of £75.2 million. This facility can
be accessed to fund land acquisitions.

We alsa have an undrawn overdraft

facility of £10.0 millicn, Total cash and
avzilable facilities at 30 September 2022 -
therefore stcod at £196.0 million

(FY21: £238.5 million).

In addition, the Group has loan facilities

" with Svenska Handelsbanken AB, which

are used to fund our operating build to
rent stock in Sheffield and Droyisden,
which were renewed during the year and
run to Septernber 2024, The outstanding
balance at the year end was £4.0 million
(30 September 2021: £4.5 million).

Going concern

We have undertaken a thorough review

of the Group's ability to continue to trade
as a going concern for the period to

31 January 2024, The basis of the review
and an analysis of the downside risks is set
out in the section on 'Risk management
and principal risks' on pages 50 and 51.
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We use APMs as part of our financial reporting, alongside statutory reporting measures. These APMs are provided for the

following reasans:

1) to present users of the annual report with a clear view of what we consider to be the results of cur undedying operations,
enabling consistent comparisons over time and making it easier for users of the report to identify trends;

2} to provide additiona! information to users of the annual report about our financial performance or position;
3} to show the performance measures used by the Board in determining dividend payments; and
4) to show the performance measures that are linked tc remuneration for the Executive Directors.

The following APMs appear in this annual report.

Reconciliation

FYZ22 FY21
Reason for use £'000 £'000
Adjusted aoperating profit 1 Operating profit 24,319 57,255

_ Add: exceplional items

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted profit before tax

Prcflt before tax

Adjusted profit before tax 48,758 51,121

Adjusted basic earnings per share 13,4 Profit atter tax 13,414 41,932
Add: exceptional fems T g g

Less: tax on exceptlonai tems (5.765)' """"""" -

Ad]usted profit after tax 38,010 41,932
Weighted average number of shares 256 385 saz 256 1 63 459 A

Adjusted basic earnings per share 14.825 pence 16.389 pence

EBITDA 1 Operatmg profit 24,319 57,255
Add share of Ioss";ﬁ'-ié|nt vemures - )

Add. depreciation

Add: amortisation 559 560

o EBITDA 32,714 65,856

Adjusted EBITDA 1 EBITDA 32,714 65,856
Add exceptlonal |tems o 30 365 e

Adjusted EBITDA 63,079 65,856

Adjusted net cash 2 Net cash/{debt) 33,454 {4,920
Add: lease liabiites 49088 129252

Adjusted net cash 82,553 124,332

Return on capital employed 1,2 Adjusted operating profit 54,684 57,255

Net assets at 30 September 176 953 184,811
Less: adlusted net cash (52 553) o "'(124 332)
: mtangxble e (i2188) . @, 724).

- = - - W:rlnvestmenl proper& (Ieased) B (27,331) ‘ 98, 567)

Lessnght cf s

a9pos

Add: lease hiabilities - 7 1289, 252.”
_ Adjusted net assets at 30 September 99, 2657 73972
Adjusted net assets at 1 October 73 72 84 775
Average adjusted net assets 86,619 79,374
Return on capital employed 63.1% 721%
ah Sergeant

Chief Financial Officer

25 January 2023
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Risk management and principal risks

The effective management of risk is essential

to the successful delivery of our strategy.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk
register annually. The review includes:

Risk management process
The Board has establishad a formal risk
ranagement process, under which it ¢ any substantial changes to the principal
identifies, evaluates and monitors the risks, including new or emerging risks;
principal risks facing the Group and material changes to the control
the effectiveness of the controls and framework in place;
procedures in place to mitigate against X '

+ changes in risk scores;

them. This includes:
» changes in risk appetite; and

* progress with any additional mitigating
actions which have been agreed.

* the Board's approval of a detailed
corporate risk register, which identifies
the principal risks and is prepared
and kept under review by the Risk
Committee, which meets regularly
as a sub-committee of the Executive
Committee;

» the review of assurance and information
about the management of those risks,
including specific reviews carried cut by
KPMG as our outsourced internal audit
provider; and

* an assessment of the Group’s risk
appetite for particular categories of
risk, as a basis against which to assess
whether the principal risks are being
mitigated against to an acceptable level.

The Audit Committee aiso provides
appropriate challenge to the effectiveness
of mitigating controls, including the review
and testing of mitigating controls for
selected risks by KPMG as part of the
annual internal audit plan.

In Decernber 2022, the Group’s strategic
risk register was reviewed at a joint meeting
of the Board and Audit Committee. This
meeting acknowledged the work done
during 2022 in progressing the Group's
corporate risk management, and approved
the risk appetites and current assessments
for each of the Group's principal risks.

Risk categories and risk appetite
The Board has identified risk categarias
into which to allocate its principal risks.
Against each of these risk categones the
Board has considered the level of risk it
is willing to accept in order to achieve the
Group's business objectives.

Bow-tie model

Cause

Cause

Event
Cause

Cause

Breventativelcontrols]

Has|iStance,

Aﬁfi:”’ Consequence

Responsivelcontrols]
Hedundancy,

We have no appetite for risk in relation to
health and safety matters, finangial crime
and compliance with legislation, so these
have been allocated our lowest leve! of
risk appetite,

While we also have minimal risk appetite

in relation to liquidity, cyber security and
build quality, the appetite for these risks is
slightly higher in acknowledgement of the
high levels of inherent risk in these areas.
We have a moderate risk appetite in relation
to our remaining principal risks.

The Group's risk categories, assessed
risk appetites and principal risks are set
out in this section along with the Board's
assessment of the effectiveness of the
controls and precedures in place to
mitigate against them.

Principal risks

A principal risk is a risk that is considered
material to the delivery of the Group’s
strategy or its perfarmance, position or
future prospects. The Board, through

the Audit Committee, has undertaken a
robust review of the principal risks facing
the Group. The principal risks which the
Board considers are relevant to the Group
are summarised by risk category and
considered more fully on pages 41 to 49,

Consequence

. ENC s . (T

Consequence

Consequence

Besponse/Recove:
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Strategic report

Heat map

The heat map summarises our exposure
to our principal risks by considering the
likelihood of a risk event occurring ang
its potential impact on the Group in the
medium term. It shows the gross risk
assessment before mitigating factors
and controls are taken into account and
the net risk assessment after taking
into account relevant mitigating factors
and controls,

The ovals on the heat map show the

Board's appelite for risk far each risk

category, with the aim that after taking

into account mitigating factors and

controls, the net risk is reduced to a

level that sits within or below the Board's
- appetite for risk.

Principal risk:

Health and safety

Governance

The principal risks and risk appetite
have been assessed using the following
scoring matrix. Using this matrix, the
gross and net risk assessment score
for a principal risk is the product of the
assessed likelihood and impact scores.

Likelihcod Score Impact  Score
Highly

probable 5 FExreme 5
Probable 4 Major 4
Possible 3 Moderate 3
Unlikely 2 Minor 2
Remote 1 Insignificant 1

Financial statements

Company information

Changes in year

The Group actively monitors emerging
risks and changes to the profile

of existing principal risks. The risk
assessment for the following principal
risks has increased during the period:

Economic cycle - increased due
to UK miacroeconomic uncertainty,
tempered by the Group's relatively
resilient business model, attractive
end markets and strang pipeline,

Liquidity - increased to reflect the impact
of high interest rates on borrowing costs,
and the reduced short-term customer
appetite for forward sales for existing
developments, requiring them instead to
be developed on balance sheet.

Project delivery — increased to reflect
cost pressures on the supply chain,
and the risk associated with new
Building Safety Act 2022 legislation.

Risk appetite:

Health and safety

Averse

Strategic

Econemic cycle

Increased competition

Cautious

Land availability

Cautious

Financial

Liquidity

Cyber security/GDPR

Operational

Project delivery

Cautious

Building safety

Averse

Widespread business interruption and continuity

Cautious

Peaple

People - capacity and capzability

Regulatory and compliance

Financial cnme and failure to comply with legislation

Key: ‘Risk appetite) Gross risk score = G Net risk score =N
‘."—-—....-u‘ -

Averse

Risk appetite
Risk scare

Watkin Jones plc | Anaual report and financial staterments 2022

41



Risk management and principal risks
continued

42

Health and safety
Threats
T ‘

Qua]ity assurance procedures and fire risk
assessments.

Major fire on site.

Crane collapse/failure
of lifting equipment.

Robust procedures for erection, use and
dismantling of major equipment with works
undertaken by suitably qualified personnel.

Falls from height. Work at height procedures and use of
prefabrication of site to avoid work at

height where possible.

Risk assessments and evaluations of
competence of contractars.

Coliapse of excavation
or lemporary work
structure.

Unauthorised access
to site.

Security protacols setfor different types of
sites using hoardings. security staff, CCTV
etc, based on the assessed risk.

Risk assessments and inductions at each
site, sanitisation facilities provided, social
distancing introduced where necessary.

Significant infection
outbreak.

Employee mental haalth
concerns, including
stress.

Trained mental health first-aiders available
to provide assistance; wellbeing and
Employee Assistance Programmes

in place.

Consequences s

Regular audits and reviews of
incidents to identify improvements.

Loss of life or serious injury.

Maintenance of appropriate levels
of insurance cover.

Damage to property leading
to financial loss.

Formai accidentfincident
reporting procedures.

Breach of legislation
leading to prosecution and
reputational damage.

Escalation factors Preventative barriers

Urrealistic build programmes
create pressures to cut cormners.

tlanagement’s tone from the top
and influence over development
programme through centrol

of land.

that failure to follow established health'and satety,proceduresicould result in'a serious incident arfatality,

Building safety

E@s—

Cladding safety, in
particular fire safety.

Selected subconiractors
de not have the
necessary expertise or
capability.

PQQ process for the selection of
subcontractors with a focus on technical
capabilities.

Budgetary pressures
lead to selection of poor
quality materials or
subcontractors.

In-house construction expertise used to
inform cost estimates when appraising
land opportunities.

Failure to comply with
statutory requirements,
including the Building
Safety Act 2022.

Regutar reviews of legisiation by in-house
planning and technical teams and use of
suitably qualified consultants.

Preventative bamers

Group design standards requiring the
selection of certified products, with the
selection informed by input from specialist
cansultants, assessed in line with
PAS9980.

Change: @ Link to business madel: & % l

T e i A R e LT o " B

Consequences - : ; -
Resnonsive SR E:"o':'eﬂ"_"_
Damage to reputation.

Customer care team aims to
address any defects promplly
and ensure a good customer
experience,

QA proceduras in place with
progress captured on construction
management software, including
post-completion reviews.

Significant defects leading to
rermedial costs and the risk of
personal harm.

[ Escalaticn factors, ] Prevemative barriers

Labour shortages in the
construction industry.

Leng-term refationships with
the Group's nationwide sugply
chains.

[

that poogbuitd quality,could D

infinancialand reputational loss)

Watkin Jones plc | Annual report and financial statements 2022



Strategic report Governance Financial statements Company infarmation

Key

||Ei| Identify potential Hﬁ] Site procurement Transaction % Construction Accommodation

developments and planning and funding and delivery management

@ Increase @ Decrease @ No change

Economic cycle Change: @ Link to business model: lffﬂ! [{?\U %

]

Threats

Consequences

Threats i Preventative barriers L Responsive controls Consequences

Input cost inflation. In-house construction expertise and Control over land usually Increasad costs reduce profits or
supply chain relationships, guarterly conditional and construction render developments unviable.

_Inflation Cemmittee reviews to mitigate cosis typically procured in

impact. advance 10 fix prices.

Shart-term rnarket Forward funding sales model reduces The Group's strang liguidity Short-term economic turbulence

turbulence including impact of interest rate movements in the pasition gives it the Aexibility leads to a closure of the forward

increased interest rates short to medium term. to look through short-term funding market.

or reduction in available disrupticn and fund selected

capital. developments on balance sheet.

fncreases in investment Forward funding sales model and use Forward funding model insulates Increase in the yigld expectations

yields. of sensitivity analysis when appraising the Group {rom short-term yield of institutional clients reduces
developments. . movements. the value of developments.

Changes in employment,  Target cities selected on the basis of

demographics or their strong economic and demographic

immigration controls. characteristics to help insulate them from

any nationwide downlturn.
Political risks in occupier  Diversification across different property Escalation factors Preventative barriers
markets inciudin classes/torward funding model means
9 d 9 'Black Swan' event causing a Stress testing in liguidity

contrals over rent settin completed properties are not retained. . "
or lease termination 9 P prop sharp ecenemic detericration and  {orecasts to help ensure adequate
’ closure of forward funding market.  contingencias are maintained.

Risk that macroeconomic factors impact the Group's ability to achieve the business plan through reduced margins

qr'failure to fijngl developments through forward sales

Watkin Jones ple | Annuat repert and financial statements 2022
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Risk management and principal risks

continued

Increased competition

Threats |
o
Competition in the
land market from

direct competitors or a
competing use.

Planning — an increased
number of planning
applications in one
area may laad to
refusals regardless of
their merits.

Increased competition
leads to gazumping of
land acquigitions.

Divestment - increased
SUpRly Might increase

the difficulty of forward
funding devetopments.

Increased competiion in
construction market,

Preventative barriars’

Rigorous site appraisal process

underpinned by the Group’s integrated
structure which provides enhanced letting
and construction information.

Planning due diligence measures prior

to contracting te acquire sites and early
interaction with LPAs during applications.

The Group's strong track record can
demonstrate to vendors its ability to
perform and transact,

Degicated Divestrment team in place
with a network of agents to heip
promote disposals.

Strong existing supply ¢hain for in-house
construction and expanding relationships

with third-parly main contractors.

Change: e Link to business model: | Ei Hgﬂ %

Consequences

Res ponsivecantrols

Capital structure provides the
flexitility to progress selected
developments on a turnkey basis
to increase sales value.

In-house construction capability
provides an advantage compared
to competitors reliant on
thirg-party main contractors.

Specialist in-house planning
team and promotion of high
quality design and sustainability
standards.

Comenences T

Forecast margins are not
achieved due to suppressed
sales prices,

Forecast margins are not
achieved due to increased
constiuction costs fram supply
chain shortages.

Increase i the yield expectations
of institutional clients reduces the
value of developments.

[ Escaiation factors

| EreerEve arrers) 1

Adtractive market leads to
significant new capital investad in
new entrants.

Barriers to entry through client
expectations for a strong
track record.

isk that increased competition'could increase land pricesior,reduce demand forthe Group’s schemes l
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Governance

Strategic report

Financial statements Campany information

Key

l[w Identity potentiat H% Site procurement E Transaction Gonstruction Accommaodation
developments and planning and funding and delivery management

@ Increase @ Decrease C—) No change

Land availability

increases the risk of
accapting sites with
maQre develapment
congtraints.

National or local political
factars delay the planning
process or resultin
planning refusals.

Alterrative uses for land
become more viable
than the Group's core
markets.

The land market
closes in response
to a significant
econamic event.

Inereased competition
reduces our success
rate in bidding for land.

B
Ereventati l\LtLtgarﬂers

Due diligence procadures in place for
assessing the financial and technical
viabity of developments.

In-house planning expertise helps to
identify locations with higher planning
risk, with early interaction with LPAg
during applications.

Regular reviews of our core markets and
the property market in general to identify
emerging trends,

The Group has the experience to structure
deals in different ways to adapt to the
expectations of vendars

Cradible market presence due to track
record of bringing land through planning
and competitive pricing due to in-house
construgtion capability.

Link to business model: ||Eﬂ| @

Change: @

Consequences

{ReSPonsive dantrols Y T
Established macro and micro
economic analysis used to
identify target cities and locations,
leveraging on-the-ground
knowledge from Fresh.

t]:Conseguencas ;1]

Land acquired in secondary
locations or with significant
technical and environmental
challenges.

Robust investmant Overpaying for land.
appraisal methedelogy and

governance structure.

The Group does not acquire
enough land 0 meet its
growth plan.

Vendor and agent relationships
and credibility in the markat.

Mazintenance of a strong pipeline
of developments provides visibility
of earnings and the opportunity to

[ Escalation factors 3

Significant unexpected change in
planning policy.

deliver its’growth'strateg

People - capacity and capability

-y T e -
-Threats

Uncompetitive
remuneration packages.

Failure to improve
diversity and inclusion
in under-represented
groups.

Absance of succession
plans.

A misaligned employee
culture, including the
impact of hybrid working.

In¢reasing awareness of
employee wellbeing.

L T B IR T LR T

Salary benchmarking undertaken to
ensure our remuneration packages are
competitive.

Promoticn of the 'Peeple’ pillar in the
Group's Future Foundations initiative;
intraduction of equity, diversity and
inclusion charter.

Formal executive succession plan and
senior managemaent talant plan reviewed
annurally.

Employee engagement is a core personal
abjective for afl senior employees across
the crgamsation.

Promation of mental health wellbeing
through training programmes and internal
communications.

s

Preventative barriers!

—=b
&

5O
20|
=

TR At

Consequences

I Responsive.conlrals

Use of counter-offers or use
of succession plans to cover
responsibilities.

Consequences

Loss of key persannel.

Identify thase at risk and put Increased strain on personnel.
in place additional short-term

incentives.

Inability to maintain key functions
within the business.

Use of external contractors or
" consultants to cover prolonged
periods of absence.

]

| Eresentatve oam ey

Access to internal or external
support via our Employee
Assistance Programme.

calalion 12CtOrS A

Pressure on people from stress of
achieving business objectives.

Watkin Jones ple | Annual report and financial statements 2022
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Risk management and principal risks

continued

Liquidity

Threats

Threats

Major digruption te, or
closure of, the forward
funding market.

Credit and caunterparty
risk.

Capital structyre -
over-gearing leads to
financial disiress.

Maintaining adequate
debt facilities and
covenant compliance
o suppart long-term
growth plans,

Short-term liquigity
issues due to high
value of the Group’s

Preventative barriers

Racent market transactions consigered
when acquiring land and target locations
based on macro and micro economic
analysis to help ensure its sites

remain appealing.

Counterparty risk appraised before
entering into sale agreements with clients
which are typically blue-chip institutions.

The Group's capital-light forward sales
medel helps to significantly reduce the
Group's cash requirements, with financing
provided by its clients rather than using iis
own balance sheet.

The Group's £100 million RCF has a
five-year term runaing to May 2025 and
there is currently significant headroom
against its covenants.

Cash flow forecasting with site2 acquisitions Escalation factors Frgventative barriers

typicaily structured on a subject to
planning basis providing good visibility

Change: @

Consequences

Responsive controls

Existing forward sald pipeline
combinad with debt facilities
provides insulation from
short-term market disruption.
Development of unfunded
sites considered cna
case-by-case basis.

Maintenance of overdraft and
undrawn debt facilities.

£100 million RCF of which only
£24.8 million was drawn at the
reporting date, with funding
options cansidered in each
development appraisal.

'‘Black Swan’ event causing a

Link to business medel: “Ei' a% =

&=

Consequences

Unable to sell developments 0n a

forward funded basis.

Inability to meet short-term
commitments,

Insufficient liquidity to acquire
enough land to support the
Group's growih plans.

Stress testing in liquidity

forecasts to help ensure adequate
contingencies are maintained.

sharp economic deterioration and

fransactions.
closurg of forward funding market.

of future cammitments.

Risk that tack of lldurdity could Inhibit the Group's growth strategy or in more extreme circumstances lead to severe’

tinancial distress and insolvency
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Governance Financial staterments Company information

Strategic report

Key

ll&' Identify potential H?\{J Site procurement Transaction % Construction Accommodation
developments and planning and funding and delivery management
Increase Decrease @ No change

Cyber security/GDPR Change: E—) Link to business model: ﬂw\l Q‘?\g

Threats Censequences

Y 2 iem o
fThreatsy = =S Hgsponsive.control ks
Failure of critical The Group's key software is hosted with Separate hosting of critical Loss of access to critical
business software. robust third-party providers whe have systems toreduce the risk of a business systems.
multipde backyn and failover arrangements widespread loss of systems, with
in place. backup and disaster recovary
arrangements.
Failure of critical Firgwalls are in placa with flow control and Delegated limits and controls in Financial less due to a
business hardware. port protection measures inplace as a place for payments. phishing attack.
backup in the event of firewazlls failing.
Phishing. Email security filters are in place, Breach prevention contrels Maijor personal data breach
supplemented by internal training and including network firewalls, leading te reputational damage
simulated attacks. malware protections and and possible financial penalties.

training alongside formal breach
management procedures.

Data breach and GDPR Data protection policy and annual GDPR

compliance. tratning in place. with external advice
receivad on emerging threats. Bespoke
policies in place for Fresh to address
increased risk from helding resident data.

Malware/ransomware. Firewall and web filter measures
alongside anti-virus software and externat
penetraticn testing.

[ EIEEREERERS I Ereventative barriers
Ingicier threats. Internal monitoring measures alongside Development of new malware Moritoring of emerging threats.
limits to email sizes and restrictions which can evade existing
{0 access. security measures.

RiskIotlossioflaccess iothe Group s systems IRPOLGN'a CyDenatlack _ o T ' 1

Financial crime and failure to comply
with legislation Change: @ Link to business model: I tﬁp

e P U A SRR e

[ e T T : R e
Threats i .. oo Consequences . :
Repooemm [|Gwmmms
Poor or absent tone from  Compliance given a high priority as Specific Group policies reinforced  Failure to comply with ABG or
the top. evidenced by the matters consicered by by annual training. anti-slavery legislation leading to
the Board and Executive Committee. reputational damage or possible
financial penalties.
Lack of or inadequate Comprehensive set of policies which are Well-established DSAR and DPIA  Significant data breach of
policies and procedures.  well embeddead in the business, including process and input from retained personal data leading to
bespoke poficies far Fresh, to help ensure specialist GDPR cansultants, reputational damage or possible
compliance with relevant legislation. financial penalties.
Lack of awareness Initial compliance training for all new Canitrals framework governing The Group Is a victim of
of requlations and employees which is reinforced by annual bank payments, financial crime.
expectations. refresher modules.
Inadequate contrgl Formal delegated authorities matrix in
enviranment. place which is enforced by processes
and controls.
I Escalation factars ] Pveventative parriers 1
Poor management Key individuals in the Finance and Shortages in subcontractors PQQ processes for appointments.
praclices which accept Commercial teams have relevant increases pressure to appaint
non-compliance. professienal qualifications. A third-party subcontractors with poor
whistleblowing hotline is also in piace. compliance contrals in place.

.
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~Risk mal

na

continued

Project delivery

Threats

Threats

Unreatistic build
programmes ang
increasing build costs.

Failure to obtain
necessary statutory
approvals,

Poor quality
werkmanship.

ESG strategy not
implemented.

Poorly drafted or unclear

specification documents.

Business failures or
significant disruption
in the supply chain.

Preventative barriers

The Graup's business model means that
it is invalved in planning for most of its
developments, giving it a greater ability to
ensure a suitable programmae.

Experienced in-house delivary

{eams use the Group construction
management methodology which seeks
early engagerment and discharge of
statutory conditions.

Management processes on site for
ensuring build guality with QA procedures
in pface for monitoring and capturing

QA data.

Work closely with supply chain to monitor
compliance with ISO 14001, with all
suppliers to be accredited by 2025

Construction management software
utilised to ensure all parties are working to
the latest drawings and documents.

Robust financial checks on subcontractors
and monitoring of the workload.
performance and capacity of key
conlractors. In the event of market delays
in the sourcing of materials, liaising with
subcontractors to order materials in
advance of requirernents.

Change: @

Consequences

Responsive contrals

Monitoring of performance
against programme in monthly
seniar management raview
meetings to ensure early
intervention.

QA data collated and monitored
in rmonthly senicr management
review meetings.

Maonitoring of progress against
compliance with discharge of
statutory requirements in monthly
senior managemeant review
meetings.

Monitoring of progress against
ESG targets, with regular
reparting to the Board.

émeéntand principal risks

Link to business model: % E

Cansequences

Project is delivered late, leading
to financial penalties and
reputationzl damage.

Poor quality workmanship.

" Completed properties do
not comply with statulory
requirements.

ESG commitments not met,
leading to reputational damage.

Escalation factors Preventative barriers

Pressures to meeting financial
and delivery targets may fsad
to compromises on programme
and quality.

Governance procedures for
project approval require Executive
Committee approval for all
developments with input from

all key disciplines.

Risk that a scheme is deliverad late or to a poor quality, which could result in significant financial costs, reputational

48

damage and potential legacy issues
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Governance

Strategic report

Key
||&| Identify potential
developments and planning

@ Increase @ Decrease

Widespread business interruption
and business continuity

Bﬁj Site procurement

Threats

Threats

Freventative barriers

Natural disaster. Geographically diverse locaticns for the
Group’s revenue-generating aclivilies
reduces corcenl alivn ol risk alongside due
diligence when appraising sites to identify
heightened risks far specific locations.

Man-made disaster. Robust design and specification of
materials alongside well-established HS&E

managemeant framework.

Agile working practices can recuce level of
face-ta-face interaction to stop spread of
disease. Experienced and well-embedded
H&S practices to monitor latest
government guidance.

Widespread employee
absences due o iliness,
team defection or
pandemic.

Widespread loss Core systems are cloud based, with
of access to IT
infrastructure or key

SaaS systems.

The Group uses a range of IT security
measures including firewalls, web filters
and anti-virus software.

Tendering due diligence considers
suppliers’ technical expertise and
financial position.

Failure of a key supplier.

Watkin Jenes plc | Annual report and financlal statements 2022

— .
= Transactl‘on
and funding

@ No change

backup and failover arrangerments in place.

Financial statements

Construction
and delivery

Company infarmation

Accommadation
management

Change: @ Link to business model: ||E_Ji| Hgﬂ E’ % E

Consequences

Responsive controls

For support services, widespread
homeworking can be deployed in
the event of the loss of an othce.

Formal business continuity plan
to inform initial crisis respoense.
Maintenance of a comprehensive
suite of insurance policies.

Remuneration benchmarking

to ensure employees are well
rewarded and reduce the risk of
defections and use of consultants
to cover.

Escalation factors

Additional pressure placed
on employees during
recovery period.

‘Risk that a major nationwide incident causes a significant reduction or cessation in the Group's business activitles

Consequences

Loss of access to physical
suppert infrastructure such
as othces.

Significant damage to
construction sites.

Absence or loss of key employees
for prolonged pertods.

Preventative barriers

Access to external and internal
support services.
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Risk management and principal risks

continued

Going concern

The Directors have undertaken a thorough
review of the Group's ability to continue
to trade as a gaing concern for the period
ta 31 January 2024 (the “forecast period’).
This review has been undertaken taking
inta consideration the fallowing matters.
Liquidity

At 30 September 2022, the Group had a
robust liquidity position, with cash and
available headroom in its banking facilities
totalling £196.0 million, as set out below.

£m

Qash balances
RC d
Overdraft faci

2

Total cash and available facilities  196.0

110.8

ity 00

Strong liquidity has been maintained
threugh the first quarter of the year ending
30 September 2023, providing the Group
with a good level of cash and available
banking facilities for the year ahead.

The Group’s revolving credit facility (RCF)
i5 committed and has a five-year term 1o
May 2025. All financial covenants under the
RCF facilities were met at 30 September
2022 and are forecast to be met throughout
the period to 31 January 2024. This facility
can be accessed to fund land acquisitions.

The Group also has a loan with Svenska
Handelsbanken AB which is secured
against its three operational BTR
properties. We intend to sell these
praperties during the period of this review,
and in our forecast scenarios it has been
assumed that this facility will be retained
until it is repaid upon the completion of
these sales.

50

Business model

Our torward sale business model is capital
light. By forward selling the majority of our
build to rent and purpoese built student
accommodalticn developments, we recelve
payment for the tand either at the same
time as or shortly after we compiete the
purchase, and before we commit to any
significant development expenditure.

Once forward sold, we receive payment for
the development works as they progress.
By being in control of our development
pipeiine we are able to ensure that we

only commit construction expenditure to
developments that are either forward sold
or to undertake a modest level of enabling
works. In certain circumstances we may
decide to continue construction activities
beyond the initial enabling phase, without
a forward sale agreement in place, but we
take this decision based on our available
liquidity and can suspend the works shou'd
it prove necessary. This greatly limits our
exposure to development expenditure
which is not covered by cash income.

Sites are normally secured on a subject to
satisfactory planning basis, which gives

us time to manage the cash requirements
and to market them for forward sale. We
also take a cautious approach to managing
our land acquisition programme 1o ensure
that we have sufficient liquidity available

to complete the acquisition of the sites
without any new forward sales being
secured.

The Fresh business receives a regular
contractual monthly fee income from
its multiple clients and the short to
medium-term risk to its revenue stream
is low.

For our Affordable-led Homes business,
which is currently relatively small and only
has a few sites in build, we manage our
development expenditure so that, other
than for infrastructure works, we only
commit expenditure where it is supported
by a forward sales position. in addition, a
significant portion of our largest site has
been forward sold such that we will receive
payment for development works as they
progress.

We also receive rental income from tenants
on our leased PBSA assets and operational
BTR assets. The cccupancy levels for the
PBSA assets have recovered well following
the negative impact of the pandemic and
are close to being fully occupied for the
zcademic year 2022/23.

Our business mede! and approach to cash
managament therefore provides a high
degree of resilience,

Counterparty risk

The Group's clients are predominantly
blue-chip institutional funds and the risk
of default is low. The funds for a forward
sold development are normally specifically
allocated by the client or backed by
committed debt funding.

For forward sold developments, cur cash
income remains ahead of our development
expenditure through the lite of the
development, such that if we were exposed
to a client payment default, we could
suspend the works, thereby limiting any
cash exposure.

Fresh has many clients and these are

mostly institutional funds with low
default rigk.
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Base case cash forecast

We have prepared a base case cash
forecast for the forecast period, based

on our current business plan and trading
assumptions for the year. This is well
supported by our forward sold pipeline

of six PBSA developments and six BTR
developments for delivery during the period
FY23 to FY27, as well as the reserved/
exchanged and forward sales for our
Affordable-led Hormes business and the
contracted income for Fresh. Our currently
secured cash flow, derived from our
forward sold developments and other
contracted income, net of overheads and
tax, results in a modest cash utilisation
over the forecast period, with the result that
our liquidity pasition is maintained.

In addition to the secured cash flow,

the base case forecast assumes a number
of new forward sales and further house
sales, which if achieved will result in

a further strengthening of our iquidity
position, after allowing for dividend
payments, We have also assumed that the
Group’s three operational BTR properties
will be sold during the period following the
completion ot works currently in progress
to improve their saleability.

Risk analysis

In addition o the base case forecas?,

and though considered unlikely given

the stabilisation in market interest rate
expectations since the Autumn Budget
statement and the long-term attractiveness
of our cora markets, we have considered
the possibility of disruption to the forward
sale market in the event of a resurgencein
the market turbulence seen in the UK in the
early autumn. This is cur most significant
risk as it would greatly limit cur ability to
achieve any further forward sales and
would potentially mean that we would have
to complete on secured site acquisitions
without a subsequent forward sale in place.

Governance

Financial statements

We have run varicus madel scenarias to
assess the possible impact of the above
risks, including a severe but plausible
downside scenario assuming no further
forward sales are achieved other than for
one of the Group’s PBSA assets which
benefits from an agreement for lease for
all its rooms and where the construction
is already well-progressed.

I the severe but plausible downside
scenario, we have inciuded for the
payment of our FY22 full-year proposed
dividend in line with our dividend policy.
The cash forecast prepared under this
scenario illustrates that adequate liquidity
is raintained through the forecast period
and the financial covenants under the RCF
would still be met.

The minimum total cash and available
facilities balance under this scenario was
£52.2 million (excluding the £10.0 million
overdraft). We censider the likelihood of
events occurring which would exhaust

the total cash and available facililies
balances remaining to be remote, However,
should such events occur, management
wouid be able to implement reductions in
discretionary expenditure and investments
in unsold developments to ensure that the
Group’s liquidity was maintained.

Conclusion

Based on the thorough review and

robust downside forecasting undertaken,
and having not identified any material
uncertainties that may cast any significant
doubt, the Board is satisfied that the
Group will be able to continue to trade for
the period to 31 January 2024 and has
therefore adopted the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

This strategic report, comprising pages
1to 77, has been approved by the Board
and signed on its behalf:

Richard Simpson
Chief Executive Officer

25 January 2023
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Sustainability

Buildinglonlsolid|
foundations!

Ihrmpsun

ChiefiExecutive Officer

| etter from the CEO

Since the launch of our sustainability
strategy in November 2021, we have
continued to embed ESG intc our everyday
cperations. Our clear commitment to
sustainability is understood throughout
the business and we are making good
progress against our ESG targets.

Future Foundations

A key strand of our Group strategy is being
a responsible business. The respansible
business element of our strategy, Future
Foundations, is designed to ensure that
when we make decisions, we balance the
impact on the planet, the places we creale
and the people who work with us.

Qur people

The health, safety and wellbeing of our
employees is always our tap prionty.

Wae had twa RIDDOR reportable incidents
during the year, meaning our reportable
incident rate was 6% of the National
Construction Industry rate, slightly above
our 2025 target ot 5%. We set ourselves
very high standards and while we were
pleased to be so close to our target, we
will look to improve further next year.

As always, we learn tessons from every
incident to avoid it happening again.
Positively, the total number of incidents
decreased by 28% and our manual
handling injury rate reduced by 65%,

so we continue to make good progress.
We expanded our wellbeing events, with
training and workshops on mental health
awareness for managers.
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Having set a baseline of 70% with the
launch of our employee engagement
survey last year, we were pleased to see
improvement in this year’s engagement
index score to 73%. The index score
benchmarks how engaged our employees
are compared to other companies. We also
measure cur overall engagement score,
which increased from 3% in FY21 to 75%
this year.

Last year's survey identified three key
themes in participants’ responses:
investing in our people, supporting and
managing workload, and creating a
great place to work. We worked hard

on initiatives to address these themes,
sg it was encouraging to get positive
feedback frem colleagues, in particular
around recognition, reward and learning
oppaortunities. We &im to increase our
engagement index score to 80% by 2025,
sa this was a meaningful step thwards
our target.

Unfortunately, having reviewed our

ways of working and taking into account
the uncertainty arcund the economic
environment, in November 2022 we entered
into consultation about restructuring some
areas of the business and reducing the
number of roles in some teams. While

it was a difficult decision, and one not
taken lightly, we have to make sure we are
operating as effectively and efficiently as
possible to support our long-term success.

Qur places

Once again, Fresh performed strongly at
the Naticnal Student Housing Awards,
receiving three awards.

The awards are based on resident
feedback through the Global Student
Living Survey. This built on very strong net
promoter scores of +34 from residents
{compared to an average of +8 for all
private halls of residence) and +47 from
clients. This is testament to Fresh’s hard
waork ta provide great customer service for
residents and clients alike.

Our planet

Cur scope 1 emissions increased slightly
for FY22. This reflected the pasitive
impact of our initiatives around plant and
machinery, offset by a more normal year
of travel post-pandemic. Our ransition

to electric and hybrid vehicles should
start to reduce transport emissions as
leases on company vehicles arg renewed.
Meanwhile, our scope 2 emissions reduced
significantly, reflecting our relocation to
newer, more energy efficient affices where
appropriate.

Looking forward

We have made good progress on many

of our ESG targets during the year. Our
progress around supply chain was slower
than anticipated as we dealt with shortages
in building materiats and skilled labour, and
record inflation in buitd costs. We are well
aware that our supply chain is crucial to
achieving our net zero ambitions and we
will logk to make more rapid pragress in
this area in the coming year.

Richard Simpson
Chief Executive Officer
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Our sustainability governance framework

Board of Directors Remuneration Committee
Endorses overarching ESG strategy and receives Sets ESG bonus objectives and validates
ipdates from Executive Steering Group. achievement of those objectives.

Executive Steering Group

Lead: Chief Executive Officer
Sets overarching strategy to achieve ESG agenda and considers costs, risks and opportunities associated with strategy.

ESG Working Group

Lead: Company Secretary
Develop the Group’s approach to ESG, agrees the ESG readmap and recommends initiatives
and actions ta the Executive Steering Group.

288 8 &y

Qur Future People Our Future Places Our Future Planet
Lead: Chief People Officer Lead: Chief Investment Officer Lead: Managing Director
Develops initiatives to ensure that Develops the design of our of Group Delivery
we recruit and retain the best talent, buildings to create great places to Considers the design and use of
create a great place to work and live that enhance the communities materials for our developments
keep our employees safe. around them. taking into account environmental

and social considerations.

Performance

Lead: Chief Financial Officer
Respansible for reporting and monitoring the performance of £8G key performance indicators.

Policies

We have a number of Group policies which can be found on the corporate website watkinjonesplc.com/about-us/our-policies.

'UN Sustainable Development Goals framewol

Potential for high Potential for Responsibility to mitigate
positive impact positive impact potential negative impact

R Fwran | 1N g 88 .,
9 SeerOuniuturepeople gl : }) See Ourfuture peoplel : 7
fandR Qurfuture places) . [placesyandiOututure planety

T s B LI Ry - pa—

g - v o
SéetUUNTUIUNE PaopIe’ Ot itiLii v Igl
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Sustainability continued

Sustainability strategy

Future Foundations

Commitment

Our Future People:

+ Create a great place to work, which celebrates diversity and
inclusion, where everyone's health and wellbeing is a priocrity
and we make a positive difference to the Group and society.

Our Future Places:

+ Enhance the experience of our customers and ¢lient
satisfaction, by delivering buildings and services that meet
their needs and are of the highest quality.

Our Future Planet:

« Minimise our environmental footgrint by reducing carbon
emissions by focusing on cur supply ¢chain, making our
workplaces and developments more energy and water
efficient, reducing waste and being innovative.

o4

2022 performance and highlights

75% employee engagement score (2021: 69%}
Watkin Jones development businesses 26% female

* Fresh 63% female

»

Group investment in learning: 5.8 days per empioyee

94% helow the National Construction Industry average with
a health and safcty insident rate of 176/100,000 employess,
(2021: 102/100,000 employees and 96% below)

Partnered with Talent Tap, a social mobility charily, o launch
our employee volunteering programme

Achigved 1SO 45001 OH&S Standard

Fresh customer net promoter score (NPS) of +34 in the
National Student Survey (2021: +32)

Fresh client NPS of +47 (2021: +12}

86% of PBSA schemes submitted for planning were rated as
BREEAM Excellent or Qutstanding, with the remainder rated
as Very Good

Maximum scores achieved for two sites under the
Considerate Constructors Scheme

Agreed internal design guides for our developments to
formalise our standards and ensure we meet our clients’
needs

6% increase from FY21 in scope 1 greenhouse gas
emissions, reflecting an increase in travel following the
pandemic

51% reduction in the use of red diesel following the
outsourcing of plant and machinery to access more
environmentally friendly tools

Jignticast reducton in scope 2 ennussions frem M21 of 29246
on a lneatinn hazgis and AR% nn a markat hasis

Air scurce heat pumps incorporated into all current and future
design briafs whara parmittad hy Incal planning requiatiang
97% waste diverted from landfill (2021: 95%)
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Key activities

« Continue wark on equity, diversity and inclusion
+ Expand our wellbeing curriculum

+ Increase investment in learning

+ Increase reprasentation of minority groups

+ Develop our community velunteering programme

* Focus on the use and layout of shared amenity space to
enhance residents’ experience

= Carbon reduction (see below)
+ Maintain and improve strong net promaoter scores

* Scope 1and 2 emissions:
* Caompany car policy
¢ Energy procurement review
s Scope 3 emissions:
¢+ Include solar panel installations wherg suitable
» Strengthen partnerships with key suppliers

= Maintain environmental campaigns fo raise awareness
among Fresh residents

» Waste and waler:
= Ingrease diversion of waste frem tandfill
* Reduce water consumption on sites

Watkin Jones ple | annyal report and finangial statgments 2022
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Targets (2025 uniess specified)

Group employee engagement rating: 80%
Voluntary staff turnover: below 20%
Group investment in learning: 4.5 days

Increase in under-represented groups: to better reflect
national profile

Inclusivity approach: supported by recognised
accreditations

Health and safety incident rate: less than 5% of the
national average

Employee volunteering: 5,000 hours annually

Fresh NPS (customer): +10

Fresh NPS (client); +10

Design quality of student developments (EREEAM rating}):
100% Excellent

Design quality of BTR deveiopments (HQM}: 4* by 2030
Wired sceore: Silver

Considerate Constructors Scheme: very good for all sites

Carbon reduction: net zero scope 1 and 2 ¢arbon
emissions and meaningful impact on scope 3 emissions
by 2030

1ISQ 14001 accreditation in supply chain: 100%

Car fleet: full electric vehicle fleet by 2026

Air source heat pumps: in all development designs by 2023
EPC rating: all developments rated A by 2030

Waste diversion from landfill: >95%

Waste produced (/m? of gross internal area). 40% reduction
on 2021

Water consumption {corporate and development) {litres/m?
GlA): 10% reduction on 2021
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--Sustainability-continued

employae

The People strand of cur ESG strategy is based on one simple commitment: 1o create and maintain a company that
is great to work for. The themes of our work in this area are driven by the output of our employee engagement survey.

Invest in our people

Increased the number of [earning days per employee to 5.8 days
= Set up a senior leaders forum to build collaboration across the Group

Develaped a greater curriculum of internal learning and development courses
with mere than 1,200 training hours provided

* Supported more than 50 apprentices

Increase percentage of emplayees * Drew up and communicated a diversity charter
from under-represented groups Updated HR policies and recruitment approach with support from Stonewall
to ensure they contained inclusive language
» Held an equity, diversity and inclusion summit with presentations from five
partner organisations

Maintain zero non-compliance » We had zerc cases of non-compliance during the year
performance of aur policies

Drive a zero harm at work agenda + Reduced our manual handling injury rate by 65%
s Reduced our total number of incidents by 28%

Support and manage workload « Focused on supporting managers, running workshops on mental health and
stress management

Expanded our wellbeing curriculum from mental health and personal resilience
to include a range of topics such as assertiveness, nutrition, coaching and
managing change

Launched Aspiring Manager and Professional Manager programmes, giving
employees the apportunity to gain accreditation as a quahfied manager

Reduce stalf turnover

Introduced our reward, benefits and recegnition platform for all employees

Evaluated and benchmarked jobs across the business to make sure people were
being paid fairly and competitively for their work
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5.8

learning days per employee
achieved

Zero

non-compliance events

Policies

We have a wide range of pecple policies
covering matemity, paternity and
adoption leave, equality and diversity,
employee privacy, dignity at work, equal
apporiunities, pensions and grievance
procedures.

We have several routes for our people

to report compliance issues relating to
our people pelicies. They can discuss
any issues with their line manager or, if
they feel unable to do so, with their HR
manager. If the issuve remains unresolved,
we have a formal grievance procedure and
policy. In addition, we have an external
whistleblowing service, which allows our
people to raise concerns anonymously
and confidentially about a wide range

of matters.

Governance

30%

voluntary employee turnover

69

promotions

Engaging with our pecple

Employee wellbeing and engagement

are integral to our success, so it was
important for us to have a reliable way of
measuring employee engagement. Last
year we launched Your Voice, cur employee
engagement survey.

We look at two scores produced by the
survey., The first is our engagement index
seore, which benchmarks our results
against other companies based on three
key questions relating to pride, loyalty and
recommending our Company as a good
place to work. We set a baseline of 70%
for this score last year, which increased to
73% this year.

The second score measures satisfaction
around areas such as wellbeing, reward,
leadership and realising potential. Following
last year's results, the ESG Steering
Committee agreed a number of initiatives
to address feedback received. We were
pleased to see significant improvement

in this year's results, from 6% to 75%.
The strongest improvements were seen in
recognition of contributions, fair rewards
and learning cpportunilies.

We aim t¢ increase employee engagement
to 80% by 2025 se this was a meaningful
step forward.
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28%
reduction in total H&S
incidents

45%

female employees

Training and development

Providing leaming and development
oppertunities is a valuable tool in employee
retention and satisfaction. Learning
activities range from health, safety and
compliance, through vocational and
professional qualifications, to personal
development, skills building and welbeing.

Qur performance management process
includes identifying training nesds and
aligning them to roles. This process
includes monthly one-to-ones, mid-year
and annual reviews, and individual
objective-setting. We provide mandatory
training, courses and workshops.

During the year, we launched our

Aspiring Manager and Professional
Manager programmes. We mapped these
workshops to an accredited qualification
so that completing the programme would
caontribute to gaining a formal qualification,
either at Level 3 or Level 5, to become a
gualified manager. The qualifications are
accredited by the Chartered Management
Institute and lead to Chartered Manager
status. A total of 36 employees took up the
programme.
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se2) Our
Future

People continued

Future people

Commitment

To create a great place to work, which
celebrates diversity and inclusion, where
everyone's health and wellbeing is a
priority, and we make a positive difference
to the Group and society.

Training and development
Mandatory training and development
We have a standard list of training that
must be covered and each site must report
their training schedule each month.

Health and safety

We place health, safety and wellbeing at
the centre of our arganisation. We want
people to feel safe and happy at work.

We have well-established health and
safety management systems in place, with
regular auditing and a monthly review of
performance by the Executive Committae.
We also have monthly health and safety
awards which champion best practice.

Annual incident rate comparison (last five years)*

tncident
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Incident rate: This is an HSE stancard seporting metric, being the number af recorded irgidents
rautiplied by 100,000 divided by the average rumber of lull-time employees.
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We have a Group-wide health and safety
policy which provides a comprehensive
description of responsibilities from Board
level to the people working on sites. It also
details the arrangernents which form our
robust health and safety management
system, such as necessary training, risk
assessments, supervision and the use of
protective equipment. The Board reviewed
the policy during the year, noting some
organisational changes in health and safety
line management.

The divisional managing directors lead
health and safety for their divisicns. They
are supported by advisers in the Group
haealth and safety department.

The health and safety advisers:

* inspect and audit all sites every two
wegeks and all offices each month;

» score sites after each audit;

» report results to the divisional managing
directors on a weekly, monthly and
quarterly basis; and

» hold weekly conference calls with the
site teams to discuss performance, any
issues identified and any incidents that
have occurred.

-

. The graph above left shows the reportable
incident rate/100,000 employees. We had two
RIDDOR reportzhle accidents during tha year,
consistent with F¥21, but the rate was higher
due to the lower number of employees and
subcontractors employed. Both accidents were
classed as the lowest lave! of repartable injury
whera the individval was unzble to carry out their
normal duties for more than seven days.

2. The graph to the left shows the manual handling

injury rate/100,0G0 for 202172022 compared to the

previous year 2020/2021. This represents a 65%

reduction in this type of injury.
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Connect 22
employee
conference

Monthly meetings are held with the
divisional managing directors to review
health and safety issues, initiatives

and other key areas such as training.
The quarterly analysis focoks to identify
any recurring incidents and trends in
performance. Contract managers and
directors are also required to audit sites
each month, with the results reviewed by
the Group team.

Our subcontractors play a key role in
on-site safety. Everyone working on site
must have a general induction befare they
reach the site, followed by a site-specific
briefing before starting work. No cne

is allowed on site without proving their
competency, for example by checking they
hald a valid Construction Skills Certification
Scheme card. This proves their identity,

the qualifications they hald and the training
they have received. All sites must have a
team talk with contractors on health, safety
and environment topics each week,

We carry out annual internal health and
safety audits where we analyse our
performance acress the Group.

Recruitment and retention

In an industry with a high employee
turnover and critical health and safety risks,
the inductian process is vital in setting out
our expectations and embedding people in
aur culture.

Cur voluntary turnover targst is 20% by
2025 and 15% by 2030. We remained
above our target this year. The employment
market was particularly competitive within
the construction industry in the past year,
althgugh we expect this 1o normalise in tha
COMINg year.

Governance
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Creating tha Future ot LIving

L4

é

Diversity and inclusion

We want tc be an organisation where
everyone belongs and feels truly included
and the makeup of our organisation reflects
society. We are a Disability Confident
emplayer and a member of Stonewall,
the leading employers’ programme for
ensuring all LGBT staff are accepted

in the workplace. As a member of the

We Are Inclusive scheme, we aim to
in¢rease the percentage of employees
from under-represented groups so that
the makeup of our employees reflects the
naticnal average by 2030.

Building upon the foundations for
addressing equity, inclusion and dignity

at work, during the year, we held our first
equity, diversity and inclusion summit with
representatives from around the business
and our partner organisations. We also
rolled out our diversity charter. Our next
step is to build a network of diversity
champions tc get feedback on how we
can improve.

We have further developed our suite of
e-learning for new and current employees.
The cantent includes information on
diversity, equality, inclusion, harassment
and bullying. During the year, we also
automated cur onboarding process

to create a better experience for new
joiners and updated our HR policies

and recruitment approach with support
from Stongwall to ensure they contained
inclusive language.
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Gender diversity
The table below shows our gender diversity
as at the year end.

2022 2021
Men Women Men Women
Board 2 3 5.1
Senio
managemen %0 9 %8 0
Other
4 1
employees 35 321 332 312
Taotal 406 333 386 323

At the end of the year, the Board was 40%
male and 60% female. Since the end of
FY22, Francis Salway and Alex Pease have
joined the Board. This means that cur
Board gender diversity is now 57% male
and 439% female.

Dverall we have a good level of gender
diversity across the Group, with 55% male
and 45% femate employees. This is in

part due to Fresh (63% fermalg) which has
helped bring more wemen into the Group,
including in senior roles. We know that

we have more to do in our Group Delivery
division and we are looking at ways of
attracting women intc the canstruction
industry, which has traditionally been
male-dominated. We are a member of
Women Into Construction and are working
to increase our gender diversity in this area.
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;a Ou r
Future

People continued

Wellbeing and mental health
Within wellbeing and mental health,
we have four pilfars:

= mental health;
s physical health;
* financial wellbeing; and

+ digital wellbeing ~ particularly with
people working at home and remotely.

We actively encourage conversations
around mental health and work to reduce
the stigma. We continued to provide
refrasher training for our Mental Health First
Aiders (MHFAs} sc that they could support
calleagues as necessary. In support of
International Men's Day, we hasted a lunch
and learn webinar to raise awareness
around men's wellbeing. Speakers and
calleagues came together to talk about
prostate cancer, health risks to men and
nutrition. For Mental Health Awareness
Week, we ran big breakfasts around offices
and sites to give colleagues the opportunity
to come together ta discuss mental

health and loneliness. We alsc provide an
Employee Assistance Programme which
gives employees free access to expert
support, through face-to-face, telephone or
online counselling for help and advice with
personal and work-related issues.

Last year, we ran training and workshops
on mental health and personal resilience.
In 2022, we focused on the importance

of good managemesnt practice in
supporting people at work. In addition

to wellbeing subjects cavering mental
health and persenal resilience, we
expanded our curriculum to include a
range of management and people-focused
workshops and traihing.
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This approach covers the employee
lifecycle from recruitment and onboarding.
through setting objectives and maintaining
drive and motivation through challenges
and change.

The figures below highlight secme of the
topics we addressed during FY22.

Course Attendees
Thrive {rmenta!l health

awareness) 17
Team motivatcn 46
Time management 24
Respond (mental health

awareness for managers} 32
Inclusive Team Working

{dignity at wark and equity,

diversity and inclusion) 8
Mental Health First Aider

(including refresher training) 14

Financial wellbeing has been a particular
focus as a result of the cost of living crisis.
As well as conducting a job evaluation and
salary benchmarking exercise to ensure
colleagues were being paid fairly and
competitively, during the year we launched
a reward and recagnition platform

to help employees access discounts
across hundreds of retailers, including
supermarkets, We also highlighted

the government’s ‘Talk Money Weegk’
awarengss campaign.

QOur target was to increase investment in
learning to 4.5 days per employee by 2025
and we have exceeded that target this year.
We will keep our progress under review
and assess whether we need 1o increase
our target.

Human rights

Human rights policies

We have several policies covering aspects
of human rights, both within Watkin Jones
and in our supply chain. These include
our policies on dignity at work, equal
oppartunities, equality and diversity, and
anti-slavery and human trafficking.

The aims of these policies include ensuring
that we:

= have a work environment free of
harassment and bullying, where
everyone is treated with dignity and
respect;

pravide equal employment opportunities
and aveid unlawful discrimination in
employment and against customers;
avoid any kind of discrimination on the
basis of colour, race, nationality, ethnic
background, language, religion, sex, age,
marital status, sexuality or disability; and
prevent any slavery ar human trafficking
in our owin operations or within cur
supply chain.

Ensuring compliance

We ensure all new and existing employees
have appropriate training to understand
their rights and responsibilities under

our human rights-related palicies. Any
person with concerns about slavery or
human trafficking must raise them through
their line manager, our Compliance

Officer or through our whistleblowing
procedures. Cur Compliance Officer has
primary responsibility for overseeing the
anti-slavery and human trafficking policy,
monitoring its use and effectiveness,
dealing with any queries about it, and
auditing internal control systems and
procedures to ensure they are effective

in countering modern slavery. We are not
aware of any material breaches of our
human rights policies during the year.
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Anti-bribery and corruption {ABC)
Anti-bribery and corruption policy
We have a detailed ABC policy. It sets out
the rules for cur people and for third parties
warking on our behalf and is designed to
give them sufficient knowledge to detect
and prevent bribery and corruption, and
guidance on where to seek advice. The
policy is supported by practical examples,
which illustrate how to apply the rules in the
context of our business.

We promote compliance with the ABC
policy in a number of ways. These inglude:

« conducting risk-based due diligence on
all agents and other third parties who will
be conducting business on our behalf;

» promoting employee and third-party
awareness of, and comphiance with,
the ABC policy through appropriate

Governance

Financial statements Company infarmation

Directors, managers and supervisors are
personally responsible for monitoring
compliance:

'» in respect of all business matters they

are managing or supervising,; and
* by everyone involved in matters they
are managing or supervising, including
third-party agents, joint ventures and
- contractors working for and on behalf of
Watkin Jones,

Anyone with suspicions about an ABC
policy violation must report it to their
supervisor, manager or director, or by
cantacting the Compliance Officer or the
exlernal whistleblowing hotline. An update
on all whistleblowing submissions is given
to the Audit Committes.

We are not aware of any breaches of the
pelicy during the year.

communication, training and disciplinary
procedyres,;

raising ABC awareness through specific
online training during induction and
annual refresher training; and

requiring each employee to sign an
annual declaration to confirm they have
complied with the palicy.

Key activities

Employee experience

* We extended our focus on wellbeing with additional workshops
focusing on managers’ mental health.

* We are committed to providing valuable learning and development
oppartunities for our people. We increased our investmeant in both
mandatory and voluntary training. Every employee has & personal
development plan, and we invested more in professional development
to support and upskill our pecple. .

¢ We want to be an organisation where everyone belongs and feels
truly included. The makeup of our arganisation is broadly reflgctive
of society but we need to ensure we have sufficient representation
across the business and at a senior level.

Health and safety
» Obtained 150 45001 OH&S accreditation.

Sociat impact

* We actively engage with local communities as part of our development

and construction activities.

We introduced a community volunteering scheme called Giving Back

to suppert [ocal charities to make a positive difference.

* We have partnered with Talent Tap, a sccial mobility charity, to taunch
our employee volunteering programme.

L]
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2025 objectives_

* Increase employee engagement to 80%
* Reduce voluntary staff turnover to below 20%

* Gain recegnised accreditations for our
approach to inclusivity

* [ncrease our diversity to better reflect society

* Less than 5% of the HSE industry-wide
national incident rate

* 5,000 volunteering hours annually
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Drive fusther engagement with our » We launched The Fresh Difference In early 2022, to ensure that everyone in

BTR and PBSA occupants ta infarm Fresh has a common understanding of what we stand for, what we are looking to
our strategy achieve and what we need to do to further improve Customer service.
Support our supply chain to know * We set ESG expectations in pre-qualification questionnaires and scoring systems.
what is expected of them and to We engaged with suppliers with the largest envircnmenital footprint about

meet increasing environmenta! and improving performance.

social expectations

Continue to gvolve our approach to « Recruited more than 180 student ambassadars across over 50 properties to find
community engagement and impact out what their fellow residents want and generate ideas tailored to those needs.
Further align our ESG principles with + Conducied a pilot with clients to ascertain residents’ use of electricity and water.

thase of our institutional clients

.

Held client breakfasts, discussing topics such as energy and net zero ambitions.
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Governance

resident net promoter score

Future places

Commitment

Enhance residents' experience and client
satisfaction by delivering buildings and
services that meet their needs and are of
the highest quality.

Responsibility and management
The cornerstones of our strategy include
leveraging our develapment pipeline,
expanding into emerging areas of the
residential for rent market and growing
Fresn's property management business.

Fulfilling these objectives requires us

to deliver consistently a great living
experience for residents. We do this
through a combination of finding the right
sites, getting the right design, building
quality homes and providing excellent
customer service for the people who

live there.

We have several inputs to help us achigve

this. Through Fresh, we serve over 22,000

residents in more than 65 locations across
the UK and Ireland. The insight from these
residents supplements our in-house

planning expertise to enhance our designs.

client net promoter score

Propasals for the acquisition of new sites
must be approved by our Investment
Committee, and for larger sites by the
Board. Our Delivery team aims to develop
buildings to high standards; as well as
compliance with building and safety
regulations, this now includes more
stringent sustainability criteria to make our
buildings rmare energy efficient.

Managing our supply chain

Our supply chain is crucial to delivering
our schemes and we work closely with our
supply chain partners. Through careful
management, we can simplify construction
processes, reduce risk, and generate

cost, maintenance and environmental
benefits. Any new contractor goes through
a rigorous pre-qualification process,
including obtaining references and details
of qualifications and accreditations. The
evaluation also considers their quality, HSE
and financial performance.

We encourage continuous improvement

by using a bespoke system to record and
communicate defects directly to suppliers.
This improves efficiency and ensures
accountability. We are now looking to work
with them on reducing carbon throughout
the supply chain.

Watkin Jones plc | Annuai report and financial statements 2022
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awards won at the National
Student Housing Awards 2022
based on feedback from Fresh
residents

Ensuring fire safety

Tre safety of the buildings we develop
is parampunt. We construct our
developments to high fire management
specifications which comply with
applicable building and fire regulations.
We also have rigorous fire safety
management and maintenance regimes.
We use extemnal consultants to conduct
assessments where necessary and
employ accredited subcontractors on
fire protection to undertake their own
independent surveys of the work.

We have further enhanced aur quality
assurance processes during the year,

for example by using a bespoke system
to store photographs and videos showing
the installation of fire protection.

Qur buildings are designed for residents’
safety in the event of a fire. Every resident
has a responsibility to ensure they are
familiar with their building's safety features,
exits and evacuation pracedures. We

test the fire alarms weekly and ensure all
residenis know their fire escape routes.
Fire blankets are available in each shared
kitchen and each room is fitted with a fire
door which acts as fire safety protection.
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Our
Future

Places continued

Ensuring fire safety continued

Safety guidance and regulations evoive
over time and we are proactive in
addressing issues where appropriate. In
2020, the govemmen! issued updated
guidance cn the suitability of certain
cladding systems which had previously
been widely used on high rise residential
buildings. The guidance expressly covered
high-pressure laminate cladding. Following
the issue of the guidance, we carried out a
review of all properties we had developed
to identify those where some cladding
remediation might be required and, without
accepting liability, worked proactively with
the gwners of the relevant properties to
ensure the continued safety of tenants.

In 2022, the Building Safety Act

was enacted, which aims to protect
leaseholders by extending developers’
liability to remediate fire safety elements

in buildings over 11 metres tall and up to
30 years old. While it is not clear wheather
the legistation extends to PBSA and BTR
properties, which do not contain individual
leaseholders, we have made a pravision for
works to all relevant buildings regardiess of
tenure and we are in advanced discussions
with clients to agree cost sharing and
timing far remediation works.

Innovation

Innovation is playing an increasingly
important role in the design and
construction of our developments. This is
being driven by recent trends, including:

= afocus on envircnmental considerations
which is driving the use of modern
methads of construction such as
timber-framed houses. Timber is more
sustainable than bricks ar concrete and
produces much lower carbon emissions.
We are piloting timber-framed houses at
our development in Crewe;

64

* the pre-fabrication of some elements
of construction. Using medular
construction produces less waste, is
safer to build and can be built more
quickly and efficiently than traditional
methods. We use pre-fabricated
elements such as bathroom pods where
possible; and

* the evolving use of our homes. The
pandemic accelerated the trend towards
working from home and consequently
a desire for a suitable working area
and mare amenity space. Qur designs
incorporate changes in the way we live
in order to ensure our buildings remain
attractive to live in,

Engagement

We work to maintain positive relationships
with our residents, our institutional

clients and the communities araund our
developments. To help us achieve this, we
have committed to a number of initiatives.

Engaging with our communities
We look to provide tangible benefits and
minimise disruption o the communities
around our sites.

* When obtaining planning consent for
cur developments, we often undertake
improvement work in the local area.

This can range from providing affordable
homes to contributions towards new
schools, landscaping and enhancing
roads and public areas.

* BTR developments are a high quality
source of new homes which help to
relieve pressure on local housing stock.
Councils often see PBSA developments
as a good way of addressing housing
shortages by freeing up homes
previously occupied by students to make
them available for families.

» Last year we committed to register all our
sites with the Considerate Censtructors
Scheme. Sites are externally monitored
against criteria such as respecting the
community, protecting the environment
and worker safety. We have now set
a target that all sites will reach a Very
Good rating by 2025. Two of our sites
received maximum scores with an
Outstanding rating during the year.

L]

Each site has an administrator who
keeps the local comrmunity informed
through a monthly newsletter covering,
for example, how the scheme has
progressed and our planned works.

Giving back to the community

Fresh engaged with local communities
throughout the year, particularly during July
when we celebrated #FreshGivingBack.

As part of our ‘Be’ programme,
#FreshGivingBack gave teams the
opportunity to organise events such as
local litter picks, charity car boot sales,
collections for food banks and ¢lothing
donations.

July also saw many of our PBSA residents
check out of our huildings, providing an
cpportunity to create awareness for those
less tortunate. Feodbank and clothes
bank coliection paints were established
across most of our properties, allowing for
donations to charities.

Engaging with our residents

We aim to provide an exceptional

living experience for residents threugh
best-in-class customer service.
Accommaodation has become increasingly
important to students’ decisions about
where to study and this trend continued
throughout the pandemic.
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Strategic report

The stress of being away from home
and the pressures of everyday life can
be overwhelming, s0 looking after our
students’ mental health and wellbeing
is a top prierity.

We provide a number of support
services throughout our residents’

stay. Our ‘Be’ wellbeing and lifestyle
programme zlso helps residents to settle
in, provides cpportunities to make new
friends and looks to ensure they enjoy
their time with us.

Recognition

Fresh won three awards at the National
Student Housing Awards 2022. The
awards are based on resident feedback in
the Global Student Living Survey, which
gathered feedback from Fresh residents
amongst students warldwide.

Within the Global Student Living Survey,
Fresh achieved a net promoter score {NP3)
of +34 against our target of +10. NPSis a
commoniy used score that organisations
use to track their overall performance and
word-of-mouth track record.

Compared with industry benchmarks,
Fresh scored much higher than the
average, which is testament particularly to
its focus on resident wellbeing during the
pandemic.

Key a&t ivities

promoter score (NPS) of +34.

Governance

Engaging with our clients

We understand the impertance of
maintaining a strang reputation with our
clients. We therefore set a high baseline
for standards in cur Facilities Management
Agreement and engage with clients to tailor
our service for their needs. In our client
survey, we achieved an NPS of +47, which
is a fantastic achievement.

There is broad industry recognition that
asset operators must do more to make
accommodation more operationally
efficient and environmentally friendly.
Across the board, we are working with our
clients on new ideas to enhance the guality
and efficiency of their properties.

Engaging on environmental matters
The Building Research Establishment’s
Environmental Assessment Method
(BREEAM) and Home Quality Mark (HQM)
are third-party standards used to assess
both the environmenta! performance

of a building and how it contributes

to the wellbeing of its residents more
generally. We have been developing
plans to incrementally improve the design
of our developments so that all new
developments are rated either BREEAM
Excellent by 2025 or HGM four-star

by 2030.

Financial statements

Company information

.I Loxley
Q Heights,

heffield

In 2022, we conducted a pilot of technology
with two clients that showed, among other
things, how residents used electricity

and water at three sites, as well as their
use of amenity spaces. The rise in energy
costs means that building cwners are
increasingly focused on energy-saving
measures. The pilot helped us to
introduce improved practices to reduce
environmental impact and helped our
clienls 1o monitor their assets. One client
has taken forward the pitot to an extended
number of sites.

We are investigating different tools to
help us measure and improve tenants’
and clients’ overall satisfaction with

both the design and specification of our
developments and property management
SENVICEs.

2025 objectives

Excellent performance in terms of both satisfaction and resident net * Net promoter score (customer) +10

+ Net promoter score [client) +10

Achieved a very positive NPS of +47 in our client survey. + Design quality of PBSA developments: 100%

Reviewed the output of a pilot to collect data and analytics software BREEAM Excellent

at three PBSA sites managed by Fresh, to demaonstrate how it can + Wired score for digital connectivity and smart

support the Group’s ESG strateqy. One client chose to extend the pilot

to further sites.

technology: Silver

* Considerate Constructors Scheme: Very gocd
rating for all sites

Watkin Jones plc | Annua! report 2nd financial statements 2022

65



. SUstainability‘cc'_intinuedﬂ |

@Gﬂ?

(What{welsaidiwe’
Wwouldldolin{2022]

Whatiweldid]

Achieve {urther increase in
percentage of waste diverted
from landfill

Ensure our developments were
designed to provide strong
environmental performance and
support future residents’ wellbeing

Future planet

Commitment

Minirmise our environmental {cotprint by
reducing carbon emissions focusing on
our supply chain, making our workplaces
and developments more energy and
water efficient, reducing waste and being
innovative.

Responsibility and management
Improving the environmental performance
of both our business and the buildings

we develop is important to our long-term
success. We recognise the potentiat impact
of climate change on society genearally

and on our operations, for example

through storms and flooding affecting
construction on our sites. Our institutianal
clients are also increasingly aware of

their environmental responsibilities, Our
buildings are construcled to high BREEAM
standards and the growing focus on energy
efficiency helps to underpin demand for our
products, as they replace older and less
energy-efficient buildings.

€6

* Improved cur waste diversion trom landfill from 95% to 97%
« Continued to work with GoGreen to conduct site audits and provide advice

+ Designed B6% of PBSA schemes submitted for planning to BREEAM standards
of Excellent or Qutstanding, with the remainder rated Very Good

Qur environmental policy statement sets
out our commitment to protecting the
environment, preventing pollution, and
monitoring and reducing the impact of
our operations on the environment and
local communities. The policy requires

us to work with our clients to promaote
best-practice erwironmental management
techniques and with our suppliers to
ensure strong environmental supply chain
management and to promote sustainable
sourcing of products and materials. We
also have a separate policy covering

our approach o waste management.
This details our process for minimising
waste preducticn and requires us ta use
registerad and approved contractors for
waste management services.

We ensure compliance with cur
environmental policies in a number of ways.

These include:

* implementing environmental
management systems, in accordance
with our 1ISO 14001 accreditation,

= developing objectives, supported by
detaziled targets, to manage potentially
significant environmental aspects;
» developing meaningful key perfarmance
indicators to measure resource use,
waste and emissions, and to promote
enviconmental best practice; and
providing training to staff and
subcontractors to raise awareness
of environmental issues and ensure
effective management of our
environmental impacts.

As an 150 14001 accredited company, our

environmental policy and waste menitoring
procedures are well established and we are
regularly audited by the British Standards
Institute to ensure we comply.
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2022 performance

-0.3%

decrease in scope 1and 2
energy consumption (kWhj

Minimising our environmenta)
impact

The environmental impacts in our
corporate, development and management
activities occur through waste disposal,
water use, energy use and carbon
emissions. Qur development activities can
also impact local habitats. We use a range
of measures to ensure waste is disposed
of responsibly, energy resources are used
efficiently and any impact on bicdiversity is
minimised,

Waste diversion from landfill
98%
96%
94%
2%
90%
B3%

0%

585%

2018 2019

— 3% Diversion targel

-29%
reduction in location-based

scope 2 greenhouse gas
emissions (kWh)

Design

We design our buildings using the
principles of tigh insufation and low air
leakage. Where possible, we also use
opticns such as combined heating and
power supplies, solar phetovoltaic cells
and air source heat pumps to keep energy
use as low as possible.

QOn occasion, we acquire sites with
planning permission already granted which
means there are limited improvements we
can make to the design.

97% 97%

2020 2021 2022

% Actual diverted
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97%

waste diverted from fandfill

Waste

We monitor waste managemert on site
and carry cut duty-of-care checks on our
own and cur contractors’ waste carriers
and environmental permits. Regular
waste managemen! inspections of skips,
including their contents, ensure waste is
placed in the correct skips. We recycle
timber on site and segregate and divert
timber waste for recycling away from landfill
sites. We only use sustainable sources for
our timber used on sites.

Qur target was to reduce the amount of
waste diverted from our development
sites to landfill to 5% by 2025 and zero

by 2030, by which time we would have
approximately halved the total amount of
waste we produce. We exceeded our 2025
target by diverting 87% of our waste from
landfill in 2022.

Qur skip waste has reduced because

we are constructing buildings which by
design create less waste, we have more
components constructed off site and
carefully manage the ordering of general
building materials. We also use a training
programme to teach the benefits of
segregating our waste when possible.

We will reassess our 2025 target and
consider what an appropriate target would

be going forward.
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Planet continued

Minimising our environmental
impact continued

Water

Cur water use is continually monitored,
s0 we can address any increase. Through
incremental improvements and detailed
management of our corporate activities,
we believe we can reduce our direct
consumption by 10% by 2030,

We use water-efficient components in our
offices and temporary facilities on sites
and use water recycling technology where
possible.

Our buildings are designed in accordance
with BREEAM Wat 01 and we produce a
water strategy with the aim of reducing the
cansumption of potable water for sanitary
use in new buildings, Bathroom pods

are fitted with dual flush toilet cisterns,
aerated basin taps and eco showerheads
which are all fully compiiant with BREEAM
water-saving design standards We also
install leak detection systems and surface
water attenuation (a sustainable drainage
system) an some of our projects.

Energy

We monior our energy use across our
offices and sites and seat targets to improve
efficiency. We use low energy options such
as LED lighting and energy-efficient cooling
and heating systems.

Biodiversity

The majority of our developments are on
brownfield sites. However, we commission
ecological appraisals of our development
sites to ensure we do not negatively affect
existing habitats. An environmental impact
report for each project details specific
measures to be taken to protect the
surrounding environment.
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Measuring the environmental
footprint of cur managed assels

in 2022, we piloted data collection and
analytics software to identify its potential
in supporting cur ESG strategy by showing
how residents used electricity and water
at three PBSA sites managed by Fresh.
One client has taken forward the pilot to a
further four sites.

Carbon emissions

As well as being the right thing to do, cur
commitment to reducing our environmental
impact is becoming central to our
relationship with shareholders, institutional
clients, planning autharities, residents and
employees.

We have therefore set ourselves the
challenge of achieving net zero carben
emissions for our scope 1 and 2 emissions
by 2030 and making a meaningful impact
on scope 3 emissions by the same year.

Scope 1 includes our direct emissions and
scope 2 includes indirect emissions from
the electricity we purchase and use. Scope
3 includes all other indirect emissions from
our activities.

In 2021, we engaged a sustainability
consultancy to calculate our carbon
emissions baseline. This provided us

with a starting point on putting together a
roadmap to work towards net zero, In order
to create a more granular roadmap, we plan
to set near and lang-term science-based
targets for the reduction of our greenhouse
gas emissions.

While we recognise this will be a journey,
a lot of good practice already exists within
the business. We are already taking a
proactive approach to carban reduction in
some areas. Key initiatives include:

* removing traditional petrol and
diesel-powered vehiclas from our
company car policy in favour of hybrid
and electric vehicles;

* outsourcing our plant and machinery to
source energy-efficient alternatives with
a lower carbon footprint;

+ ensuring we are efficient in our use of
offices — during the year we closed one
office and deployed those employees to
other offices;

a series of consumer campaigns

aimed at encouraging environmentally

conscious behaviour among residents in

properties managed by Fresh;

= acloser dialogue with clients about

the environmental performance of the

buildings they forward fund or own and,

in the case of Fresh’s clients, their choice
of energy supplier;

rationalising our supply chain as a

first step towards building closer

partnerships with key suppligrs and

setting our expectations such that our

commitment to reducing our scope 3

emissicns is reflected in their business

strategy and throughout our supply
chain; and

incremental improvements in the design

of cur developments, such that by 2030:

« they all achieve an Energy
Ferformance Certificate of A;

+ all our PBSA and commercial
developments are rated Excellent
vnder the Building Research
Establishinent’s Environmental
Assessment Method (BREEAM); and

all our BTR and co-living schemes are
rated 4* under the Building Research
Establishment’s Home Quality Mark.
Going forward, these improvements will
mean optimising the use of alternative
energy-efficient materials and technologies
such as ‘green switchas’, photavoltaic solar
panels and air source heat pumps in all our
developments.

By 2025, we expect all our suppliers to
meet the requirements of the internaticnally
recognised 13S0 14001 standard and other
relevant standards.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Energy censumption (kwh)' 202v/22 2020/21 Variance

) 138,983 -11%
operation of aciitise Direct tra 4000 2834081 +63%

Red diesel 1,367,268 2,800,638 -51%

Total scope 1 6,124,546 5,773,684 +6%

Scope 2: Electricity purchased Total electricity 1,306,475 1,675,148 -22%

Tatal scope 1 and 2 energy consumption 7,431,021 7,448,832 -0.3%

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions {tonnes CO,e)® 2021722 2020/21 Variance
. Natural gas e B BB

Read diesel 355 718 -51%

Total scope 1 1,481 1,412 +5%

Scope 2: Electricity purchased and heat Location based 253 356 -29%
and steam generated Market based cormemm 239 454 _33%

Location based Total scope 1 and 2 emissions 1,733 1,768 2%

Market based Total scope 1 and 2 emissions 1,769 1876 -6%

Intensity metric assessment {tonnes CO_e/£m revenue) 2021722 2020721 Variance

Intensity ratio’ 4.4 41 +7%

The Company launched its Future Foundations pregramme in November 2021, This brings together all our activities into one strategy
to help make us a mare sustainable and responsible business. The three pillars of our Future Foundations strategy are: Future Peogple,
Future Places and Future Planet. We are carrying out full reviews of how we build and what we build to ensure we are minimising our
environmental impact, and are further assessing ways to reduce carbon emissions across our business. For example:

« our company car list has been revised to hybrid and electric vehicles. Electric ¢harging points are being installed at our new Bangor
office and have already been installed at our Chester office;

« taking inte account the move to more texible working, we reviewed our office straleyy to ensure it remained appropriate and efficicnt.
As a result, we closed one office during the year and deployed those employees to other offices;

» our Precurement function is setting out a supplier framework and select suppliers with suitable environmental accreditations;

« we have outsourced our plant supply 1o take advantage of more environmentally friendly items ¢f plant and equipment; and

* we are increasing our use of renewable energy sources for our site accommodation and task lighting.

For FY23, we are looking to gain appraval for science-based targets. This scope of works includes a review of our scope 1 and 2 GHG
emissions and a scope 3 gap analysis.

1. Energy from electricity, natural gas, red diesel (used for cfi-road eguipment such as ¢ranes and generatoss) and direct transport luel have been included. Wa have
used the conversion factors published in the 2021 Delra GHG conversion factors for company reporting. The reporting methodology for natural gas energy has been
updated toreflect actual energy Consumption in kWh and our natural gas {otal for Y21 has been restated as aresult.

2. Wa hava used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards {Revised) methodalogy to calculate our emissions. No mandatory emissions have
been exciuded.
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Our
Future
Planet continued

Scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions

* We replaced 30% of our petrcl and diesel-powered company cars
with hybrid and electric vehicles,

* We outscurced our plant and machinery across ali operations to
source more energy-efficient alternatives.

*» We reviewed our office strategy to ensure it remained appropriate,

Scope 3 carbon emissions

* Incorporated technologies such as photoveltaic solar panels and air
source heat pumps into the design of all our developments where
possible.

Rationalised our supply chain and established closer partnerships with
key suppliers with a view tc meeting our scope 3 emissions ambitions.
Promoted resident campaigns through Fresh to encourage
environmentally censcicus behaviour.

Waste and water

* We exceeded our 2025 target for waste diversicn from fand#ill.

« We continued to monitor waste management on site and carry out
duty-of-care checks on gur own and ocur coniractors’ waste carners
and environmental permits.

Our buildings are designed in accordance with BREEAM Wat 01
and we produced a water strategy, with the aim of reducing the
consumption of petable water for sanitary use in new buildings.

*

“Objectives

Net zero scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions
by 2030
Full electric vehicle fleet by 2026

Air source heat pumps designed in all
developments by 2023

Design quality of PBSA developments:
100% BREEAM Excellent by 2025 and 50%
Cutstanding by 2030

Design quality of BTR developments: 100%
HGM four-star rating by 2030

All developments designed to EPC ‘A’ by 2030
All suppliers to have SO 14001 accreditation
Meaningful impact on scope 3 ernissions

by 2030

Diverted waste from landfill: >85% by 2025,
>97.5% by 2030

Waste reduction: 40% by 2025, 80% by 2030
Water usage reduction: 10% by 2025
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Non-financial information statement

The table below sets out the information required to be
disclosed under sections 414CA and 414CB Companies
Act 2006 and where it can be found in this annual report.

Relevant information

Reporting Policies and necessary to understand
requirement standards . our business and its impact
Environmental = Envirpnmental poficy statement « Sustainability report
matters * Waste management policy * Carbon emissions

» 18014001 accreditation » Waste diversion from landfill

Section 172 statement

Sustainability report
Section 172 statement

Health and safety palicy
Equality, diversity and
inclusion policy
Whistleblowing policy
Dignity at work policy

Employees

* Family friendly policy

Agile working policy
Employee handbook

Sustainability report
Section 172 statement

Corporate social
responsibility policy
Health and safety policy

Social matters

Human rights Anti-slavery and human Sustainability report
trafficking policy

Code of conduct

Anti-bnbery and corruption policy

Equality, diversity and

inclusion policy

Anti-corruption Anti-bribery and corruption Sustainability report
and anti-bribery policy

matters Gifts and hospitality policy

Principal risks N/A Principal risks and uncertainties
and impact on

business activity

Description of N/A Capital-light business mode!

business model

Non-financial N/A * Key performance indicators
key performance Sustainability report
indicators Section 172 slatement
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Our stakeholders

We maintain constructive dialogue with our stakeholders

to help us build trust and make choices that help shape

our role in society.

Key stakeholder issues

* Health, safety and
wellbeing

EmPIOYeeS « Learning and
develepment

» Diversity and inciusion

Key stakeholder issues
« Quality

* On-time delivery

Institutional + Track record

clients + Value for monay
+ Sustainability

Key stakeholder issues

+ Good customer service
* Value for money

* Wellbeing

* Sustainability

Residents

72

Why we engaged

Having a highly engaged and motivated
employee base is central to building
our pipeline and delivering high quality
develcpments on time and safely.

We aim to build a respectful and inclusive
culture with oppartunities for career growth
and continuous learning.

Why we engaged

It's important for us to understand the
types of development and locations that are
attractive to clients so that we can develop
high quality, desirable assets that meet their
investment criteria.

Why we engaged

Understanding our residents’ needs helps
U$ to provide gredt cusiuime servive, 1L alsu
forms the basis of our design and innovation
for futurs developments and helps ta ensure’
high levels of occupancy for our institutional
clients.

Key metrics

* Employee
engagement
SUrVEY:

73%

Key metrics

* Forward funding
transactions:
£852 million of
pipeling currently
forward sold

» Client net
promuoter score:
+47

Key metrics

* Resident net
pruniulegn suurg:
+34
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How we engaged during FY22

We ran our employee engagernent survey for the second year.
Feedback and proposed actions arising from the survey were
discussed with the Board.

We also gather feedback through meetings, appraisals, internal
newsletters, intranet articles, Yarmmer and our employee forum.

We engage with employees on the financial performance of
the Company via employee emails following the release of the
Company's trading updales, full-year and half-year results.

In Novernber 2022, we entered into an employee consultation
about restructuring some argas of the business and reducing the
number of roles in some teams. Ses page 77 for further details.

How we engaged during FY22

We met with clients formally and informally at a variety of levels,
including during the marketing of individual and portfolio assets.

We held client breakfasts for Fresh clients with guest speakers.
Newsletters, agent updates and industry/legislation news are sent
to clients regularly.

How we engaged during FY22

We continued to promote cur Be wellbeing and lifestyle programme

which is built on four pillars: Be Active, Be Connected, Be Social
and Be Supported.

We recruited student ambassadaors throughout our schemes to
research what aur residents want and bring forward ideas for
improvement.

We also introduced a Resident Awareness Programme and
behavioural changes ta improve recycling and manage water
consumption, Tips on both were included in cur Sustainable Living
Guide for residents.
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What we learned

Our most improved scores related to recommending us
as a great place tc work, fair reward and people are well
recognised for their contributions.

We have further wark to do on improving collaboration.
As part of cur consultation, we restructured some
functions to streamlineg our ways of working and create a
mare co-ordinated approach.

What we learned

Arecurring theme with clients, both for the schemes

we develop and the schemes we manage, was the
enwvironmental efficiency of future developments. Clients are
likely to own these assets lang term sc they need to be as
efficient as possible to maximise their returns. This informs
our ESG strategy — see pages 54 to 56 for furthar details,

What we learnad

Fresh received extremely positive feedback, winning a
number of respacted industry awards based on student
survey responses. We also achieved a very high resident
satisfaction rating with a net promoter score of +34.
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Our stakeholders continued

Key stakeholder issues
* Health and safety
» Build cost inilation

* Prompt payment
* Environment

@ Key stakeholderissues
s Sustainability

SharehOIders * Reiurn on investment

- share price growth or
dividends

Key stakeholder issues
+ Considerate constructors
« Envirgnment

* Health, safety and
welibeing

Communities

« Sustainable communities
« Charitable giving
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Why we engaged

Qur subcontractors and suppliers are
respansible for providing the skilled peopls
and materials needed to consiruct our
developments.

A sustainable supply chain is crucial to
successiully delivering our schemes.
Through collaboration and careful
management, we simplify our construction
process, reduce risk, improve qualty

and generate cost, maintenance and
environmental benefits.

Why we engaged

Qur shareholders rely on us to manage their
investment responsibly and sustainably and
expect to be kept well informead about our
progress.

We want shareholders to understand our
strategy and performance $o they can
accuralely assess our value.

Why we engaged

We want to be a good neightrour and deliver
real value to our local commurities through
qur developments. Our charitable fund aims
o suppurl d wide ranyge ol projects wilh

a particular emphasis on enhancing the
physical environment and improving quality
of life for local people.

Key metrics

* Quality assurance
reports

= Prampt payment

Key metrics
= Share price

* Dividend
payments

Key metrics

* Considerate
Constructors
Scheme ratings

« Hours
volunieered
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How we engaged during FY22 What we learned

Qur engagement centred on build cost inflation and sustainability The supply chain disruption seen in 2022 has highlighted
during the year. how important it is to have trusted supply chain partners.

Recent events, including Srexit, the pandemic and the war in While‘ our self-build e"Fe"ise gives us greg_ter conirol
Ukraine, have significantly disrupted the construction supply chain, of build costs and on-time delivery, the ability to use

leading to shortages in building rmaterials and skilled labour. third parties is an important part of our ability to flex our
] ] construction capacity.
This has led to build cost inflation which has created issues for

much of the construction supply chain this year. Although we are
mindful of protecting cur own position, we have tried to support
our supply chain partners as much as possible through advance
procurement, increased communication, on-site support where
appropriate and prompt payment of invoices.

As part of our procurement strategy, we have been
raviewing and rationalising our supplier base to ensure that

we have appropriate coverage in all areas and that there is
no single point of failure. We can then build further on the
leng-term refationships with these suppliers and leverage
our relationships to achieve cost and efficiency savings.
We outsourced the provision of our plant and machinery, leveraging RTINS E P IEE T E T T LU E R RN o AR e Tele
our supply chain partnars 1o ensure more flexible, environmentally be SO 14001 accredited by 2025, sa this work is an
friendly options are available for cur construction sites. important step towards working with the right partners.

How we engaged during FY22 What we learned

In November 2021, we held a capitat markets day to update Following meetings with investors this year it became
sharehaolders on the progress of the business. In particular, we clear that the lack of directly comparable peers means
presented our ESG strategy and the market opportunity in the that we need to be more granular in our communications.
affordable hames sector. In particular, we need to explain the sensitivities around

our business model. For example, having operated in a
{ow inflation, [ow interest rate environment for a number of
years, the impact of rising interest rates on the Company’s
margin (given forward funders' rising cost of debt) was not
universally well understood.

We held investor roadshows after half-year and full-year results as
well as a number of are-to-one calls and meetings and the annual
general meeting. In particular, the CEO and CFO made themselves
available for individual calls with the top 20 shargholders following
our post-close trading update in Octaber 2022 in which we
reported that profit would be lower than expected. Environmental targets were an area of focus for
sharehokders and progress on aur ESG strategy was

Investor feedback on meetings is provided to the Board for -
well received.

consideration at least twice a year.

How we engaged during FY22 What we learned
All our construction sites are registered with the Considerate Construction work can have a significant impact on our
Constructors Scheme, which means they are externally monitored neighbours if not carried out respectfully.

against criteria such as respecting the community, protecting the
environment and worker safety. Each site sends out a monthly
newsletter 1o keep the local community informed of how the
scheme is progressing and upcoming planned works.

Wa are increasingly using quiseter, mors anvirommentally
friendly electric tools having outsourced our piant and
machinery - this means that our construction sites are
less noisy and produce fewer emissians.

We chose Talent Tap, the sccial mobility charity, as our pariner
far our volunteering agenda. Talent Tap aims to strengthen
employment potential in young people from social mobility
coldspots by enabling access to professional industries. We
provided mentoring to help support students on the programme
as well as fundraising for the charity,
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Section 172 statement

The Group’s long-term success depends on our ability
to create value for our stakeholders.

The stakeholder engagement activities

set out on pages 72 to 75 enable us to
understand what matters most to our
stakeholders and how key decisions wil
affect themn. The Board receives an update
from the Executive Directors at each Board
meeting about any substantial engagement
with sharehoiders and institutional clients.

a} The likely consequence of any
decision in the long term.

b} The interests of our employees.

c} The need to foster business
relationships with suppliers,
customers and others.

[ ] The impact of our operations on
the community and environment.

¢) The desirability to maintain a
reputation tor high standards ot
business conduct.

f} The need to act fairly as between
our sharehotders.

76

The Board considers the matters set out
in Section 172(1) of the Companies Act
2006 when making decisions. The matters
the Board is required to take into account
under s172(1) are set out below and
examples of key decisions made by the
Board and details of its decision-making
process are set out opposite.

The Chief Executive Officer also updates the
Board at each meeting on key employee,
health and safety, and ESG matters.

The business case for each potential
investment opportunity contains a
Section 172(1} appraisal that explicitly
addresses how the investment will impact
stakeholders.

esponse

The Group works through a multi-year development cycle — the process of identifying a
site for development through to construction and handover to institutional clients takes
a number of years, so our investments are Inherently long term. In addition, we operalte
in markets driven by long-term demographic and $o¢ial trends. The Board 18 therefore
cognisant that the declsions it makes today will have a far-reaching impact on the
Group's success and as such it carefully conslders the implicatlons of its decisions angd
any judgements that need to be taken.

Our colleagues are key to the success of the business. Our employee engagement
survey, laurnched 125t year, has produced a step change th undarstanding what I3
impartant to our employees. The Board sets the Group’s culture and has 2 rigorous focus
on koy iceuec affecting employees, such as health and safety, wellbeing and reward.

Unfertunately, competing prionties gd not aiways resuit In a poslilve outcome for all
stakehalders and, following the year end, we took the difficult decision to consult on
reducing our workforce. Details of the decision-making process are explained on the
page opposite. .

The Group 1s reliant on its ability t& d&hver congistently 1oF INSUIUTIONAI ClI2NTS ana our
supply chain plays a significant role in helplng us to achleve this. The Board therefure
takes a close interest in the Uompany’s relationships with thésé groups, througn repons
and presentatlons from the Execuilve Dlrectors and other members of the leadership
team, See stakeholdar engagément o pages /2w /s,

The Group’s ESG strategy, Future Foundations, provides a sclid base from which to
manage our environmental impact and community relations. See our sustainability
resort on pages 52 1w ru.

The Group relies heavily on its reputation and the Board therefore pricritises taking
construchive action té résolve is5ue35 When IRy arsé. | ne EroUp's acuons on
remediating cladding and fire safety issues continue to demonstrate this. 1he Group
also has robust policies and ¢ontrols i relation 1o proteclng numan rgnts ana
preventing bribery and corruphon (séé pages su and bi).

When taking decisions, the Board locks 10 act In the Interests of shareholders as a
whidle and 1o ensure all shareholders are falrly reated. The Executlve Dlrectors arg
required to build up a shareholding of 200% of salary, helping to align their interests
with shareholders as a group. In some situations, there may be conflicting stakeholder
interests and the Board may have to prioritise certain groups,
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Key decisions during the year
Building safety provision

in May 2022, the Board approved a
provision to fund fire safety improvement
works for certain developrments built by
the Company.

The Board is mindful of maintaining the
Company’s reputation as a responsible
developer and is clear that individual
leaseholders should not be burdened
with the costs of fire safety remediation,
in light of the Building Safety Act, which
aims to protect leaseholders by extending
devetopers’ liability for buildings over

11 metres tall and up to 30 years old,
and acknowledging the uncenainty
inherent in the legislation, the Board
asked management to review historic
developments to assess the cost to the
Company of remediating potential fire
safety issues.

The Board considered the outpul of

this review, noting the relationships and
dialogue with building owners to date,

the impact this pravision would have on
our sharehclders and the impact on the
residents of the buildings we canstructed.
The health and safety of residents in all our
buildings is of parameount importance and,
while the Company has only developed a
small number of leasehold buildings, cur
provision encompasses PBSA and BTR
developments. The Beard considered that
this approach was in the best interests of
all stakeholders.

Governance

Endorsement of our ESG strategy
The Board considered management's
proposed ESG strategy, Future
Foundations. It reviewead the targets and
commitments for 2025 and 2030 in relation
to areas such as diversity and inclusion,
energy efficiency of buildings and carbon
emissions, noting that the targets would
support progress under the strategic limb
of responsible operations. The Board was
supportive of the strategy, noting that
sustainability was becoming increasingly
important to all stakeholders and a
differentiating factor for developers given
the long-term nature of the assets being
built. It noted that, in time, mere granularity
would be needed as to scope 3 ambitions.

Consultation to reduce the workforce
FY?22 was a particularly challenging year
for the construction industry. Build cost
inflation was running at almost 10% by
June 2022, caused by disruptionin the
supply chain following the pandemic

and Brexit. However, demand for assets
remained strong, and the business was
able to mitigate increased costs through
increasing asset values.

Subsequently, the Board started to

see some pricing and margin softness

cn sales concluded in the second half.
The institutional investors wha purchased
the Company’s assets were facing higher
funding costs as interest rates steadity
increased from 0.1% at the beginning of
our financial year to 2.25% at the end of
our financial year. Two forward sales that
were planned to close in September were
deferred as a result of the increased market
volatility at that time. As a result, the Board
announced to the market that FY22 profits
were expected to be around 10% below
markel expectations and that it expected
margin pressure to continue into FY23.
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In tandem, the Executive Committee, led by
the Chief Executive Officer, was reviewing
its structure and processes to ensure the
business was operating as efficiently as
possible, having been resourced for market
growth. As aresult of this review, it became
clear that business functions could be
streamlined to be mare effective.

In light of the weaker market outlook,
the internal review and the Company’s
overhead costs, the Board agreed that
the Company should enter a period

of collective consuliation to reduce
employee headcount by approximately
40 roles. The Directors recognised the
negative impact that this decision would
have on employees but considered that
this was the right decision to ensure the
long-term success of the business. The
Board requested that communication with
employees was sensitively carried out.

Face-to-face consultations involving
affected staff, senior management,

HR representatives and employee
representatives took place during the
consultation. Interviews were held for new
roles that were created as a result of the
restructure. A total of 34 employess left the
business as a result of the process.
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Strategic report

Governance

Chair’s introduction

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to introduce this corperate
governance report, my second as Chair of
Watkin Jones ple. This report sets out our
key areas of focus during the year.

Building safety

The Group's first pricrity will always be the
safety of our buildings and the people who
live in tham. In April 2022, the government
introduced the Building Safety Act. This
led to the Group undertaking & review of
all buildings over 11 metres developed
over the last 30 years, and resulted in

the business recognising an exceptional
charge in the year of £30.4 million for
potential costs of remediation work.

Understanding the implications of the
Act for Watkin Jones and evaluating the
level of appropriate provisioning has
been a key focus for both the Board

and the Audit Committee. The Groupis
committed to working collaboratively
with building owners to schedule in the
remediation works to these buildings, and
the monitoring of both delivery and cost
wili be a key focus for the Board over the
caming year. Further details can be found
on page 77,

Alan Giddins
Chair

Board changes

The Nomination Committee conducted
two searches for Non-Executive Directors
during the year, as well as recommending
an internal candidate for promction to

the Board as an Executive Director.
Rachel Addison was appeinted as an
independent Non-Executive Director

in April 2022, becorming Chair of the

Audit Committee in August 2022,
following a handover from Simon Laffin.
Francis Salway and Alex Pease were
appointed to the Board in October 2022,
as an independent Non-Executive Director
and an Exgcutive Director respectively.
Further information on the Committee’s
search process can be found on pages
92 and 93.

Risk assessment

QOur assessment of risk has been
particularly impartant over the last

12 months, given the significant
challenges in both the supply chain and
labour markets, wider macroeconomic
uncertainty and capital markets volatility
post the government's mini-Budget.

The bow-tie methodology we use

for our principal risks enables us to

assess preventative measures and
recovery barriers for specific scenarios.
Further nformation can be found in the risk
management and principal risks section on
pages 40 to 51 and in the Audit Committee
repori on pages 88 to 91,
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Board of Directors:

Alan Giddins
Chair

Richard Simpson
Chief Executive Gfficer

Sarah Sergeant
Chief Financial Officer

Alca Peaso
Chief Investment Officer

Haenai Addison
Independent Non-Execulive Director

Liz Reilly
Independent Non-Executive Director

Francis Salway
Independent Non-Executive Direclor

QCA Code

The corporate governance statement and
Committee reports on the following pages
explain our approach to governance.

The Board foliows the principles set ocut in
the Quoted Cempanies Alliance Corporate
Governance Code {the ‘QCA Code'}.

A summary of how we have complied

with the principles is set out on pages

86 and 87. There are no significant areas
where our governance structures and
practices differ from the QCA Code's
expectations.

A complete index of the disclosures
required by the QCA Code, including those
on the Company's website, can be found at
watkinjonesplc.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

Alan Giddins
Non-Executive Chair

25 January 2023
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Board of Directors

The Board has a wide range of appropriate skills and

experience, supporting robust decision-making.

Appointed to the Board:
19 XIaly 2021

N

Chief,Executive Officer,

Appointed to the Board:
2Nanuary 2019

SarahlSergeant

Appainted to the Board:
6 October, 2021

P

fAlex]Pease

Chief Investment Officer,

Ap_puinted to the Board.
10 October, 2022

Skills and experience

+ Extensive investment
expertise gained
principally in private
equity and investment
banking environmenis
and mare recently in social
impact investment.

+ Substantial leacership

and board experience,

including as chair.

Qualified chartered

accountant with a degree

in economics.

Other current
appointments

Chair of Hill & Smith Holdings
PLC, a FTSE 250 company,

and non-executive director and
investment committee member

of Big Society Gapital.

Past appointments
Managing Partner and Global
Head of Private Equity at 3i
Group plc. Member of its
Executive and Investment
committeas which included

board appointments to Audley
Travel, Mayborn Group, Foster +
Partners and Element Materials

Technology.
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Skills and experience

* Extensive experience working
in properiy development and
student accommaodation,
inctuding as Group Property
Divector at The Unite Group
plc immediately prior to
joining Watkin Jones.
Substantial executive
experience in setting the
strategic direction tor

all aspects of property
portfol:o management.
Significant experience at
board level. including seven
years serving on the Board
aof The Unite Graup plc,
plustwo yearsina
non-executive capacity with
CityWest Homes.

Qualified chartered
surveyor and a fellow

of the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors.

Other current
appointments
N/A

Past appointments
Group Property Director

for The Unite Group plc;
Non-Executive Director,
CityWest Homes; Chair of the
British Property Federation's
cross-sactor Student
Accommodation Committee
from 2013 to 2015.

Skills and experience

+ Considerable financial,
strategic and operationa!
experience across a range
of cornmercial organisations.
Thirteen-year tenure at
Compass Group PLC, latterly
as Chief Financial Officer

of the UK & Ireland; priar to
this, held a number of senior
finance and operational
roles including Group
Financial Controller, M&A
Diractar and CFO of the Asia
Pacific region.

Qualified charteread
accountani.

.

Other current
appointments
N/A

Past appointments
N/A

Skills and experience
Extensive knowledge of the
property sector.
Strong relationships with
institutional investors.
Joined Watkin Jones in
2010, appeinted as Group
Investment Director in 2013
and Chief Investment Oficer
in2021.
Spent six years in the Savills
Residential Investment team
spacialising in brokerage,
consultancy and valuation
across all residential
asset classes.
« Qualified chartered surveyar
{MRICS).

Qther current
appointments
N/A

Past appointments
N/A
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NonzExecutive Director,
Appointed to the Board:
210anuary 2019

Governance

Rachel/Addison]

Independent
Non:Executive Director;

'Appainted to the Baard:
YAl 2022

Financial statements

Independent
Non-Executive Directar,

A;lpointed 10 the Board:
10 October, 2022

Skills and experience

* Over 20 years of executive
experience in organisational
design and devslopment,
talent management, reward
and cultural transformation in
large-scale UK businesses,
including J Sainsbury plc,
FCC Environment and latterly
SEGRO plc.

* Developed knewtedge of
the real estale sectar during
11 years as Group Human
Resources Director of
FTSE 100 listed Segro PLC
which owns, manages
and develops modern
warehousing and light
industrial property across the
UK and Continental Europe.

Cther current
appeintments
N/A

Past appointments
Retail Human Resources
Director for J Sainspury ple.

Group Human Resourges
Oirector for FCC UK
Environmental (previously the
Waste Recycling Group).

Skills and experience

* Nearly 30 years of finance
experience.

* Has held a number of senior
financial, operational and
board-level roles across
different sectors.

« Experience in mergers and
acquisilians, infegration,
business transformation and
risk managemenrit.

« Qualifiedt chartered
accountant.

Other current
appointments
Non-Executive Director of
Mardowse plc, Hyve Group ple.
Gamma Communications plc
and Mango Publishing Group.

Past appointments

Chiei Financial Officer at
Future ple, the global platfarm
business for specialist media,
until 2021,

Chief Financial Officer at TI
Mediz Ltd.

Head of Risk Management at
Boots the Chemist.
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Skills and experience

* Brings a wealth of property

expertise to the Board.

Leadership experience i

large UK-listed businesses.

+ Knowledge of affordable
housing having been chair of
Town and Country Mousing
Association.

Other current
appointments
Non-executive director of
Cadogan Group Limited
whicn owns and manages the
Cadogan Estate in Chelsea.

Past appointments
Chiefl Executive of Land
Securities plc, then the
cauntry's largest commercial
property company.

between 2004 and 2012.

Non-Executive Director of NEXT
plc until 2021.

Company information

- Kerry Watson
Group Company
Secretary
_Appointed: 19 Aprit 2021
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Corporate governance

Board structure

The Board is responsible for the overall
leadership of the Group and setting its
values and standards. It comprises the
Chair, three Executive Directors and three
independent Ncon-Executive Directors.
Their biographies c¢an be found on pages
B0 and 81.

The Chair and Chief Executive Officer have
separate, clearly defined roles, The Chair
is responsible far leading the Board,
setting the agenda for Board meetings
(with the Company Secretary) and for
ensuring the Board operatgs effactively,

by promoting a culture of openness and
robust discussion.

Attendance at meetings

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for setting and implementing the Group’s
strategy, for leading and developing

the executive team and for managing

the Group's day-to-day operations,

taking account of the objectives,

policies and risk appetite set by the Board.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly 1o consider
strategy, performance, internal control
matters and material investment decisions.
To enable the Board to discharge its duties,
all Directars receive appropriate and timely
information, including briefing papers
distributed in advance of Board meetings.

These papers include reports from
the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer, as well as
reparts on investor relations and
corporate governance,

The Caompany Secretary produces minutes
of each meeting, including actions to be
taken. The Chair then follows up each
action at the next meeting.

Only the Non-Executive Directors are
members of the Beard committees.
Richard Simpsen and Sarah Sergeant
are invited to attend committee
meelings as required 1o assist with
the matters discussed.

The table below sets out the number of formal Board and Committee meetings attended by each Director during FY22.

Alan Giddins
Richard Simpsen
Sarah Sergeant
Liz Reilly

Rachel Addison'
Philip Byrom?
Sirnon Laffin?

Grenville Turner?

Audit
Committee
(9 meetings}

Board
{11 meetings)

5/5

14

7/8

11

Nomination
Committee

Remuneration
Commitiee
(5 meetings)

{3 meetings)

5 3
11 1M1
4/5 172
1 -

1. Actual attendance/maximum number of meetings Rachel Addisen could attend based on date of appointment of 1 Aprif 2022.
2. Actual attendance/maximum number of meetings Philip Byrom could attend based on retirement ¢ate of 17 Navemnber 2021.
3. Actual attendance/maximum number of meetings Simon Lalffin could attend based on retirement date of 31 July 2022,

4. Actuai attendance/maximum number of meetings Grenville Turner could attend based on retirement date of 12 Cctober 2021,
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Matters reserved for the Board
Matters reserved for the Board for its
decision include:

* zpproving the Group's
strategic objectives;

reviewing performance against the
Group's strategic objectives and
business plans;

overseeing the Group's operations;
approving changes to the Group's
capital, corporate or ¢control structures;
approving results announcements and
the annual report and accounts;

approving the dividend policy;

declaring the interim dividend and

recommending the final dividend,

= approving the treasury policy;

* approving the Group's risk appetite and
principal risk statements;

* raviewing the effectiveness of the

Group's risk and control processes;

* approving major capital projects and
materizl centracts or arrangements;

approving delegated levels of authority;

= approving changes to the Board and its
committees; and

» approving all Board mandated policies.

In particular, during the ysar we:

* approved the disposal of a portfolio of
five PBSA schemes, two operaticnal and
three developments;

» considered the post-completion reviews
of the Group’s developments delivered
during the year;

s approved interim and final dividends; and

s approved a five-year business plan.

Governance

Advice for Directars

All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary,
who ensures that the Board’s procedures
are followed and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. In addition,
the Company has proceduras to enable
the Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the Company's
expense, if necessary to further the
Directors' duties.

Re-election of Directors

The Board’s policy is for all Directors to
seek re-election each year and as a result,
all of the Directors will be standing for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ time commitments

All the Non-Executive Directors are
required to devote sufficient time to
Watkin Jones to enable the Board

to discharge its duties effectively.

This includes preparation for and
attendance at scheduled Beard and
cammitiee meetings, as well as ad hoc
meetings or calls as required. The Board
confirms that each of the Non-Executive
Directors can commit the necessary time
ta fulfit their roles.

Directors’ training

All the Directors look to keep their skills
and experience up to date. We benefit
from briefings, presentations and papers
provided by our advisers and other
professional services firms, covering 10pICs
such as new regulations, developments in
corporate governance and emerging best
practice. The Non-Executive Directors
also benefit from the interaction with the
other boards they sit on, providing us with
a range of different perspectives we can
apply to Watkin Jones.
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During the year, the Board increased its
use of external speakers at its meetings,
particularly in support of property market
analysis and new legislation. The Beard
also benefited from more frequent
presentations from within the business.

Board etfectiveness

The last externat evaluation was conducted
in 2019. The Board considered the need

for an externat evaluation exercise during
FY22 but concluded that maximum value
would not be gained from the exercise
given recent Beard changes. An internal
performance evaluation was conducted for
FY22 and the Board intends to cenduct an
external evaluation during FY23.

A questionnaire was circulated to Direclors
covering areas such as Board leadership
and compasition, Company purpose,
meetings and relationships, succession
planning, development and induction,
and effectiveness of Board committees.
The Company Secretary subsequently
conducted individual interviews with each
member of the Board and discussed the
tindings with thg Chair. The findings were
presented to the Board at its meeting

in December 2022. In summary, the key
findings were that:

+ the quality of debate was felt to be very
good, with constructive challenge and a
suppertive approach;

* the Board composition and its
experience, skills and knowledge was
felt to be appropriate; and

* all committees were felt to be
operating well.
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Corporate governance continued

Board effectiveness continued

In terms of key acticns coming out of the review, these were:

Business model

Succession planning

Nature of risk discussions

Board committees

The Board has established Audit,
Nemination and Remuneration
Committees, which operate under written
terms of reference. The reports of these
committees can be found on pages

88 t0 101,

Terms of reference

The terms of reference for the Board
and the committees can be found at
watkinionesplc.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s
system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. Any system of internal
control can only provide reascnable,

but not absaolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board
considers that the internal controls in
place are appropriate for the Group's size,
complexity and risk profile,
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Re-evaluate the Company's business model against a
macroeconomic environment of higher interest rates, increased
volatility and recession to identify any enhancements.

Provide greater visibility of senior management team to the Board

following recent Executive Director appointments.

In addition to routine discussions around principal risks, consider

best format for additional touchpoints on risk, e.g. a formalised
risk committee or standing itern on the Board agenda.

Tne key features of the Group's internal
contral system include:

e the preparation of monthly management
accounts and comparison to budge?;
clearly defined roles and responsibilities,
with appropriate segregation of duties;
clear authorisation and approval
processes;
* regular preparation and review of cash
forecasts;

+ senior management review of material
contracts and agreements; and

= approval by senior rmanagement of
allland purchases and development
sales agreements.

KPMG provides internal audit services to
the Group. More information can be found
in the Audit Committee report on page 9.
The need for an internal audit function is
kept under review and currently the Board
considers that the Company is of sufficient
size to merit the appointment of a third
parly to provide this service. As well as

a robust and independent perspective,
KPMG provides specialist expertise which
assists management in developing its risk
register and ensuring that controls are
operating effectively.

Relations with shareholders

The Board recognises the importance

of maintaining an open dialogue with .
sharehciders and keeping them informed
of the Group's strategy, progress and
prospects. As part of this, the Board

is committed to a high standard of
carporate reporting.

During the year, the Executive Directors
continued their programme of meetings
with existing and potential shareholders.
The Board was kept informed about
shareholders’ views after these meetings
by feedback from the Company's
corporate brokers.

In Novernber 2021, the Executive Directors
and other members of the Executive
Committee hosted a virtual capital markets
day for shareholders and analysts.

The presentations included a review of the
Group's markels, strategy and opportunity
for growth, as well as providing a summary
of the Group’s ESG strategy and targets.

In June 2022, Alan Giddins met with a
number of the Group's major shareholders
to gauge their views on the performance
and management of the Company.

In addition to the abave, the Group looks to
keep investors informed through regulatory
announgements of important newsflow,
including forward sales of developments,
planning peﬁrmis_.si_gns received apcl

sites acquired.

Annual general meeting (AGM)

The Company's AGM will be held at
10.30am on 28 February 2023. The Notice
of Meeting, setting out the resolutions
proposed, is centained in a separate
document and is available on the Group’s
website, watkinjonesplc.com.
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Q&A:

Governance

Rachel Addison

“Across the business, there is a
sense of pride in the Company
and in the developments it

delivers.”

Rachel Addison
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appainted 1 April 2022

Financiai statements

What initially attracted you to
Watkin Jones?

Tell us about your induction
programme.

It is always easier ¢ leel an affinity for a
company il you can relate to what it makes
and, at its heart. Watkin Jones creates
homes, | was impressed by the quality

of its developments and the amenities it
provides — both have a direct impact on
people’s quality of life. | was also struck
by how much of a community these
developments can create, through their
design and in the way they are managed.

The fact that the business provides places
to live at a time when the UK is suffering

a significant shortage of decent housing,
while coniributing to the regeneration of
‘urban areas, also appealed to me,

From a corparate perspective, | reaily
like: the business model ~ it's unigue,
clever and a differentiating factor, The
capital-light approach means that the
Company has de-risked a large element
of its cash outflaw as it generally only

- builds developmenis once they have been
forward sold. Watkin Jones builds quality
assets and cultivates strong relatipnships
with institutions who value what it delivers.

| had met the Non-Executive Directors,

as well as Richard Simpson and Sarah
Sergeant, during the interview process,
which gave me a good insight into both
the business and the dynarnic of the
Board. As I was taking over as Chair of

the Audit Committee, | met KPMG. our
internal auditor, and Deloitte. aur external
auditor, as wefl as the wider Finance team
at aur Chester office. t was very tortunate
to have had an excellent handover as well
as valuable guidance from Simon Laffin,
the previous Audit Commitiee Chair, who
nad played such animportant part in the
stewardship of Watkin Jones untif his
retirement from the Board. As part of my
wider induction process, | mét all members
of the Exécutive Commitiee, as well as the
Company brokers, and visited three of aur
construction sites.

{ was incredibly impressed with everyone
I met. Acrass ihe business, there is &
sense of pride in the Campany and in the
developrnents it delivers. The employees |
met on site were particularly proud of the
focus the business places on health and
safety and its slrang track record in this
area. The quality of their build process and
the innovation taking place to streamline
the construction process and enhance the
buildings’ interior and exterior design also
stood out. . o
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What are your impressions of the
Board since you joined?

This is a very collaborative Board and

t think we work well together. 1t hasn't

been the easiest of years, particularly
given external market volatility factors
outside management’s control. which
impacted the Company towards the end of
September. But l've been impressed by the
commitmeni of the Board as a collective

in ensuring that the Company's underlying
operations remain strong.

Both management and Lhe Board have
been transparent and thoughtfut in
addressing ihe challenges presented
during recent months which has lsd o
some really good discussions. ,




Quoted-Companies Alliance (QCA)
Corporate-Governance Code
The Company adopted the QCA Code on the basis that it is the corporate governance code most svited to the requirvements and size of

the business. Set cut below is a summary of how we have complied with the ten principles of the QCA Code during the year and where to
find further information.

Approach

01

Establish a strategy and
business model which
promote long-term value
for shareholders

02

Seek to understand and
meet shareholder needs
and expectations

03

Take into account wider
stakeholder and social
responsibilities and
their implications for
fong-term success to
promote long-term value
for shareholders

04

Embed effective risk
management, considering
both opportunities and
threats, throughout the
arganisation

05

Maintain the Board
as a well-functioning,
balanced team led by
the Chair

86

« Qurstrategy is to detiver sustainable growth as a leading develuper and manager of residential for rent aasets
in the UK. Qur strategic objectives are based on growth, operational excellence and responsible oparations.

« Qur business madel uses a capital-light forward sale model to minimise risk and provide clear visibility on
future revenues.

+ Seepages 17 to 19 for details of our strategic progress during the year and pages 8 and 3 for details of our
business model.

« In November 2021 we held a capital markets day for investors. Our Executive Directors held calls and
maetings with shareholders folkowing our halt-year rasults, full-year resuits and trading updates. Having taken
an the role of Chair in Octaber 2021, Alan Gidding met with major shareholders. We held anin-person AGM to
which shareholders were invited.

« Operating responsibly is a Key strand of our strategy. Our sirategic framewark, Future Foundations, helps us
manage our approach to ESG initiatives based around three themes - our people, our places and our planet.

* During the year, we introduced our diversity charter and partnered with Women Inte Construction. We aiso
partnered with Tatent Tap, a social mobility charily, to launch our employee volunteering programme. See our
sustainability report on pages 52 to 70 for more infurmation.

» Details of our rigk management procesees and our principal risks are set out on pagas 40 to 51
« We have identified our principal risks and considered the level of risk the Board is willing 1o accept to achieve
the Group's business cbiectives.

« The Board comprises the Non-Exacutive Chair, three Executive Directors and three independent
Non-Executive Directors. Biographies of the Directors can be found on pages 80 and 81.

= The Non-Executive Directors are considered by the Board to be independent of management and free
from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement in accordance wita the QCA Code.

« The Chair and Chief Executive Officer have separate, clearly defined roles. The Chair is responsible for
leading the Board and for ensuring the Board operates effectively. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for setting and implementing the Group's strategy, for leading and developing the executive team and for
managing the Group's day-to-day operations, taking account of the objectives, policies and risk appetita set
oy the Board.
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06

Ensure that hetween
them the Directors
have the necessary
up-to-date experience,
skills and capabilities

074

Evaluate Board
performance based on clear
and relevant objectives,
seeking continuous
improvement

08

Promate a culture that
is based on ethical values
and behaviours

0Q

Maintain governance
structures and processes
that are fit for purpose
and support good
decision-making by

the Board

10

Communicate how the
Company is governed

and is performing by
maintaining a dialogue
with shareholders and
other relevant stakeholders

Governance

Financial statements Company infermation

Approach

During 2022, we recruited ane Executive Director and two Non-Executive Directors 1o the Board. A detailed
profile of the experience, skills and capabilities needed for each role was agreed by the Nomination
Committee to énsure the Board was sullicienlly balanced and had the approprigte expertice.

The Board received training on new legisiation as well as market updates during the year.

An irternal Board effectiveness review was carried out during the year. Detalls of the cutcome of this review
can be found on pages 83 and 84. The Board intends to conduct an external review in FY23,

Cur corpaorata cuiture — what gur values are and how we behave - is integral to the success of the Company.
A key theme of our Future Foundatlons framewark is lu create an engaged and motivated workforce that acts
with the highest standards of ethics and integrity. We canducted our second annual employee engagement
survey during the year, with themes around leadership and inspiration, realising potential, motivation and
health and wellbeing. For more details, please see page 57 of our sustainability report.

The Group has suitable and robust governance strugtures and policies in place.

Our Board is equally balanced betwaen Executive Directors and independent Non-Executive Directors,
excluding tha Chair. The Board has a defined schedule of matters reserved toit. We have a delegated
authorittes matrix which sets out limits and autharities for approving a number of matters; this is reviewed
annually by the Board to ensure it remains appropriate.

Cnly the Non-Executive Directors are members of the Board committees, aithough the CEQ and CFO are
invited to attend meetings where appropriate to assist with the matters discussed.

In Navember 2021 we held a capital markats day for investors. Qur Executive Directors hald calis and
meaetings with shareholders following our half-year resuits, full-year results and trading updates.

See pages 72 to 75 for details of how we engaged with our stakeholders during the year,
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Audit Committee report

Commitiee members:

Rachel Addison
{member from 1 April 2022 and Chair
from 1 August 2022)

Alan Giddins
Liz Reilly

Francis Salway
(from 10 October 2022)

Grenvilie Turner (to 12 October 2021)
Simon Laffin (Chair to 31 July 2022)

The Chair of the Company is a

member of the Committee. The Board
considered this appropnate as

there were only two independent
Non-Executive Birectors for the majcrity
of the year. Alan Giddins possesses
extensive business experience and

_ knowledge of financial markets which

enables him 1o pldy a full and Valuable
role on the Committee. The composition
of the Committee will be kept under
review during FY23.

The CEQ, CF0, the external audit
engagement partner, the internal
auditor and other members of senior
management are invited to attend
Committee meetings as necessary.
The Secretary to the Committee is
Kerry Watson, Company Secretary.

External auditor: Deleitte LLP (since
2022)
Internal auditor: KPMG (since 2018)

88

Rachel Addison

Committee responsibilities

+

QOverseeing the accounting principles,
policies and practices adopted by the
Company.

QOverseeing the external financial
reporting and associated
announcements,

Qverseeing the appointment,
independence, effectiveness and
remuneration of the Company’s external
auditor, including the supply of non-audit
services.

Reviewing and challenging the risk
identification and mitigaticn precesses.
Meonitoring the quality of the Company's
internal controls.

Ensuring the establishment and oversight
of fraud prevention arrangements and
reports under the whistieblowing policy.
Liaising with and reviewing the
work of the Group’s internal and -
external auditors.

Providing advice to the Board on
whether the annual report and accounts,
when taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides all the
necessary information for shareholders
to assess the Campany's performance,
business model and strategy.

" "the Board-

Chair of the Audit Cornmittee

The Commitiee met nine times in FY22,
with meetings generally timed to cecincide
with the financial and reporting cycles

of the Company. Attendance at these
meetings is set out in the table on page 82.

The Committee meets with the external
auditers without management being
present at least twice a year. The Chair of
the Committee speaks individually with the
internal and the external auditors before
every scheduled Audit Committee meeting
to ensure that all appropriate matters are
natified to the Committee and members.
The Chair of the Committee also holds
regular meetings with the CFO (who has
responsibility and custody of the internal
control frarework).

The Chair reporis to the Board on
Committee proceedings after each
meeting. Committee papers and minutes
are made available to all members of

The Board is satisfied that the Chair of the
Committee has the necessary recent and
relevant financial experience to chair the
Audit Cammittge.
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Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the Audit
Committee report for FY22. The Commitiee
has an impeortant role W play in providing
independent oversight and safeguarding
shareholders’ interests. In fulfilling this role,
we considered the following matters during
the year.

Risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for
determining the nature and extent of its
principal and emerging risks and the

extent of the Company's appetite, and

for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company's system of risk management
and internal control. The Committee
ensures effective and sufficient coverage of
financial reporting risks with the Company's
risk management process.

The Company's principal risks are
summarised on pages 42 to 49. The Beard
has identified the Company’s risk appetite
in relaticn to each of those risks and this
position is reviewed annually at a joint
meeting of the Board and Audi Committee.

Management continued to apply the
‘bow-tie’ methodology 1o manage its
principal risks.

Governance

Financial statements

It used the methcdology to analyse risk
scenarios, identify pracess barriers

to reduce the probability of the event
crystallising, and identify ways to reduce
the consequences should the event occur.

The executive team conducted deep

dives on each of the risks to consider
those mechanisms and agree actions to
improve them further. The output was then
presented to the Committee for discussion
in Decermber 2022. The Committee
approved the risk profile.

The internal control framework and its
effectiveness are discussed on page 84.

Internal audit

The internal audit function was outsourced
to KPMG in January 2018. KPFMG's role as
internal auditer is to provide independent
and gbjective assurance to the Committee
and senior management on matters set out
in the internal audit plan.

The internal audit engagement partner
attends all scheduled meetings of the
Committee and further meetings with the
Committee Chair without management
present.

During the year, KPMG presented
the infernal audit plan and resourcing
requirermnents.

Company information

The Committee received updates on
pragress againat the plan, which included
a summary of results of any completed
audits and any changes to the plan.
Internal audit reports were provided by
KPMG in relation to whistleblowing and
code of condugt, cyber security, inventory
management and accounts receivable.
Recommendations in relation to those
areas were accepted.

The Commities closely monitors
management’s response to actiens
identified in the reports. It also monitors
open actions to ensure management are
supported to progress these in a timely
manner. In addition, KPMG reviews the
effectiveness of the implementation of
recommended improved controls and
reports to the Committee on their findings.

The effectiveness of KPMG was assessed
during thea year, taking into account the
audit plan, the rmechanisms in place for
escalating issues to senicr management
or the Cormmitige, their objectivity and
independence, the quality and clarity

of their reports, the credibility of their
recommendations, the resources at their
disposal and value for money.

Having considered those factors,

the Committee confirmed that it was
satisfied with the effectiveness of KPMG
as internal auditor.

Significant accounting risks and judgements made in the annual financial statements
As a Cormmittee, we reviewed the key accounting matters with reference to areas of higher risk, areas that would have the most sign:ficant
potential impact on performance and areas involving significant judgement:

Revenue recognition

Astlon

We considered the estimates and assurnptions vade by

The Company enters into long-term comracts to develop
properties. Recognition v of Iong—term contract revenue and protit
is. made on a percentage completion basis. Various assumphons
are made within the development appraisals when determining
the periad in which revenue should be recognised. For forward
soid developments, the amount recognised is dependent on

the estimatad costs to complete. There is a risk that the amount
recogrised is incorrect if the estimated costs to complete

are inaccurate.

_Dlsposal of !easehold propertles
During the year, the Group disposed of its interast if two
feasehold properties for net proceeds of £7.9 million. The
combined right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were in a net

. liability position of £10.4 millicn. The net impact of the disposal of
the properties was a credit to the operating profit of £18.3 million.
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management and were 2atiaficd that tho process and controls in
place around the estimates of coats ta comploto wore robust.

Deloitte confirmed that they had evaluated the etfectiveness

of key contrals arcund the stage of completion for revenue
recognition on ongoing PBSA and BTR developments.

They summarised the work undertaken to challenge revenue,
including substantive testing of key inputs and assumptions to the
centract assessments and attendance at divisianal pérformance
review meetings, and noted no significant issues.

The Committes considered the accounting treatinent and

the quallly ol eanings associated with the tranaaotion.

We acknowledged that the disposal was within the normal course
of busingss and had been scid as part of a portfolio togothor with
three studenl develupinents.

We cancur with management’s assessment that the accounting
treatment was correct under IFRS 16 and that the disposal should
not be treated as an exceptional item.
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Audit Committee report continued

Significant accounting risks and judgements made in the annual financial statements continued

) Remediation costs in relation to legacy properties
Tne Company took a provision in relatian to fire safety

. remediation costs under the newly implemented Building Safety
Act at the half year. This was in addition to the cladding provision
of £15 million taken in 2020 in respanse to revised government
guidance on the suitability of certain ¢ladding solutions, £3 million

" of which remained at the year end).

. This i a highly complex area with judgements and estimates
in respect of the cost of remedial works, the methodology
to be used in agreeing remedial solutions, and the extent of
thasa properties within the scope of applicable guidance and
legislation. Government guidance and industry regulation
continue {o 2volve. T = :

Land and work in progress valuation .

The valuation of inventories requires significant judgement

by management over anticipated revenues and forecast

development costs. There is a risk that the carrying value of the

land and werk in progress balances reported within inventories
" are overstated.

" Impairment testing for leased investment properties
This encompasses four legacy student accommadation assets
that were sold and leased back. Assumptions relate to discount
rates, investment yields and aperating income (taking into
account occupancy rates, inceme inflation and cost inflation).

No impairment was proposed for FY22 by managernent.

"Impairment testing for intangible assets relating ™ °
to Fresh

The Group halds intangible assets relating to Fresh of £2.3 million
in customer relationships, £0.2 millian in brand and £4./ million in

goodwili. No impairment was proposed for FY22 by managemeht.

g0

Action

The Company took a provision of £30.4 million in the year,
e relalion to fire safety remediation costs under the newly
imptemented BulldIing Safety Act.

We accepted the views of managemsnt that the passing of the
Building Safety Act had exposed the Group to additional liabilities
such that the IAS 37 criteria for recognising a provision had been
met, albeit the extent of liabilities required a level of judgement
and estimatlon.

We challenged management's assessment of the scape of
buildings covered by the Building Safety Act and the assumptions
applied to determinge remediation costs. We also considered the
appropriateness of presenting these costs as an exceptional item,
ncting that the 2020 cladding provision had been treated in e
same way. The combined total unutilised provision at the year end
is £334 million,

We are satisfied with the approach of assessing and quantifying
the provisicn and the accounting treatment thereof.

The Committee reviewed the Company’s clear accounting
pollcles for hese valualivns, We ieduction &f FisK In the 3aie price
by using a forward sale model, and the output from tho audit
activitias of Uslolne, Including thelr assessimnent g valuabivig of
the Group’s developimenl siles hal had nol been forward sold.

The Committee was satisfied with the judgements made.

The Committee reviewed the assumptions made by management,
noling thal.

occupancy rates had increased post-COVID and the rates

assumed by management are considered appropriate;

* management considered it to be appropriately prudent to
maintain discount rates at the same level as [ast year; and

* adownside scenario sensitising discount rates continued to
show headroom.

We are satisfied with the position, as reported by management,

that no impairment is required.

The Comimitlee revigwed the assumptons made By managernenl

as part of the impairment assessment, noting that:

* the forecasts, terminal value and discount rate assumptions
adopted by management in assessing the recoverable value of
goodwill appear reasonable, with substantial headroom; and

s sensitivities applied to this analysis over revenue, discount rate

and termins| FRIT continue to shaw headreom,

No indicators of impairment existed at the year end for either the

customer relationship or brand assets.
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External audit

Deloitte was appointed as the Company’s
external auditor immediately following the
signing of the FY22 financial statements.
This appointment was appraved by
shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

The Cormmittee and the Finance team
reviewed the performance of Deloitte,
looking at the audit scope, the cost
effectiveness and the general performance,
and concluded that it had provided

an effective service in its first year.

The Committee and the Board concluded
that the firm was independent and
continued to have the necessary level

of objectivity.

The Committee approved Deloitte's
audit fees, which were in line with those
praposed during the audit tender.

Non-audit services

The Company’s policy on non-audit
services was last updated in 2020 to

take account of the FRC's Revised

Ethical Standards. Whilst not specifically
applicable to AlM-listed companies,

the Audit Committee has decided that it
wishes to follow the principle provided

for in the European Audit Regulation and
Directive, and has get a limit to the amount
of fees which may be incurred in any

one year for non-audit services. Fees for
non-audit services may not exceed 70% of
the average of the Group's statutory audit
fees over the previcus three years.

Deloitte did no chargeable work for
the Company other than the audit and
hali-year review.

Consideration of the final year-end
audit report

The Committee reviewed the external
auditor's plans for the full-year audit and
then met with Delgcitte and reviewed their
report on the year-end results {see pages
105 to 111). Reporting materiality,

which was set by the auditor at 5% of
adjusted profit before tax and one-off
items, equated to £2.4 million, with audit
differences over £0.1 million reperted to the
Committee.

Governance

Annual report and

financial statements

The Committee reviewed the annual
report and other financial statements
during the year to ensure that they were
fair, balanced and understandable. [t then
recommended those reports to the Board
for approval.

Going concern statement

The Committee reviewed the going
concern statement set out on pages 50
and 51 and confirmed its satisfaction

with the methodaology, including the
appropriateness of sensitivity testing.

The Committee debated pessible downside
scenarios and how the Board would react
to various circumstances. The Committee
recommended the Board accept the going
cancern statement.

Other matters considered by

the Committee

Dividends:

The Committes reviewed the propesed
interim and final dividends, the capacity
of the Company to pay such dividends
{rom distributable reserves and its
appropriateness, and recommended their
payment to the Board.

Whistleblowing:

The Committee reviewed the Company’s
whistleblowing arrangements. Details

of any calls received to the external
whistleblowing hotline, as well as matters
raised through other channels, are
reported to the Commitiee. In order to
satisfy itself as to the effectiveness of the
whistleblowing arrangements and the
culture of the Cornpany, the Committee
requested that questions be added to
the employee engagement survey as

to whether employees knew how to

raise concerns and whether they felt

safe to speak up if they had concerns,
Both received strong scores.

Unit-based annual bonus:

The Cammittee approved the payment of
the unit-based annual bonus, applicable
to those below senior management. The
bonus scheme is based on forecast Group
profit for the year and has historically been
paid in December before the accounts

are signed off, This is a legacy scheme,
which is widely regarded as a Christmas
bonus, and management believes that it

is important to pay it in December rather
than wait until January when the accounts
are approved. The Committee received an
interim update from the external auditor
and from management indicating that the
audit was advanced and progressing well.
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Company information

The Cornmittee approved the profit
estimate for use in this bonus. The impact
of any likely error in the profit forecast

on the bonus is unlikely to be material,
given the scaling and size cf the bonus
scheme. This scheme is not open to senior
executives or Directors {whose bonus
scheme is approved only after the accounts
have been finalised).

Performance and terms

of reference

The Committee’s performance was
considered as part of the Board evaluation
process described on pages 83 and 84.
Feegback showed that the Committee was
felt to be operating well. The Committee
alsa self-assessed its performance,

noting that consideration be given to
increasing the frequency of formalised

risk management agenda and certain
policy discussions at the Board, and the
consequential reduction in frequency of
Audit Committee meetings.

A copy of the Commitiee’s terms of
reference is available on the Company’s
website at watkinjonesplc.com/investors/
carporate-governance. No changes were
proposed during the year.

Looking forward

As weil as the regular cycle of matters that
the Committee schedules for consideration
each year, we plan over the next

12 months to:

* continue 1o monitor legislative and
regulatory changses that may impact the
work of the Committee;

consider the impact of the proposed
audit industry changes;

= consider a range of topics for
Committee training; and

review the dosumented framework for
key control procedures and palicies
formalised in the Company’s Finance
Manual.

-

Rachel Addison
Chair ot the Audit Committee

25 January 2023
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Nomination Committee report

Committee members:

Alan Giddins (Chair)

Liz Reilly

Rachel Addison (from 1 April 2022)

Francis Salway (from 10 October 2022)

Grenville Turner (1o 12 October 2021)

Simaon Laffin (to 31 July 2022)

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
People Officer and other exscutives

are invited to attend Committee
meetings, as appropriate. The Secretary
to the Committee is Kerry Watson,
Company Secretary.

Committee responsibilities

Alan Giddins

Dear Shareholder

The appeintment and retention of talented
individuals is key to the success of the
Group. This report explains the work of the
Committee during the financial year.

Board composition

In last year's annuat repart, | indicated that
the Committee would be reviewing the
size and shape of the Beard during FY22
to ensure it had the appropriate level of
diverse thinking and experience to best
serve the Group. In particular, 1 noted that
we would evaluate the appointment of an
additicnal Non-Executive Director with
relevant property expertise, and that this
may give rise t¢ an increase in-the number
of Board members.

During the year, the Committee considered:

s succession planning for the Chair
of the Audit Committee following

The Committee is respansible for
succession planning and appointments

at Board level, oversight of appointments
and succession planning at the Executive
Committee and making recommendations
to the Board on the compaosition of

Board committees.

In FY22, the Committee met on
three occasions.

92

Board, recommending the appointment
of Rachel Addisen in April 2022
{subsequently confirmed as Chair of the
Audit Commitiee from 1 August 2022);
and

Simon Laffin's decision to retire from the —-

Chair of the Nomination Committee

» the experience, size and balance of the
Board, subsequently recommending the
appointment to the Boaard of Alex Pease,
the Group's Chief lnvestment Officer,
and Francis Salway, as an indepeadent
Non-Executive Directer, both with effect
fram Cciober 2022.

Appointment of Chair of the

Audit Committee

During the year, Simaon Laffin indicated that
he would retire from the Beard as Chair

of the Audit Committee and independent
Nen-Executive Director, having been a
Board member since 2016,

The process for identifying a new
Audit Committee Chair commenced
with the agreement of a detailed brief
for the role and objective criteria against
which candidates would be assessed.
The Committee identified the following
as key candidate criteria: wide-ranging

leadership skills, strong commercial
experience with notable financial and risk
management acumen, and experience of
sitting on the board of a I'sted company.
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Tenure - as at January 2023 Experien_c:e - as at January 2023

® 0-2 years
® 3-5 years

® 5+ years

0

Having received positive feedback from
candidates and the Committee following
the selection process for the Chair rcle in
2021, Teneo (formerly Ridgeway Partners)
was engaged to conduct a search for
suitable candidales against these criteria.
While the focus would be on appointing
the best candidate, Teneo was asked tc
give specific consideration to female and
ethnically diverse candidates.

Shortlisted candidates were interviewed
by Liz Reilly and me, following which two
candidates met with Richard Simpson
and Sarah Sergeant. Rachel Addison was
the preferred candidate based on her
relevant experience as a listed company
CFQ, listed Board experience (including
as Audit Committee Chair) and cultural
fit. The Committee’s recommendation

to the Board was accepted and Rachel
was appainted as an independent
Non-Executive Birecter in April 2022,
thereby allowing for a suitable handover
period with Siman Laffin. Upon Simon’s
retirement in July 2022, Rachel assumed
the role of Chair of the Audit Committee.

Appointment of an additional
Executive Director

Alex Pease joined the Group in 2010,
taking on the role of Group Investment
Director in 2013 befora being appointed
as Chief Investment Officer in 2021.
Alex is also a member of the Group
Executive Committee.

Having reviewed the long-term strategy
of the Group, and reflecting on the
critical role which Alex plays as Chief
Investment Officer, the Beard felt that it
was appropriate to appoint Alex Pease
to the Board as an Executive Director.
The Committee has also put in place a
persconal development plan to support
Alex's continued development.

The Board approved the recommendation
of the Committee and Alex was appaointed
to the Board in October 2022.

® Property

e Finance/
Accounting

» Retail
2

# Strategy
8

o HR
1

Appointment of an

additional independent
Non-Executive Director

The Commitiee considered that it would
be beneficial to bring additional property
expertise ontc the Board, while also noting
the need, in the event of Alex Pease being
appointed to the Beard, to regain an equal
balance between Executive Directors and
independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Committee agreed a detailed brief

for the role and objective criteria against
which ¢candidates would be assessed,
identifying the following as the two key
candidate criteria: current or very recent
senior executive experience in the property
sector and an understanding of the
evolving ESG agenda. Teneo was engaged
to conduct a search for suitable candidates
against these criteria. While the focus
would be on appointing the best candidate,
Teneo was asked to give specific
consideration to female and ethnically
diverse candidates.

A shertlist of candidates was interviewed
by Liz Reilly, Rachel Addison and me.
Francis Salway was the stand-out
candidate, having previously been Chief
Executive Officer of Land Securities PLC.
As part of the process, Francis also met
with Richard Simpseon. The Committee
subsequently recommended the
appointment of Francis to the Board.,

The Board accepted this recommendation
and Francis was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director in
October 2022.

Succession planning

In additicn to succession planning at
Board level, the Committee focused on
succession planning at the Executive
Committee level. While this review showed
that there was good cover for a numnber of
roles, it &lso highlighted the importance of
developing the next generation of senior
leaders within the business.

Watkin Jones plc | Annual report and financial statements 2022

Company information

Gender - as at January 2023

® Female

» Male

a

Considerations for FY23

The Gommittee will continue to focus over
the next 12 months cn the experience,
skills and composition of the Board and
Executive Committee, with a particular
focus on longer-term Board succession,
and reviewing the personat development
plans for each of the Executive
Committee members,

In previous years, the Committee
considered it appropriate for the Company
Chair to be a member of the Audit
Committee given the small size of the
Board. We will keep this under review

in FY23, noting that we now have three
independent Non-Executive Directors but
acknowledging that two of these three are
recent appointments to the Board.

Diversity

The Cammitiee recognises the ethical and
business benefits of diversity and, as set
out in our ESG report, diversity is one of
the central strands of our Future People
proposition. We have continued to improve
the gender diversity of the Board, ending
the year with three female (43%) and four
{57%) male Board members. Whils we have
good gender and ethnic diversity across
the Group, women and BAME employees
remain under-represented at senior levels.
We have joined Women Into Construction,
an organisation that promotes gender
equality within the construction industry,
and the Committee will work with

the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
People Officer to look for ways 1o enhance
all aspects of diversily across the Group.

Alan Giddins
Chair of the Nemination Committee

25 January 2023
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Directors’ remuneration report

Committee members:

Liz Reilly {Chair)

Alan Giddins

Rachel Addison (from t April 2022)

Francis Salway (from 10 October 2022}

Grenville Turner (to 12 October 2021)

Simon Laffin (to 31 July 2022)

The CEQ, the Chief People Officer
and the remuneration consultant

are invited to attend Committee
meetings as hecessary. The Secretary
to the Committee is Kerry Watson,
Company Secretary.

Remuneration consultant: FIT
Remuneration Consultants LLP

94

Liz Reilly

Committee responsibilities

Determines the Company’s

remuneration policies to support its
strategy and promote its long-term
sustainable success.

Reviews the performance of the
Executive Directors.

Determines the terms and conditions of
service for Executive Directors.
Determines the remuneration of the Chair
and the Executive Commiittee.

During FY22, the Committee met five times.

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Activities during the year

L

Approved an increase in fees for the
Chair and salaries for the Executive
Directors and Executive Committee.
Approved the remuneration package for
Alex Pease, appointed as an Executive
Directar on 10 October 2022.

Reviewed the FY21 Directors’
remuneration report prior to its approval
by the Board and subsequent approval
by shareholders at the 2022 AGM.
Reviewed perfermance against the FY21
annugzl bonus plan targets and resulting
awards and agreed the metrics and
targets for the FY22 bonus plan.
Reviewed LTIP award levels and
performance metrics/targets for the 2022
LTiP award.

Approved the vesting of the 2019 LTIP
award.

= ~— — = ~—e~Reviewed the remuneration approach—— —— ~—————— -

for senior management in the context of
increased competition within the sector.
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Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased

to present our Directors’ remuneration
report for FY22. 1t sets out the Group's
remuneration policy for the Directors and
explains how this policy was applied during
the year.

The principles underpinning our
remuneration policy have not changed.
Our policy is designed to:

= attract, retain and motivate executive
management of the quality required to
run the Company;

+ incentivise and fairly reward
our Executive Directors and the
other members of the Executive
Commitiee; and

* support the Company’s strategy
and promote its long-term
sustainable success,

Pay and performance in FyY22

The Company's profit outturn for FY22

was lower than expected, principally due
to the macroeconomic uncertainty and
rising interest rates during the second

half of the year which led institutional
investors to withdraw from the forward
fund market. All self-build schemes
scheduled for delivery were completed on
time, however, and we continued to make
good progress in growing our development
pipeline. Qur future revenue pipeline stood
at £2 billign at the financial year end, up
from £1.8 billion in the prior year and our
highest total to date. Adjusted profit before
tax (PBT) was £48.8 millien (FY21 adjusted:
£51.1 million), 2 decrease of 4.5%, and
adjusted EPS was 14.9 pence (FY21
adjusted: 16.4 pence}, a reduction of 9.1%.

Annual bonus for FY22

The annual bonus was based 70% on
sliding scale profit targets, 15% on the
achievermnent of personal performance
objectives and 15% on the achievement of
ESG objectives. Following an assessment
of the targets, the Committee determined
bonus awards of 30.29% of salary, 20.79%
of salary and 28.04% of safary for Richard
Simpson, Sarah Sergeant ang Philip Byrom
respectively.

As Philip Byrom remained an employee
of the business until June 2022, he
was eligible to receive an annual bonus
for FY22, pro rated to take account

of the cbjectives achieved over the
period worked.

Governance

While the Committee noted that the
threshold financial targets had been

rmet and geod progress had been made
on persaonal and ESG objectives, it

also considered the wider stakeholder
experience, in particular the recent deferral
of two significant forward sales which had
a material impact on profitability for FY22.

As a resuft, the Committee concluded that
rather than award the bonuses in cash, it
would be appropriate to defer the bonus
awards into shares for a pericd of 12
meonths.

Long-term incentives for FY22
Awards under the Leng Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) granted in 2020 are measured
with reference to the Company’s growth in
earnings per share (EPS) measured over
the three years to 30 September 2022 and
absolute total shareholder return (TSR}
measured over the three years from grant.
Each measure makes up 50% of the award.
As a result of a below-threshold EPS and
TSR currently well betow the threshold,
0% vesting is currently expected.

Board changes

Details of the Board changes during

the year, including the appointment of
Alex Pease as an Executive Director

in October 2022, are set out on page 79.

Further details of the remuneration
decisions in respect of FY22 are set out
in the annual report on remuneration on
pages 97 10 100.

Wider employee and environmental
considerations

The Committee reviews arrangements
across the Group when considering
remuneration decisions in respect of
Executive Directors. The Committee also
reviews a range of information on pay,
bonuses, benefits, diversity, equality

of pay and culture. During the year,

the Committee:

« noted the intention of the Company to
pay a living wage to all employees;

received proposals for base pay

increases across the business against

the backdrop of the cost of living crisis.

It supportied management’s intention to

increase the salaries of those paid below

market median by a higher percentage

than the general workforce increase;

» considered salary increases for the
Executive Directors; and

s reviewed, as part of the Board,

the output of Your Vaice,

a Company-wide employee engagement

survey, and progress on diversity and

inclusion within the organisation.
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Implementing the remuneration
policy for FY23

In respect of the remuneration policy
for FY23:

= the sataries for the CEQ and CFO were
increased by 5% from 1 October 2022
to £413,273 and £315,000 respectively.
This compared to a range of 4% to 7.5%
across the wider workforce.

s the GIQO's salary, following his promoticn

to the Board in October 2022, was set

at £300,000.

pension will continue &t 7% of salary

for the CFO and CI1O. The Committee is

currently reviewing the CEQ's pension

provision at 20% of salary with a view

to reducing pension cantributions

to 7% of salary. This is part of a

wider review of Richard Simpson's

remuneration package to ensure it is

appropriately aligned to the marke?.

The Committee intends to consult major

shareholders during FY23 in respect of

any proposed changes.

*» annual bonus will continue to be capped
at 100% of salary and will be made up of
75% financial targets, with the remalinder
facused on personal performance (15%)
targets and ESG targets (10%).

« LTIP awards are expected to be granted
in January 2023. Noting shareholdes
proxy feedback and market practice
in this regard, refative TSR will replace
absolute TSR. As such, the 2023 LTIP
awardls are expected to be based 50%
on EPS and 50% on relative TSR,

The Committee will continue tc keep the
remunieration policy and the way it is
operated under review to ensure it aligns
the objectives of the Executive Dirgctors
with stakeholders and delivers the
desired outcames.

Liz Reilty
Chair of the Rernuneration Committee

25 January 2023
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration policy
The Remuneration Committee considers the remuneration policy annually to ensure that it continues ta underpin the Group’s strategy.
The main aim of the Group's policy for Executive Directors is to align their interests with the Group's growth strategy and long-term

creation of sustainable shareholder value.

Summary of Directors’ remuneration policy

Base salary

Benefits

Pension

Annual bonus

LTIP

Shareholding
guidelines

Non-Executive
Directors

96

To provide a competitive
base salary to atiract,
motivate and retain
Directors with the
experience and
capabilities to achieve
the strategic aims.

To provide a
market-competitive
benefits package.

To provide an appropriate
level of retirement benefit,

To reward perfarmance
against annual targets
which suppart the strategic
direction of the Group.

Te drive and reward the
achievement of longer-term
objectives, support
retention and promote
share ownership for
Exgcutive Directors.

To promote share ewnership
for Execulive Directors.

The Commitiee determines
the Chair's fee and fees for

Reviewed annually after consrdenng

pay levels at comparably sized listed
campanies and sectar peers,; the
performance, role, skills, experience

and responsibility of each Director, the
econemic climate, market conditions and
the Company's performance; and the level
of pay across the Group as a whole.

Offered in line with market practice,
and may include a car allowance,
private medical, income protection
and death in service insurance.

Executive Directors are eligible to
participate in the Group's defined
contribution personal pension plan
and may elect to receive all or part

of the pension contribution in cash,
provided there is no difference in cost
ta the Company.

Awards are based on annual performance
and are normally payable in cash.

Conditional shares and/or nil cast or
naminal cost share cpticns. Vesting is
normally subject to the achievernent of
challenging performance conditions,
normally ever a period of three years.
Dividend equivalents may be awarded to
the extent awards vest. Awards may be
subject to malus/clawback provisions at
the discretion of the Commitiee.

Executive Direciors are expected to build
a shareholding in the Group aver time by
retaining at least 50% of the net-of-tax
LTIP awards which vest.

Fees are reviewed annually taking into
account the level of responsibility and

the Non-Executive Direciors —-relevant experience. Fees may include a.

are agreed by the Chair and
Chief Executive Qfficer.

basic fee and additional fees for further
responsibilities. Fees are paid in cash.
Travel and other reasonabie expenses
ingurred in the course of performing their
duties arg reimbursed.

nfa

7% of salary for
new and recently
appeointed

Executive Directors.

100% of salary

200% of salary

200% of salary

n/a

n/a

n/a

Financial, personal,
strategic andifor
ESG targets.

Financial, share
price, strategic

and/or ESG targets.

n/a

n/a

A m m ———— -

e—— —
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Annual report on remuneration

Implementation of the remuneration policy for FY23
The tabte below sets out how the Committee intends to operate the remuneration policy in FY23.

Base salary

Benefits

Pension

Annual bonus

LTiP

Shareholding
guidelines.

Non-Executive
Director fees

Base salary tevels for the CEO and CFO were increased by 5% from 1 October 2022 in line with the workforce to £413,273
and £315,000 respectively. The ClO's salary, tollowing his promation to the Board in October 2022, was set at £300,000.

There were no material changes to benefit provision during the year.

The CFO and CIO will continue to receive a pension contribution of 7% of salary. The Committee is currently reviewing
the CEQ's pension provision at 20% of salary as pari of a wider review of Richard Simpson’s remuneration package.
The Committee intends to consult major shareholders during FY23 in respect of reducing pensicn contributions to 7%
of salary.

The maximum potential will continue 1o be capped at 100% of salary based on sliding scale financial targets (7594),
personal performance largets (15%) and ESG targets (10%).

LTIP awards are expected to be granted during FY23 to the CEO over shares worth up to 200% of salary and ta the CFO
and CiO over shares werth up to 100% of salary. Noting shareholder/proxy feedback and market practice in this regard,
the 2023 LTIP awards are expected to be based 50% on EPS and 50% on relative TSR.

Sharehoiding guidelines of 200% of salary will continue to apply.
The fees for the Non-Executive Directors were ingreased by 3% from 1 October 2022, below the increase for the wider

warkforce. As such, the current fee for Alan Giddins is £139,133. The current fees for Liz Reilly and Rachel Addison are
£57,900 and the current fee for Francis Salway, who does not chair a Board committee, is £49,440.

Single total figure of remuneration for FY22
In the year to 30 September 2022, the Directors received the following emoluments:

Richard Simpson’
Sarah Sergeant?
Alan Giddins?

Liz Reilly

Rachel Addisan?
Simon Laffin®
Philip Byrom™#®

Grenville Turner’

NOWU s WR o

393,593 382,500 119,219 309,347 78,719 78,500 17,332 16,388 608,863 784735

295,769 - 89,370 - 11,123 — 16,520 — 412,782 -
133,009 11,2086 - - - - - — 133,009 1,206
56,215 54,631 - — — - - - 56,215 54,631
28,108 - = - - - — - 28,108 —
46,846 54,631 - - - - - - 46,846 54,631

196,988 262,550 55,235 208,478 19,699 26,265 18,7858 18,316 200,708 516,709

4,040 131,325 - - - - = — 4,040 131,325

The LTIP awards granted to Richard Simpsen and Philip Byrom in June 2020 are expected o lapse in fultin June 2623.

. Appointed ta the Board an 6 Qctoper 2021,

. Appointad to the Board as MNon-Executive Director on 19 tuly 2021 and as Chair with effect from 12 Cctober 2021,

. Appointed to the Board on 1 Apri 2022,

. Retired from the Board on 31 July 2022.

. Retired from the Board on 11 November 2021. Figures relate to the period for which Phil Byrom was emplayed by the Group.
. Reured from the Board on 12 Qctober 2021.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued
Annual bonus in respect of FY22

Financial targets (70%):
All Directors were subject to the same sliding scale adjusted PBT targets for 70% of the bonus potential. The targets set, and performance
against the targets, are set out below:

PBT (70%)
Threshold £48.6m
On target £51.3m
Maximum £56.7m
Actual ] N ] 2488m )
% of salary payable 8.04%

ESG objectives (15%;):
All Directors were subject to the same sliding scale ESG objectives relating to the achieverment of our Future Foundations strategy for 15%
of the bonus potential. Each objective was weighted at 5%. The targets, and performance against the targets, are set cut below:

QOvur People

= Increase employee engagement to deliver our 80% 2025 s Overall engagement increased to 75%
target/material increase in response rate s Response rate increased by 8% to 64%

Qur Places

= increase the % of planning apphcations submitted to BREEAM * BREEAM Excellent/Qutstanding ratings on developments
Excellent standards/HQM equivalent submitted for planning exceeded 60%

Our Planet

+ Create a robust carbon reduction roadmap for scope 1 and 2, and + Detailed ESG updates provided to the Board

Scope 2 electricity consumption was reduced by 22% and related
emissions significantly reduced

+ Scope 1 emissions increased by 6% as operations normalised
post-COVID but two of the three scope 1 elements showed
meaningful reductions

Personal objectives (15%):
The targets set, and performance against the targets, are set out below:

significant progress for scope 3 reduction

Richard = Establish a cohesive and high performing executive team, * Establishment of a strang “one team’ culture at the
Simpson as gvidenced through employee survey feedback Execetive Committee leve!, something which was
* Recruit a new head of Fresh. Put in place a new business particularly evident during the macro challenges in the
plan far Fresh capable of delivering a step change in second half of the year
financial performance. Ensure strong early impact * Recruited a new managing director of Fresh. New business
* Undertake an evaluation of the Group's branding, pian presented to the Board. Fresh well managed during
together with broader communications strategy across all transition period
stakeholders « Successful regrganisation of the Celivery team, and the
= Putin place a new Delivery plan, capable of allowing for a overall positive delivery performance during the year
step change in operational performance * Good early work on branding and communications, capable

of executionin FY23
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QObjectives Committee assessment

Sarah « Undertake areview of resourcing and organisation structure  * The Finance team has been effectively restructured and
Sergeant within the Group Finance team and implement agreed additional resource put in place
recommendations * New processes had been introduced which have
+ Undertake a& review of the financial controls framework provided for greater visibility and timeliness of reporting of
+ Review year-end ¢lose processes, with a view 1o bringing management information
forward the publication of the year-end results * Progress had been mads inrespact of the quality of Board
= Review the Group key reporting financial and non-financial reporting, information delivery and updated KPis
KPis, and how these are used as operational toqls within * |nitial evaluation undertaken around how to bring ferward
the business the Group's reparting date
Philip + Ensure smooth handover of responsinilities to the new CFO * Philip Byrom steppad down from his role as CFO part way
Byrgm * Provide support for the FY21 audit so as to ensure a through the year
smooth audit process and timely reporting of the Group's * He remained engaged and complsted a smooth, effective
resdlts and timely handover of the CFO role

* The audit was completed on time and in ling with the
Board's expectations, albeit the Beard noted a prior year
tax adjustment made in the accounts

Based on these assessments, the annual bonus awards earned for the year ended 30 September 2022 were as follows:

PBT ESG Persanal Total
0% 15% 15% 100%

Richard Simpson 8.0445 MUV 11.25% 30.29%
Sarah Sergeant 8.04% 11.00% 10.75% 29.79%
Philip Byrom®* 8.04% 11.00% 9.00% 28.04%

1. Pro-rated to take account of the objectives achieved over the period worked.

In considering the level of bonus awards to the Executive Directors, the Committee noted that the threshold financial targets had been met
and good progress had been made on personal and ESG objectives. However, it also considerad the wider stakeholder experience, and

in particular the deferral of two significant forward sales which had a material impact on profitability for FY22. As a result, the Committes
cancluded that rather than award the bonuses in cash, it would be appropriate to defer the bonus awards into shares for a period of 12
months for Richard Simpson and Sarah Sergeant. Vesting will be subject to continued employment and market-standard good leaver
provisions will apply.

Vesting of LTIP awards in FY22

LTIP awards were granted to Richard Simpson and Philip Byrom in May 2019 in respect of the performance period from 1 October 2013
to 30 September 2021. The awards were based on adjusted EPS growth and TSR. To vest, the Company's compound annuat growth
rate of EPS and TSR was required to reach 5%, with maximum vesting at 12%. EPS growth over the performance period was 0.9% and
this element of the award lapsed. TSR growth over the performance period was 9.8% and this element of the award vested at 68.57%.
Accordingly, the total award vested at 34.28% on 31 May 2022,
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

LTIP awards granted in FY22
The following LTIP awards were granted to the Executive Directors on 31 January 2022

Richard Simpson 200% of salary 295,310

Sarah Sergeant 100% of salary 114,068
The awards have an exercise price of one penny per share and become exercisable after three years from the date of grant, subject to

continued employment and the Caompany’s earnings per share and share price performance as follows:

EFS * 20% of this part of an award vests for EPS growth of 5% p.a. increasing pro-rata to 100% of this part of an award
(50% of awards) vesting for EPS growth of 14% p.a. or more

Absolute TSR
{25% of awards)

» 20% of this part of an award vests for absolute TSR of 5% p.a. increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for absolute
TSR of 14% p.a.

* 20% of this part of an award vests for median TSR increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for upper quartife TSR
measured against the constituents of the FTSE 350 Real Estate Sector {gxcluding agencies}

Relative TSR
(25% of awards)

Board changes

Alex Pease was appointed as an Executive Directar on 10 October 2022 an a base salary of £300,000 per annum and a pension
contribution of 7% of salary, with 100% of salary maximum bonus opportunity and 100% of salary LTIP opportunity.

Rachel Addison and Francis Salway were appointed as Non-Executive Directors during the year. Rachel Addison's fee on appaintment
was £54,631 and Francis Salway’s fee on appointment was £48,000.

Philip Byram retired from the Board on 11 November 2021. The Committee determined that he was a good leaver in respect of his

cutstanding LTIP awards. As he remained an employee of the business until June 2022, he is eligible to receive a bonus for FY22,
pro rated to take account of the pariod worked. No termination payments were paid or ar¢ payable.

Simon Laffin and Grenville Turner retired fram the Board on 31 July 2022 and 12 October 2021 respectively. No termination payments were
paid or are payable.

Outstanding share awards
The LTIP share awards outstanding for the Executive Directors at 30 September 2022 and as at the date of this report weve as follows:

Richard Simpson Sarzh Sergeant
P
1p

N BT ST R

Exercise price 1p 19 1p 1p

Date of grant 31 May 2019 22 Jun 2020 28 Jan 2021 31 Jan 2022 31 Jan 2022
Date of vesting 31 May 2022 22 Jun 2023 28 Jan 2024 31 Jan 2025 31 Jan 2025
Interest at 1 Oct 2021 342,309 460,009 386,402 - -
Granted in the year - - - 299,310 114,068
Dividend equivalents 38,373 — — - —
Lapsed 250,166 — - - -
Exercised in the year 130,516 — - — -
g”éeé:;tga 522 - 460,009 396,402 299,310 114,068
Performance ERPS:1 Oct 201910 EPS: 1 Qct 2020 1o EPS:10ct2021 10 EPS:1 Oct 2021 to

period for TSR
and EPS targets

100

10ct 2018 t0
30 Sep 2021

30 Sep 2022
TSR: three years
from grant date

30 Sep 2023
TSR: three years
fromn grant date

30 Sep 2024
TSR: three years
from grant date

30 Sep 2024
TSR: three years
from grant date
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Directors’ interests in the Company’s shares
At 30 September 2022 and as at the date of this report, the Directors had the following interests in the Company's shares:

Number of shares

Richard Simpson 0151
Sarah Sergeamt T 9950 .
Alex Pease 868205
Alan Giddins e PO

_Rachel Addison

1,669,807

Notice period where Notice period where
Date of appointment to the Board given by the Company given by the Director

Richard Simpson 2 January 2018 12 months 12 months
Sarah Sergeant 6 QOctober 2021 6 months 6 manths
Alex Pease 10 October 2022 & months 6 months
Alan Giddins 19 July 2021 3 months 3 months
Rachel Addison 1 April 2022 3 months 3 months
‘ Liz Reilly 21 January 2019 3 menths 3 months
Francis Salway 16 October 2022 3 moaths 3 months

Performance and terms

aof reference

The Committee's performance was
considered as part of the Board evaluation
process described on pages 83 and 84.
Feedback showed that the Committee
was felt to be operating well.

Advisers to the Committee

FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP (FIT)
provides advice to the Committee as and
when required in respect of remuneration
quantum and structure and developments
in governance and best practice more
generally. FIT is a member and signatory
of the Remuneration Consultants Group
and veluntarily operates under the

Service contracts

Executive Directors

Richard Simpson and Sarah Sergeant were
appointed under service agreements dated
17 May 2018 and 19 July 2021 respactively.
Alex Pease was appointed under a service
agreement dated 10 Octeber 2022, Their
service cantracts do not contain fixed

term pericds.

The Committee's terms of reference
were reviewed during the year with

Non-Executive Directors
Non-executive appointments run far an
initial term of three years from the date
of appointment and continue thereafter,
subject to annual re-election at annual
general meetings.

Alan Giddins was appointed to the

" Board by a letler of appointmént dated
17 July 2021. Rache! Addison and
Francis Salway were appointed to the
Board by letters of appointment dated
31 March 2022 and 7 QOctober 2022
respectively.

Code of Conduct in rejation to executive
remuneration consulting in the UK,
details of which can be found at
remunerationconsultantsgroup.com.
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minor changes approved. A copy of the

Committee's terms of reference is available

on the Company’s website at
watkinjoenesplc.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

Liz Reilly
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

25 January 2023
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Direct_ors’ report

The corporate governance disclosures on
pages 79 to 101 form part of this report.

Principal activity

The Company is incorporated and
registered in England and Wales,

with registered number 9791105, Its shares
are traded on the Alternative Investiment
Market of the London Stock Exchange.

The Company is the ultimate holding
cornpany of the Group. The Group's
principal activities are described in the
strategic report on pages 1to 77.

Review of business

The strategic report on pages 1 to 77
provides a review of the business,

the Group's trading for the year ended
3D September 2022, key parformance
indicators and an indication of future
develcpments and risks.

Substantial shareholdings

Result and dividend

The Group’s profit for the year was
£13.4 million (FY21: £41.9 million).

More information about the Group’s
financial performance can be found in
the financial review on pages 34 to 3%
and in the financial statements on pages
112 to 154,

The Board has recommended a final
dividend for the year of 4.5 pence per
share. More information about dividends
can be found in the Chair’s statement an
pages 4 and 5 and in the financial review on
pages 34 to 39.

Directors

The Company’s Directors during the

year were:

* Alzn Giddins

* Richard Simpscn

s Liz Reilly

» Sarah Sergeant (appcinted

6 October 2021)

Rachel Addison (appcinted 1 April 2022)
s Grenviile Turner (retirad 12 October 2021)
+ Philip Byrom (retired 11 November 2021)
s Simen Laffin {retired 31 July 2022)

Fhe current Directors’ biographies can be
found or: pages 80 and 81. Details of the
Executive Directors’ service contracts,

the Non-Executive Directors’ letters of
appcintment and the Directors’ dates of
appointment can be found in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 34 to 101,

Based on the share register analysis as at 16 Janvary 2023, unless otherwise notified, the following represents interests in excess of 3% of
the Company’s ordinary share capital. These holdings may subsequently have changed, but notification of any change is not required until

the next notifiable threshald is crossed.

Holder Perc‘anta-ge
tments Limited ) 1202
ts oo e 692
Mark Watkin Jones and related parties 546
_Polar Capital Holdings 528
abrdnplc T R e e e e e e 464
n 461 .
437
. Hargreaves Lansdown PLC 386
_Close Brothers Group 376 .
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Directors’ interests

The Directors’ interests in the Company’s
shares are set out in the Directors’
remuneration report on page 101.

Directors’ indemnity provisions
The Company has purchased and
maintained throughout the period
Directors' and officers’ liability insurance
in respect of the Directors,

Share capital structure

At 30 September 2022, the Company’s
issued share capital was £2,564,303.67,
divided inlo 256,430,367 ordinary shares of
one pence each.

The holders of ardinary shares are entitled
to one vota per share at the Company's
general meetings.

Engagement with employees,
suppliers, customers and

other stakeholders

Information on the Group’s engagement
with its employees, clients, customers,
supply chain, shareholders and
communities can be found in the strategic
report on pages 72 to 75 Information on
other employee matters such as investing
in the workforce, employee diversity and
the provision of equal opportunities for
disabled employees can be found in the
strategic report on pages 56 to 61.

Political donations
The Company made no pclitical donaticns
during the year.

Financial instruments
Information on financial instrumsants is

given in note 30 to the financial statements.

Auditor

Following a tender exercise for the external
audit in 2021, Deloitte was appointed
immediately following the signing of
the Company's financial statemeants
for the year ended 30 September 2021.
Deloitte has expressed its willingness
to continue in office as auditor and

a resolution to re-appoint Deloitte

will be proposed al the 2023 annual
general meeting.

Going concern

After making enquiries and as more fully
explained in the going concern review
on pages 50 and %1, the Directors have
areasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue to
trade for the period to 31 January 2024.
For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going ¢oncern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
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Dividend policy

The Group maintains its policy of aiming
te pay a dividend which is 2.0x covered by
adjusted earnings.

Approval
In the case of each Director in office at the
date the Directors' report is approved:

» so far as the Director is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and

they have taken all steps that they ocught
to have taken as a Director in order lo
make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor is aware of

that information,

This Directors’ report was approved on
behalf of the Board on 25 January 2023.

rah Sergeant
Chief Financial Officer

5. 2
25 January 2023 . ©a79 1105
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Directors’ responsibilities
in relation to the annual report and financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the annual report and the finangial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Direclors to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law the Directors
are required to prepare the Group financial
staterments in accordance with United
Kingdom adopted international accounting
standards. The financial statements

also comply with Internationat Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by
the IASB. The Directors have also chosen
to prepare the parent cempany financial
statements under United Kingdorm adopted
international accounting standards. Under
company law the Directors must nct
approve the financial statements unless
they are satistied that they give a true

and fair view of the state of affzirs of the
Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements,
International Accounting Standard 1
requires that Directors:

+ preperly select and apply accounting
policies;

* present information, including
accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information;

= provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific
requirements of the financial reporting
framework are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of
particular transactions, other events
and conditions cn the entity’s financial
position and financial performance; and

= make an assessment of the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that

are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
staterments comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safequarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Company's website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on

the Company’s website. Legislation in

the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurnisdictions.

Responsibilities statement
We confirm that to the best of our
knowledge:

= the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the relevant financial
reporting framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included
in the congolidation taken as a whole;

+ the strategic report includes a fair review
of the development and performance
of the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings
included in the consalidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they
face; and

+ the annual report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s
position and perfermance, business
modetl and strategy.

This respensibility statement was
approved by the Board of Directors on
25 January 2023 and is signed on its
behalf by:

Richargd Simpson
Chief Executive Officer

25 January 2023
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Watkin Jones plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements of Watkin Jones plc {the 'parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's aifairs as at 30 September 2022 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended;

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards;

¢ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™, and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

* the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

» the consolidated and parent company staternent of financial position;

= the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;

» the consolidated statement of cash flow; and

« the related notes 1 to 45.

The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom adopted international accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of

the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 107 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

2. Basis for opinion ’

We conductad our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of ourreport.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are refevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the 'FRC's’) Ethical Standard as applied ta listed entities, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matter The key audit matters that we 1dentified in the current year were:

description * Revenue recognition;

= Valuation of inventery and work-in-progress; and

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £2.4 million which was determined on
the basis of approximately 5% of pre-tax profit adjusted for excepticnal costs,

Scoping Full scope audit work was performed on two reporting components. Our full scope and specified

- — - - - audit procedures covered 98% of Group revenue and 100% of Group adjusted profit before tax.. - _—_ . - — « _
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of Watkin Jones plc

4. Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statemen?s is appropriate.

Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group's and parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of

accounting included:

» obtaining an understanding of the Group's financing facilities including the nature of facilities, repayment terms and covenants,

+ challenging the assumptions used in the Board-approved forecasts by reference to historical performance and other supporting
evidence such as market dats;

* recalculating the amount of headroom in the forecasts (in liquidity terms and against the relevant covenant imits);

* assessing the sensitivity analysis and reverse stress tests performed by management; and

* evaluating whether the disclosures in respect of going concern within the financial statements meet the requirements of IAS 1.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to evenls or conditions that, individually

or collectively, may east significant doubt on the Group's and parent company’s ability to continue as a gaing concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant seclions of this
report.

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and inciude the most significant assessed risks of material misstaternent {(whather or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocaticn of resources
in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team. -

These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1. Revenue recognition

Key audit matter The Group recognised revenue of £407.1 million {(FY21: £430.2 million) which is primarily arising from contracts
description with customers in developing residential and commercial properties, as described in note 6 and considered by
the Audit Committee as a significant judgement as per pages 89 and 90.

We have performed a detailed risk assessment of the Group’s revenue streams to understand the revenue cycles
across the Group. Following this assessment, we have identified a key audit matter in relation to the risk, either
due to fraud or error, to the key judgements inherent within open development contracts within the Build To Rent
('BTR") and Student Accommodatlon segmenis asa key determ:nant ior revenue recogmsed in the year

How the scaope of We have performed the foilewmg procedures to address this key audnt matter:
our audit responded
to the key audit
matter

» performed testing of controls over revenue, and specifically controls that address the ferecasting accuracy risk;
+ reconciled revenue per management’s internal cost valuation report {{CVR’) to the management accounts and
trial balance being audited;

validated the key inputs inlo the CVR process, including reconciling total expected revenue per development

to signed contract agreements;

* pbtained an understanding the profitimpact of any potential contractual penalties or liquidated damages
based on current timescales for completion;

reconciled costs incurred in the year through agreement to a sample of supporting evidence; and

= held meetings with relevant Commercial Directors to understand status of open developments, challenging
assumptions in relation 10 costs to comp!ete and any judgements made about each development and test
“the assor:rated year- end surveyors adjustments to cosl or vaTue ) T ST TT -

Key observations Based on our pracedures performed we are sat|sfled that the revenue rec()gmsed durmg the year ended
30 September 2022 is appropriate,
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5.2. Valuation of inventory and work-in-progress

Key audit matter
description

How the scope of

our audit respanded
to the key audit
ratter

Key observatlons

The Group has £146.2 miliion (FY21: £127.6 million} of land and work in progress, as described in notes 1 and 21
and considered by the Audit Committee as a significant judgement as per pages 8% and 90.

The valuation of inventary at the lower of cost and net realisable value requires significant judgement by
management over the anticipated revenues and forecast development ¢osts. There is therefore a risk that the
carrying value of the land and work in progress balances reported within inventery are overstated.

As part of risk assessment procedures we have assessed the stage of the various developments within the
inventory balance and have focused our key audit matter to certain developments under construction that are
not forward sold and are expected to complete over a longer than average time pericd when cormpared to the

wrder portfollo

We have perforrned the followmg procedures to address thls key audrt matter:

« gbtained an understanding of relevant contrals relating to the valuation of inventaory and WIP,

+ reconciled breakdowns of land and work-in-progress to the management accounts and trial balance being
audited;

= for certain developments, with the invelvement of cur real estate specialists we assessed the key
assumplions in the valuation appraisals and net realisable valuation calculations, which depending on the
specific characteristics of the developments included challenge of estimated costs to complete, capitalisation
yields, rental income assumptions against comparable market data; and

. perforrned tesls of detail over a sample of sntes valldatlng cost to mvorce/!abour

Based on our procedures performed we are satrsfred that the vaTuahon of |nventory and work—m -progress as
at 30 September 2022 is appropriate.

5.3. Valuation of provisions relating to the Building Safety Act

Key audit matter
description

How the scope of

our audit responded
to the key audit
matter

Key observations

As described in notes 1 and 27, the Group helds a pravision of £33.4 million (FY21: £9.4 million) in retation to
the Building Safety Act. This is also considered by the Audit Commitiee as a significant judgement as per pages
89 and 90 and a kay source of estimation uncertainty in the notes to the financial statements on page 119.

The valuation of fire-safety provisions is complex and thus requires significant judgement by management
over the timing and value of the expected costs, including associated legal claims. As such, we have assessed

valuatlon of provns:on relahng 10 the Bw!dlng Safety Act’ asa key audn matler

We have performed the folrowmg procedures tc address thns key audit matter

+ we obtained an understanding of relevant contrels relating to the Building Safety Act provision,

* assessed how the value of the provision has been determined, whether a present obligation to rectify the
properties existed at the balance sheet date and that the associated costs have been recorded in the
appropriate accounting pericd,

* benchmarkad the average cost provided per site against external market information and peer entities;

+ challenged internally estimated remediation costs against external quotes for comparable sites and external
benchmarking data provided by our real estate specialists, and assessed any differences in the determination
of the amounts provided,;

» for sites supported by external quotations we have assessed a sample of cost estimates against underlying
support such as third-party estimates, quotations, legal claims and correspondence with third parties;

» challenged assumptions in relation to the discount rate applied to the provision and the expected timing of
payments to be made against comparable external market data; and

* assessed the associated disclosures, including consideration of costs classified as adjusted itemns and the
key scurces of estlmanon uncertamty :dentmed

Based on the procedures performed we conc\uded the provision recorded to be appropriate as at
30 September 2022, however we observed a high level of estimation uncertainty in the assumptions applied.

Accordingly, we concur with the disclosure of this provision as a key source of estimation uncertainty within nate
1 of the financial statements,
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Independent auditor’s report contirued
to the members of Watkin Jones plc

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it prabable that the economic decisions of
a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality beth in planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements | Parent company financial statements

Materiality £2,440,000 i 22,196,000

Basis for determining 5% of pre-tax profit adjusted for exceptional costs. ¢ Our basis for matsriality was determined based upon
materiality : 3% of the parent company’s net assets capped at
i 90% of Group materiality.

Rationale for the Protit before tax is a key metric for users of the . The parent company does not generate external

benchmark applied financial statements and reflects the way business sales therefore we have determinad net assets for

performance is reported and assessed by external i the current year to be the appropriate basis.
users of the financial statements. !

The Group has incurred significant exceptional costs

as an adjusting item therefore we believe appropriate |
to adjust for these costs in determining an appropriate
level of materiality.

6.2. Performance materiality
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncarrected and undetected
misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements

Perfermance 70% of Group materiality 70% of parent company materiality

materiality

Basis and rationale In determining performance materiality, as our first year as auditors, we considered the following factors:
for determining s the control environment in place acress the Group,; and

performance

s the low level of corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified in the prior year audit by the

materiali
i predecessor auditor.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £122,000 as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Cemmittee
on dis¢losure matters that we identified when assessing the overali presentation of the financial statements.

7. An cverview of the scope of our audit
7.1. Identification and scoping of components
The Group operates solely in the United Kingdom and iIreland. Our Group audit was scoped by oblaining an understanding of the Group

and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material misstaternent at the Group and component level.
The audit was performed solely by the Group audit team in the LK.

We have considered reporting components based on their contribution to Group revenue and profit, as well as qualitative considerations.-

Reporting components in scope, being the main trading entity of the Group and the parent company, was subject to an audit materiality
level between £2.2 million and £1.7 million. Our full scope and specified audit procedures covered 8% of Group revenue and 100% of
Group operating profit.
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7.2. Qur consideration of the control environment
We obtained an understanding of the relevant internal controls 6ver key audit matters as referenced above. We have tested controls
relating to revenue recognition and, based on our work performed, we adopted a controls refiance approach to our testing in this area.

The Group IT landscape contains a number of IT systems, applications and tools used to support business processes and reporting.
Where centrol improvements were identified, both in the 1T erwironment and more broadly across the business through our audit testing,
these have been reported to management and the Audit Committee.

7.3. Our consideration of climate related risks
In planning our audit, we have considered the potentialimpact ot climate change on the Group's business and its financial statements.

We performed our own gualitative risk assessment of the potential impact of climate change on the Group's account balarces and
classes of transaction and did not identify any risks of material misstatement. Our procedures included reading disclosures included
in the strategic report to consider whether they are materially consistent with the financizl statements and our knowledge obtained in
the audit,

8. Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
therean. The directors are responsible for the other information contamed within the annual report.

Qur opinion on the financial statemeants does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therean,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to
a material misstatemnent in the financial statements themseives, |f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are respensible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give & true and fair view, and for such internal contrel as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going cencern, disclosing s applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease cperations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

10. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and ta issue an auditor’s report that incfudes our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high level of
assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the ecenomic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilitias for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

lrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design proceduresin line with our

responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which

our precedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws

and regulations, we considered the following:

s the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the Group’s remuneration
policies, key drivers for directars’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

resulis of our enguiries of management, internal audit, and the audit committee about their own identification and assessment of the
risks of irregularities;

= zny matters we identified having obtained and reviswed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
= identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
= detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
+ the internal controts established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations,

» the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and relevant internal specialists, including valuations, IT, and real estate
specialists regarding how and where fraud might accur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As aresult of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and
identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition, valuation of inventory and work-in-progress, and
valuation of provisions relating to the Building Safety Act. In commen with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform
specific procedures to respond ta the risk of management override,

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, fecusing an provisions of those
laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Cempanies Act, Listing Rules, Building Safety Regulations,
and tax legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the abave, we identified revenue recognition, valuation of inventory and waork-in-progress, and valuation of
provisions relating to the Building Safety Act as key audit matters related to the potential risk of fraud or non-compliance with laws and
requlations. The key audit matiers section of aur report explains the matters in more detail and also describes the specific procedures
we performed in response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above, ocur procedures ta respond to risks identified included the following:

« reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supparting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

» enquiring of management, the audit committee and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement
due to fraud;

« reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC; and

+ in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team mémbers including

internal specialists, and remained alert to any indications of fraud er non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.
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12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

- — . — — ~ - " —
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the Course of the audit: ™

* the informatron given in the strategic report and the direciors’ report for tne 1|nancna1 year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and i

« the straleglc report and the directors report have peen prepared in aceordance will) applicable legal rcquucmcnta e o

In the light of the knowledge and understandlng ot the broup and the Barent company and helt eiwironmee L vbtalned in the -
course of the audit, we have not identified any matérial misstatements in the strategic feport or the airectors’ report.” o

13. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

13.1. Adequacy of exptanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not received all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect oi these matters.

13.2. Directors’ remuneration
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not
been made.

We have nothing to report in respeEt of this matter.

14. Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Ghapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 20086.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 1o the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditer’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company'’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. .

Scott Bayne FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditer

Manchester, United Kingdom

-25 January 2023

o~

L A
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 September 2022

Notes

Year ended
30 September
2022

£'000

Year ended
30 September
2024

£000

Continuing operations

Revenus § amere. s
Cost of sales T (339,450)  (345.430)
Gross profit 67,625 84,781
Administrative expenses o Tmmmmem e (2942 (27.526)
i 0B8] 57,255
Exceptional costs 8 (30,365) —
Operating profit 9 24318 57,255
Share of loss in joint vantures "o e @n
o 0 e
i L o (505”
Profit before tax 18,393 51121
Incometaxexpens ............................................................................ T (4979) (9189)
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 13,414 41,932

Other compr

Other comprehensive income that will not be rectassified to proftor lossin

subsequent pericds;

Net gain/loss) en equity instruments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income, net of tax 157 108

Totat comprehensive income for the year attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent 13,571 42,040
Pence Pence

Earnings per share for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent

Basic earnings per share

14

16.369

Diluted earnings per share 14 5.205 15.340
Adjusted basic earnings per share (excluding exceptional costs) 14 14.825 16.369
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (excluding exceptional costs) 14 14.748 16.340
The notes on pages 116 to 149 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2022

30 September 30 September
2022 2021
Notes £'000 £'0co

Non- -current assets o e e e e e e e e e e e e
Intanglble assets 16 12,1865 12,724

C1arms 127593
Contract assets R .. 321. 13 810

Trade and otherrecewables - 23 28 628 28198“
B e G

337,408 305,894
Total assets 386,959 430,624
Current liabilities .
- Trade and other pa'yabz 25 (89717) (89198)_

Comract nabnmes e 5052

ns and borowings . T ;
Lease Tabiios S A S e e & 248).
Prowsms ..... o e
o L

(113,132) (109,491)

. NDr‘I current Ilablhtles

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 77 as T (28288)  (.308)

Lease liabilities ' T T e T eess) (123,139)

POVISONS e e BT BTOS (@732)

Deferred tax llablllties o - . 28 — {1,143}
(96,874) (136,322)

Total liabiiities (210,006) {245,813)

Net assets 176,953 184,811

Equny
3

2 552
84 812

Fa:rvalun reserve of flnanmal assets at FVOCl . A .6.62 536
Share based payment reserve e 32 526 e 2 824 .
Retamed earnings 163,972 169 650

Total equity 176,953 184,811

The notes on pages 116 ta 149 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 January 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

o

Richard Simpson g
Directar
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 September 2022

Fair value
reserve of
financial Share-based
Share Share Merger assets at payment Retained
capital premium reserve FVGC) reserve earnings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £:060 £'060

Balance at 30 Septamber 2620 2,562 84,612 {75,383) 428 2,348 153,271 167,833
Profitfortheyear — - — -~ = 41832 41,832
Other comprehensive incame — - — 108 - — 108
Total comprehensive income — - — 108 - 41,932 42,040
Share-based payments - - — - 476 - 476
Deferred tax debited directly to equity
{note 28) - - - - - 59 {59)
Dividend paid (note 15) - - — - — (25,484) {25,484)
Balance at 30 September 2021 2,562 84,612 (75,383) 536 2,824 169,660 184,811
Profit for the year - - - — - 13,414 13,414
Other comprehensive income — - — 126 - 31 157
Total comprehensive income - - — 126 - 13,445 13,571
S_h_are—_based payments 2 - - - 209 - 21
Recycled reserve for fully vested
share-based payment schemes - - — - (2,507 2507  —
Deferred tax debited directly to equity
{note 28) - — — - — 141 141
Dividend paid (note 15} — — — — — (21,781) {21,781)
Balance at 30 September 2022 2,564 84,612 {75,383) 662 526 163,972 176,953

The notes on pages 116 to 149 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 September 2022

- Notes

Year ended
30 September
2022

£'000

Company infarmation

Year ended
30 September
2021

£'000

Cash ﬂows from operatmg actl it

Cash (outflow}/mflow from op

LB

(19 592) e e

oA B 4

(5782) (6,638

Tax paid 155 g2
Net cash (outflow}/inflow from operating activities (26,859) 61,462

Cash flows from investing activities

Acqmsn‘.xon Of properly. plant and equl[“_)menl Cmmmmmmmm

Proceeds on dlsposal of prgperty plant and equupment

Proceeds on dlsposal Of nght of -use assets

Cash flow from joint venture mterests

Net cash inflow/{cutflow) from investing activities

11,578

Cash ﬂows from fmancmg actwmes

Dmdends pa|d ” s s R et + o essaissesaesRea 1 ek s 41 R e 15

Proceeds ercise of share options

ey

(25:484)

}

]

Payment Df capltal element other interest-ﬁearing loans T S 7 (389) - (242)
Drawdown of RCF 20 625 25 705 .
Hepayment of bank Ioans (3,909) (53 369)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {10,171} (59,535)
Net (decrease)!mcrease in cash (25 452) 1, 780
Cash and cash equwalents at1 October 2021 and 1 October 2020 136,293 134 513
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021 110,84 136,293
The notes on pages 116 t0 148 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2022

1. General information

Watkin Jones plc {the 'Company’) is a
public limited company incerporated in
the United Kingdom under the Companies
Act 2006 (registration number 9791105)
and its shares are listed on the Alternative
Investment Market of the London Stock
Exchange. The Company is domiciled in
the United Kingdom and its registered
address is 7-9 Swallow Street, London,
England, W18 4DE.

The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries {collectively the ‘Group’)
are those of property development and

the management of properties for multiple
residential occupation.

The consolidated financial statements

for the Group for the year ended

30 September 2022 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries. The basis
of preparation of the consclidated financial
statements is set out in note 2 below.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Groug
have been prepared and approved

by the Directors in accerdance with
International Accounting Standards in
conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and in accordance
with United Kingdom adopted Internaticnal
Accounting Standards.

The preparation of financial information in
conformity with IFRS requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts

of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best
knowledge of the amount, event or actions,
actual events may vltimately ditfer from
thase estimates.

The accounting policies set out in the
notes have, unless otherwise stated,
been applied censistently 1o all periods
presented in these financial statements.
The financial statements are prepared
on the historical cost basis except as
disclosed in these accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in
pounds steriing and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (£'000), except
whsan otherwise indicated.

16

3. Accounting policies

This section sets out the Group’s
accounting policies that relate ta the
financial statements as a whole. Where an
accounting policy is specific to a particular
note to the financial statements, the policy
is described in the note to which it relates.

3.1 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and conlinue to
be consolidated until the date when such
control ceases. Control is achteved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvernent with
the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the
investee. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the parent company,
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transaclions,
unrealised gzins and losses resufting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated in futl.

The terms of the acquisition of the shares
in Watkin Jones Group Limited by the
Company on its IPO in March 2016 in

the year ending 30 September 2016

were such that the Group reconstruction
should be accounted for as a continuation
of the existing Group rather than as

an acquisition, and as such merger
accounting was applied. Accordingly, the
difference between the cash consideration
paid and the nominal vafue of the share
capital acquired as part of the Group
recanstruction was reilected against a
merger reserve.

3.2 Going concern

The Directors have undertaken a thorough
review of the Group's ability to continue

to trade as a going concern for the period
to 31 January 2024 {the 'forecast period’}.
This review has been undertaken taking
into consideration the following matters.
Liquidity

At 30 Septernber 2022, the Group had a
robust liquidity position, with cash and

. available headroom in its banking facilities

totaliing £196.0 million, as set cut below.

£m
Cash balances 110.8
RCF headroom 7152
Overdraftfacility 00
Total cash and available facilities  196.0

Strong liquidity has been maintained
through the first quarter of the year ending
30 September 2023, providing the Group
with a good level of cash and available
banking facilities for the year ahead.

The Group’s revolving credit facility (RCF)
is committed and has a five-year term to
May 2025. All financial covenants under
this facility were met at 30 September 2022
and are forecast to be met throughout the
period to 31 January 2024. This facility can
be accessed to fund land acquisitians.

The Group also has a loan with Svenska
Handelsbanken AB which is secured
against its three operational BTR
properties. This stood at £4.0 million on
30 September 2022 and the facility expires
in August 2024. We intend to sell these
properties during the period of this review,
and in our forecast scenarios it has been
assumed that this facility will be retained
until it is repaid upon the eompletion of
these sales.

Business model

Our forward sale business model is capital
light, By ferward selling the majority

of our build to rent (BTR) and purpose

built student accommeodation {(PBSA)
develapments, we receive payment for the
land either at the same time as or shortly
after we complete the purchase, and before
we commit to any significant development
expenditure. Once forward sold, we receive
payment for the development works as
they progress. By being in control of

our development pipeline we are able to
ensure that we only commit construction
expenditure to developments that are either
forward sold or to undertake a modest level
of enabling works. [n certain circumstances
we may decide to continue construction
activities beyond the initial enabling phase,
without a forward sale agreement in place,
but we take this decision based on our
available liquidity and can suspend the
works should it prove necessary. This
greatly limits our exposure to development
expenditure which is not covered by cash
income.

Sites are normally secured on a subject to
satisfactory planning basis, which gives

us time to manage the ¢ash requirements
and to market them far forward sale. We
also take a cautious approach to managing
our land acquisition programme to ensure
that we have sufficient liquidity available

ta caomplete the acquisition of the sites
without any new forward sales being
secured.

The Fresh business receives a regular
contractual monthly fee income from
its multiple clients and the short to
medium-term risk toits revenue stream
is low.
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For our Affardable Homes business,
which is currently relatively small and only
has a few sites in build, we manage our
development expenditure so that, other
than for infrastructure works, we only
comimit expenditure where it is supported
by a forward sales position. In addition, a
significant portion of our largest site has
been forward scld such that we will receive
payment for deve'opment works as they
progress.

We also receive rental income from tenants
on our leased PBSA assets and operaticnal
BTR assets. The occupancy levels for

the PBSA assets have recovered well
following the negative impact of the COVID
pandemic and are close to being fully
accupied far the academic year 2022/23.

Cur business model and approach to cash
management therefore provides a high
degree of resilience.

Counterparty risk

The Group's clients are predominantly
blue-chip instituticnal funds and the risk
of default is low. The funds for a forward
sold development are normally specifically
aflocated by the client or backed by
commiited debt funding.

For ferward sold developments, cur cash
income remains ahead of cur development
expenditure through the life of the
development, such that if we were exposed
to a client payment default, we could
suspend the works, thereby limiting any
cash exposure,

Fresh has many clients and these are mostly
institutional funds with low default risk.

Base case cash forecast

We have prepared a base case cash
forecast for the forecast peried, based
an our current business plan and trading
assumptions for the year. This is well
supported by our forward sold pipeline
of six PBSA developments and six BTR
developments for delivery during the
period FY23 to FY27, as well as the
reservedfexchanged and forward sales
for our Affordable Homes business and
the contracted income for Fresh. Our
currently secured cash flow, derived from
our forward sold developments and cther
contracted income, net of overheads and
tax, results in cash utilisation over the
forecast period such that our liquidity
position is maintained.

Governance

In addition to the secured cash flow, the
base case forecast assumes a number of
new forward sales and further house sales,
which if achieved will resuit in a further
strengthening of our liquidity position,
after allowing for dividend payments. We
have also assumed that the Group's three
operationa! BTR properties will be sald

during the period following the completion
“of works

Currently in progress ta improve
their saleability.

Risk analysis

In addition to the base case forecast,

and though considered unlikely given

the stabilisation in market interest rate
expeactations since the Autumn Budget
statement and the long-term attractiveness
of our core markets, we have considered
the possibility of disruption to the forward
sale market in the event of a resurgence in
the market turbulence seen in the UK in the
early autuman. This is our most significant
risk as it would greatly limit our ability to
achieve any further forward sales and
would potentially mean that we would have
to complete on secured site acquisitions
without a subsequent forward sale in place.

We have run various model scenarios to
assess the possible impact of the above
risks, including a severe but plausible
downside scenario assuming no further
forward sales are achieved other than for
one of the Group’s PBSA assets which
benefits from an agreement for lease for
all its rooms and where the construction is
already well-progressed.

In the severe but plausible downside
scenario, we have included for the
payment of our FY22 full-year proposed
dividend in line with our dividend policy.
The cash forecast prepared under this
scenario illustrates that adequate liquidity
is maintained through the forecast period
and the financial covenants under the RCF
would still be met.

The minimum total cash and available
facilities balance under this scenario was
£52.2 miltion (excluding the £10.0 million
overdraft), We consider the likelihood of
events occurring which would exhaust

the total cash and available facilities
balances remaining to be remote. However,
should such events occur, management
would be able to implement reductions in
discrationary expenditure and investments
in unsold developments to ensure that the
Group's liquidity was maintained.
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Canclusion

Based on the thorough review and

rabust downside forecasting undertaken,
and having not identified any material
uncertainties that may cast any significant
doubt, the Board is satisfied that the
Group will be able to continue to trade for
the period to 31 January 2024 and has
therefore adapted the going cancern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

3.3 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for
using the acquisition methad. The cost

of any acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value.
There have been no non-controlling
interests recognised in the business
combinations to date. Acquisition ¢costs
incurred are expensed and included in
ariministrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business,

it assesses the assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification

and designation in accordance with

the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as
at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost,
being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assummed. i the fair value of the net assets
acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group
re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired

and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date, If the re-assessment stiil
results in an excess of the fair value of

net assets acquired over the aggregate
consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised immediately in the statement
of comprehensive income.

After imitial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is carried

in the statement of financial position

at deemed cost as at 1 October 2012,

the date of transition to IFRS for the
Group, less accumulated impairmant
losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition

date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 September 2022

3. Accounting policies continued

3.3 Business combinations continued
Where goodwil has besn allocated to a
cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the
disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operaticn when
determining the gain or lass on disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative values of
the disposed operation and the portion of
the CGU retained (note 16).

3.4 Impairment of non-financial
assets

At each reporting pericd, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its
non-financial assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairmeant lass. if any
such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss
{if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual
assel, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of tha cash-generating unit (CGU)
10 which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

When the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its receverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount, with any
impairment recegnised immediately through
the statermment of comprehensive income.

. Intangible assets with indefinite useful

—— e——

lives are not amcrtised, but are tested for

impairment annually, either individually or at
the CGU level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually 10 determine

whethar the indefinite life continuzs to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful
life fram indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

If indication exists that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer
exist or have decreased, the Group
estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable
amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment lass was
recognised.
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The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed

its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for

the asset in prior years. Such reversal

is recegnised in the statement of
comprehensive income unless the asset
15 carned at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation
reserve. No impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is permitted to be reversed.

3.5 Foreign currency

The Group's presentational currency,
which is pounds sterling, is also the
functional currency of the parent and its
subsidiaries. Foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functicnal currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of those transactions,

Monetary assets and liabilities
dencminated in foreign currencies at each
reporting date are retranslated at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange differences arising on
translation are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income.

3.6 Revenue recognition
Revenue recognition is a critical judgement
for the Group.

When the Group recognises revenue under

a construction contract or development
agreement, revenue is recognised using
the percentage of compietion method as
construction progresses with the estimated
total revenue and cost to complete forming
key estimates in determining the amaunt of
revenue recognised.

The estimates for total contract costs
take account of any uncertainties in the
cost of work packages which have not yet
been let and materials which have not yst
been procured, the expected cost of any
changes in the scope of works and the
expectad cost of any rectification works
during the defects liability period.

4. Key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting
policies, management are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readity apparent from
other sources.

Estimates and assumptions

Estimatas and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisionsto *
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, orin the
period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Impairment of investment property
(leased)

As described in note 3.4, the Group
assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, the
Group estimates the asset's recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is

the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use.

The Group treats each of its student
accommedation leaseback arrangements
as a separate cash-generating unit
forimpairment testing. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the value in use
for its student accommodation investment
property {leased) assets is calculated using
estimates of the future economic benefits
that will be derived from the operations of
each property, which is discounted using
an estimated discount rate reflecting the
market assessment of risk that would

be applied to each asset. This estimate

of value in use is then compared to

the net book value of the investment
property (leased) to determine whether an
impairment provision is required. Further
details are included in note 17.
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Building Safety Act provision

In response to the revised government guidance, issued in January 2020, on the suitability of certain cladding solutions used on high-rise
residential buildings, the Group has been working with the awners of certain of its previously developed properties to remediate or replace
cladding and to share the costs. In April 2022 the Building Safety Act 2022 {the ‘BSA’) was enacted, with the government anncuncing its
intention to approach developers to fund the remediation of life-critical fire safety issues on buildings over 11 metres and up to 30 years
old. While ncting the requirement for secondary legislation ta clarify the impact of the government’s plans, the Group expects that, in due
caurse, it will incur costs in relation to remediation works on developments over 11 metres tall and up to 30 years o'd,

Whiist it is unclear exactly what remedial works will be needed, the Group has performed a review of buildings above 11 metres developed
by the Company over the last 30 years, which concluded that an exceptiona!l charge of £30,365,000 should be made for these potential
costs. This amount covers the following areas set out in the BSA: i) the extension of scope for developers’ responsibility to 30 years; i) the
increased scope by including buildings abave 11 metres; and iii) the expanded scope 1o incorporate critical iife safety defects. We expect
this money will be spent over the next five years, and the provision has been discounted accordingly.

This is a highly complex area with judgements and estimates in respect of the cost of remedial works, the quantum of any legal
expenditure associated with the defence of the Group’s position in this regard, and the exient of those properties within the scope of the
applicable government guidance and legisiation, which continue to evelve. The amount provided for these works has been estimated by
reference to recent indusiry experience, external quotes for similar wark identified, and legal advice on the defence of the Group's positian
on certain developments. In advance of remedial works commencing, the provision represents the Group's best estimate of its share of
contributions, recognising that in certain instances current owners are contributing to remediation of the developments. Should the costs
associated with these remedial works increase by 5%, the provision required would increase by £1,700,000. Should the discount rate
applied to the calculation reduce by 1%, the provision required would increase by £800,000. Further details of the provision are set out in
note 27.

5. New standards and interpretations

Impact of accounting standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective

Al the reporting date there are a number of new standards and amendments to existing standards in issue but not yet effective.
The Group has not adopted the new or amended standards early in preparing these consolidated tinancial statements,

The following standards and interpretations that are anticipated to be relevant to the Group have an effective date after the date of
these financial statements. The Group has not early adopted them and plans to adept them from the effective dates once endorsed for
application in the UK. These standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective for

accounling

periods

beginning cn

Standard or interpretation or after
Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3 1 Jznuary 2022

Classzf:cahon of Llabmttes as Current or Non current - Amendments to IAS 1 o T January2023
Deflnrtlon ofAccount Estsmates Amendments to FASB S e 1January2023
Dlsclosure of Account\ng PO|IC\€S Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practtce Statement 2 T 1January2023
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Llabllltles arising from a Slng!e Transactlon Amendments tolAS 12 1 Je'nreary 2023
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 September 2022

6. Disaggregated revenue information

Accounting policy

‘The Group’s primary sources of revenue from contracts with customers are from developing residential and
cammercial properties. It also provides accommaodation management services to third parties. When developing
purpose built student accommodation (PBSA), build to rent {BTR) and commercial properties, the Group often acquires
the land on which the development will be constructed before it is seld to a customer alongside a construction contract
or development agreement for the delivery of the refevant scheme.

ik

Sale of land or culnpleled property

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from the sale of land, and the development and sale of completed
residential and commercial properties. Most of the Group’s land sale agreements relate to sites for PBSA and BTR
developments where the Group has obtained planning permission and they are sold to customers in conjunction with a
construction contract for the Group to deliver the property.

Contracts for the sale of land and completed residential and commercial developments are typically satisfied at a point
in time, This is ysually deemed to be the legal completion as this is the point at which the Group has an enforceable
right to payment. Revenue trom the sale of land, residential and commercial properties is measured al the transaction
price agreed in the contract with the customer.

Construction contracts and development agreements

Construction contracts and development agreements mainly relate to the development of PBSA and BTR properties
along with any commercial elements of these projects. The duration of the contracts vary but are typically 18 to 30
menths in duration. Most contracts are considered to contain only one performance cbligation for the purposes of
recognising revenue, being the development of the scheme to the agreed specification.

While the scope of works may include a number of different components, in the context of construction service
activities these are usually highly interrelated and produce a combined output for the customer.

Gontracts are 1ypicaily recognised over time as the development works are undertaken on land owned and

therefore controlled by the customer, with the services being provided by the Group enhancing that land through the
construction of a building and asscciated landscaping and enabling works. In addition, the construction contracts
or development agreements provide an enforceable right to payment for the value of construction works performed.
Progress is typically measured through valuation of the works undertaken by a professional quantity surveyor,
including an assessment of any elements for which a price has not yet been agreed, such as changes in scope.

In arder ta recognise the profit over time it is necessary to estimate the total contract revenue and costs. Once the
outcome of 2 perfarmance obligation of a construction contract or development agreement can be reasonably
measured, Margin is recognised in the income statement in line with the corresponding stage of completion.

Total contract revenue

Contract revenue corresponds to the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and any variations in contract
work, ¢laims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue, and they are
capable of being refiably measured.

Total contract costs

The estimates for total contract costs take account of any uncertainties in the cost of werk packages which have not
yet been let and materials which have not yet been procured, the expected cost of any changes in the scope of works
and the expected cost of any rectification works during the defects liability period.

Contract costs include costs that relate directly to the specific contract and costs that are attributable to contract
activity in general and can be allocated to the contract. Casts that relate directly to a specific contract comprise: site
labour costs {including site supervision); costs of materials used in construction; depreciation of equipment used on
ine contract; ¢osts of design; and technical assistance that is directly related to the contract.

Significant financing component

The Group often enters into construction contracts or development agreements which entail a final payment upon the
practical completion of the property, typically linked to its timely completion.

These amounts are included in the estimates for total contract revenue for a scheme such that the period between the
recognition of revenus by the Group and when the customer pays can be greater than one year. This difference arises
for reasans other than the provision of finance to the customer as it is intended to provide protection to the customer
that the Group fulfils its obligations under the contract. Accordingly, these contracts are not deemed to contain a
significant financing companent.

Accommodation management

Management fees relate to contracted charges for the provision of management services as an agent to landlords of
PBSA and BTR properties. Management fees are recognised in line with the management contracts in the period to
which they relate.

Rental income
Rents receivable are credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis.
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Student Build Affordable Accommodation
Accommodation To Rent Homes Management Corporate Total
Year ended 30 September 2022 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Type Of g°°ds or SerVice ...............................................................................................................................
Construction contracts or
development agreements .o tesse2 L 9T8VT T T ... %988 236,055
Sale of lang 30,947 92,450 — - - 123,397

Sale of completed property
Rental income

Accommodation management - -

Total revenue from contracts
with customers 180,037 191,228 14,478 9,072 12,261 407,076

Timing of revenue recognition

Gaods transferred at a point

intime . VRATS T 5328 47=00
Services transferred over time - 9,072 2,936 259,876
Total revenye from contracts
with customers 180,037 191,228 14,478 9,072 12,261 407,076
Stucdlent Build Affardable Accommedation
Accommodation Ta Rent Homes Management Corperate Total
Year ended 30 September 2021 £'oo0 £'000 000 £e00 £'000 £'000

Type of goods or service

Construction contracts or

development agreements 195,015

Sale of land 18500

Sale of ESH\pleted property d 35,580 31,703 22,663 . - 89,946
R mc:ome ceemnenimennne 10787 ] 1438 — _ et e _ 12225

R management e 7762 e 7762

Total revenue from contracts
with customers 259,882 138,569 22663 7,762 1,335 430,211

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point

intime 54,080 46,703 ezges . T e 23,446
Services transferred over time 205,802 91,866 — 7,762 1,335 306,765
Total revenue from contracts

with customers 259,882 138,569 22683 7,762 1,335 430,211

Revenue from three customers (2021; one) in the year accounted for more than 10% of total revenue, representing revenue of
£208,080,000 (2021: £45,631,000). Of this, £47,327,000 was reported under the Student Accommodation segment and £160,753,000 was
reported under the Build To Rent segment.

7. Segmental reporting

A Accounting policy

Operating segments are identified in a manner consistent with the internal reparting provided to the chief aperating
ju— decision-maker. The Group determines its reportable segments having regard to permitted aggregation criteria with the
— principal condition being that the operating segments should bave similar economic characteristics. For the purposes

of determining its operating segments, the chief operating decision-maker has been identitied as the Executive
Committee. This commitiee approves investment decisions, allocates the Group's resources and reviews the internal
reporting in order to assess performance.
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7. Segmental reporting continued:

The Group has identified four segments for which it reports under IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’. The following represents the segments

that the Group operated in during ¥ Y22 and FY21:

a. Student Accormmodation - the development of purpose built student accommadation;

b. Build To Rent - the development of build to rent accommadatior,
c. Affordable Homes — the development of residential housing: and

d.  Accommodation Management - the management of student accommadation and build 1o rent property.

Corporate - revenue fram the development of commercial property forming part of mixed-use schemes and other revenue and costs not

solely attributable to any one operating segment.

Al revenues arise in the UK.

Performance is measured by the Board based on gross profit as reportad in the management accounts.

Apart from inventary and work in progress, no cther assets or liabilities are analysed into the operating segments.

Student Build Affordable Accommodation

Accommodation To Rent Homes Management Corporate Tota!
Year ended 20 September 2022 £'ocC £1000 £'¢00 £000 £'000 £000
Segmental revenue 180,037 191,228 14,478 9,072 12,261 407,076
Segmemalrgross Profit 26,353 32,808 1,915 5,909 641 67,626
Admi_ni_s_t_r_q_l_io_n_gxg_%nses — — - (5,788) ) {25__,_40?_]_ o (31,195}
Profit on disposal of student
leasehold properties (see note 17) — - — — 18,253 18,253
Exceplional costs - - (30,389) (30,365)

)

Emance costs S — — —_ (5,982} (5,982‘).

Profit/{loss) before tax 26,353 32,808 1,915 121 (42,804} 18,393

Taxanon e e SR S o s (4’979) (4,979)

Continuing profit/{loss} for

the year 26,353 32,808 1,915 121 {47,783) 13,414

Profit for the year attributable to

ordinary equity shareholders of

the parent 13,414

Inventory and work in progress

(note 21) 75,840 38,763 29,785 - 2,730 147,188

Student Build Affordable Accommodation
Accommodatian To Rent Homes Management Corporate Total

Year ended 30 September 2021 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Segmental revenue 258,882 138,569 22,663 7,762 1,335 430,21

Segmental gross profit 50,464 29,765 2,560 4,081 @o8s 84,781

Administration expeeses =TT T T T aeegy | (23,2097)  (27.528)
_ Share of lossin joint ventures (87} = - )

Finance inccme T _ZT o - - _ ‘4 Ty

financecosts Z - - (6,051) (6,051

Profitflloss) before lax 50,377 29,765 2,560 {148) (31,433) 51,121

Taxation e B e S e (9189) R (9139)

Continuing profit/{loss) for

the year 50,377 29,765 2,560 {148) (40,622) 41,932

Prafit for the year attributakle to

ordinary equity sharehalders of

the parent 41,932

Inventory and work in progress

(note 21) 25,754 64,086 27,420 - 10,333 127,593
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8. Exceptional costs

O-0-H-) Accounting policy
—_— Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further
f— understanding of the financial performance of the Group. They are items of income or expense that are material to
— the Group in aggregate and have arisen from one-off or unusual circurnstances that could not reasonably have been
expected to arise from normal trading.
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Building Safety Act provision 30,365 —
Total exceptional costs +30,365 -

There have been exceptional items during the year of £30,385,000 (2021: £Nil} relating to a provision made for Building Safety Act 2022
related costs. Further information on this charge is included in note 4 and note 27.

All of the exceplional costs in the year were trealed as allowable deductions for corporation tax purposes.

9. Total operating profit
This is stated after charging/{crediting):

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

' £'000 ¢'000
Audit services to the parent company 100 136
Audit services to the subsidiaries 275 134

Amortisation of int

Property biéntand s e 839
. Investmentproperty (Ieased) e+ Mttt - e s, © e ot 4 LSRR8 ot o seerns comen 4 oot saan e s 4 s 6,156 P 6292
Rnght-of-useassets e i i
Brofit on disposal of student leasenold properties (see note 17) 7 aszsy  —
Loss on disposal of other fight-of-use assets o e e
(Profit/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment T o 7egy g5
10. Staff numbers and costs
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

Number of employses
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September

______ - - — e e . R e e e - J.2pe2 _ _ 2021
Canstruction 229 233
Accommodanonmanagemem L L e e 344
Managementandadmlmstratlon e e e e et 1 oo e e+ s et < % e o+ @ e+ s e e e o 134 i

709 74
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 September 2022

10. Staff numbers and costs continued
The aggregate payrolt costs of these persons were as fallows:

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£°000 E'000
Wages and salarigs ’ 28894 28104
Employee incentive — long-term incentive plans (hote 32) 199 476
Social security costs 4,082 3,283
Cefined contribution pension costs 965 783
34,140 32,656

Pensions )

The Group operates a defined contribution Group personal pension plan scheme for the benefit of the employees and certain Directors.
The assels of the scheme are administered in a fund independent from those of the Group. Contributions during the year amounted to
£965,000 {2021: £783,000). There were £60,000 unpaid contributions at the end of the year (2021: £56,000).

The Group also operates a smal! defined contribution scheme for the benefit of certain former employees. This scheme is closed to new
entrants. The assets of the scheme are administered by trustees in a fund independent from those of the Group. Contributions during the
year amounted to €Nil (2021: ENil).

Key management personnel
The Group considers that its Directors and other senior managers who are either members of the Executive Commitlge or Directors of
Watkin Jones & Son Limited are key management personnel far the purposes of IAS 24 ‘Related Parties”.

The aggregate payroll costs of key management personnel were as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£'000 E000
Wages and salaries 2,962 o 4012
Compensation for lass of office - 235
Emplayee incentive - long-term incentive plans (note 32) SO o .
Social security costs o 504 N

Pension costs 172 227

3,848 5,309

11. Directors’ emoluments

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
000 £'000
1,450
269
Social security 188

P T R -

2,310 2010

Em & incentive - long-term incentive plans

During the year ended 30 September 2022, 175,326 share options were exercised (2021: no share options exercised} at a gain of £403,536

-pased on the Company’s share price on the exercise date.
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12. Finance costs

Accounting policy

—— All borrowing costs are recognised in the Group's profit for the year on an effective interest rate (EIR) basis except for
— interest costs that are directly attributable ta the construction of qualifying assets, being the Group’s inventory. These
— are capitalised and included within the cost of the asset. Capitalisation cormmences when both expenditure on the

asset and borrowing costs are being incurred, and necessary aclivities to prepare the asset lor use are in progress. In
the case of new developments, this is generally once planning permission has been obtained. Capitalisation ceases

when the asset is ready for use or sale. Interest capitalised relates to borrowings specific to a development.

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Fmance charges 1,503 1,120

Intere: n lease habmtues (no'te 17)

Other mterest payab[e S - -

5,982

6,051

During the year the Group has capitalised interest payable on bank loans of £361,000 (2021: £587,000) in development land and work in
progress. The capitalised interest related to borrowings for specific developments funded using the Group's revolving credit facility, which

has an applicable interest rate of 2.25% over SONIA,

13. Income taxes

HHA Accounting policy

o— Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
— cemprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI}
— or those recagnised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in accordance with the underlying item.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the year end and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assetis
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. A deferred tax asset is recagnised only to the extent that it is probable

that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Year ended Year erkled
30 September 30 Septermnber
2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Current income tax
UK corporatlon tax on prof\ts for the year 2 708 9,635
1 133 254

Formgn t-:lxes

Total current tax 3,896 9,889
Deferred tax

Ad]USthnts " respect of prlor year e S s (13)
Remeasurement of deferred tax far clﬁanges in iax crates T T e (738)‘
Total deferred tax 1,083 (700)
Total tax expense 4,979 9,188
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~ 13. Income taxes continued
Reconciliation of total tax expense

Year ended VYear ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£000 £'o0c

Profit before tax 18 393 51 121
3 495 9 713

7

Remeasurement of deterred tax for changes in tax rates
Other dlfferences et et et et kR RR 11515 8SR84S SRRt omet e Sepesnt e e
g leferences to fc;re|gn tax rates Commmmmmmm e e (29) - .
spect of pnorpenods . 1A 7
e IUSIHéﬁr{t todefer redtax ..................................................................................................
At the effective rate of tax of 27.1% (2021: 18.0%) 4,979 9,189

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 4,979 9,189

As aresult of the Finance Act 2021, the rate of UK corporation tax will increase to 25% from & April 2023. The deferred tax assets and
liapilities held by the Group at the start of the current year have been revalued to reflect this increase. This resulted in an increase in
deferred tax assets of £1,004,000 and an increase in deferred tax liabilities of £266,000.

14. Earnings per share

Accounting policy

Basic

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

Diluted
Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of shares in issue by the dilutive effect of ordinary

shares that the parent may potentially issue relating to its cantingent share awards under the LTIP, based upon the
number of shares that would be issued if the year-end date was the end of the contingency period.

[IE:

The fcllowing table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Prom for lhe year attributable tc ordinary eqmty holders of the parent 13,414 41,932

nal costs for the year (note 30 365

Less corporataon tax benefit from exceptlonal costs for the year T N (5 769) 7 7 -
"7 T Adjusted profit for the year attributable t6 ordinary equity holders of the parent {excluding exceptional™ —— ™= — -~ = = == === sr—eme
costs after tax) 38,010 41,932

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septamber
2022 2021
Number of Number of
shares shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 256385882 256163458
" Adjustment for the effects of dilutive potentlal ordinary shares 1,338,930 453,761
Waeighted average number for diluted earnings per share 257,724,812 256,617,220
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Year ended Year endad
30 September 30 September
2022 2021

Pence Pence

altributable to ordinary equit ) - . 16.369

Adjusted basm earmngs per share (excludlng excephonal costs after tax) -

AdeStEd prﬂflt {OF th& year attrlbutatﬂe tO ord\nary equlty h0|dE(S Of thE parentm" Com T 14.825 16369 -
D|Iuted warmings per share e eee—— e e s £ e e e e
ar aﬂrlbutable to d|Iuted equnty holde

8240

Adjusted profit for the yéér attributable to di-h.i'ted equity holders of the parent T ’ T 14‘745"‘ e 16340

15. Dividends

Accounting policy
Dividends are recognised through equity when approved by the parent’s shareholders or on payment, whichever

is earlier.

Year ended Year ended

30 September 3Q Saptember

2022 2021

£000 2000
Final dividend paid in February 2022 of 5.6 pence (February 2021: 7.35 pence) T #4345 18,826
Intenm dwldend pa\d in June 2022 of 2.9 pence (June 2021: 2. 6 pence} 7436 6,658
21,781 25,484

An interim dividend in relation to the year ended 30 September 2022 of 2.9 pence per ordinary share was paid on 30 June 2022 (2021: 2.6
pence per ordinary share).

The final dividend proposed for the year ended 30 September 2022 is 4.5 pence per crdinary share (2021: 5.6 pence per ordinary share).
This dividend was declared after 30 September 2022 and as such the liability of £11,538,000 (2021: £14,345,000) has not been recognised
at that date. At 30 September 2022, the Company had distributable reserves available of £56,058,000 (30 September 2021: £76,332,000).
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16. Intangible assets

'010.04 Accounting policy
N The cost of intangibles acquired as part of a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

B Intangible assets ather than goodwill are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged to the consoclidated statement of comprehensive income within administrative expenses on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets as follows:

+ customer relationships: eleven years; and
* brand: ten years.
Customer
relationships Brand Goodwill Total
£'060 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost .
At1 October 2020 30 September 2021 and 30 September r2022 5604 a9 9744 15,847
Arnortlsatlon
At 30 September 2020 s e o 2334 e e e
Amorhsanon for the year o o e 510 T Ty
At 30 September 2021 2,844 279 )
PR Penes year e e e 4 o e
At 30 September 2022 3,354 3z8 — 3,682
Net book value
g September o . 2'250171 9744 12,165
At 30 September 2021 2,760 220 9,744 12,724

Intangible assets relate to the acquisition of Fresh Property Group Ltd (formerly Fresh Student Living Limited}, which was acquired by the
Group in the year ending 30 Septermber 2016.

The Directors have assessed whether there are indicators of impairment against each of the Customer Relationship and Brand assets in
line with IAS 36 as at 30 September 2022, No indicators of impairment have been identified, and therefare no impairment test has been
performed.

The Directors have reviewed the carrying value of the goodwill in Fresh Property Group Ltd, which is a single CGU, at 30 September 2022
compared 1o its recoverable amount and are satisfied that no impairment is required. The recoverable amount has been based on value in
use, by reference to the budgets and projected cash flows for the CGU over a five-year period, with future cash flows discounted at a rate
ot 10.08% {2021: 7.48%) to reflect the time value of money. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 3.0% growth
rate, which is seen as the long-term average growth rate for the busingss.

The following are the key base case assumptions used in projecting the cash flows as at 30 September 2G22:

* contracted management agreements in place are renewed in line with past experience;

= new management agreements are secured o deliver the budgeted wnits under management for the CGU for the five-year period
ending 30 September 2027. Units under management are forecast to be approximately 24,000 in FY23, 26,000 in FY24, 29,000 in FY25,
31,000 in FY26 and 32,000 in FY27. This reflects the CGU's past success in securing new management agreements in the student
accommodation sector along with assumed growth in apartments under management in the build to rent market;

¢ management fees charged will increase at 3.0% per annum;

+ the achieved gross margin is maintained in line with past experience; and . . . o e o [

» indirect costs are incurred in ling with the budgets and five-year plan for the CGU up to the perlod ending 30 September 2026 and
thereafter increase at 3.0% per annum.

Impairment calculations are sensitive to changes in the assumptions around trading performance and discount rate. Reasonable

sensitivities have been applied to these assumptions as two separate scenarios, being a) a shortfal! in revenue of 5% against forecasts

with no cost mitigation applied, and b) an increase in the discount rate of 1 percentage point. In both scenarios there remained significant

headroom against the carrying value of the goodwill held.
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17. Leases
Taasa Accounting policy
— The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
frm— Group as a lessee

Investment property {leased)

The Group has entered into a number of student accommodation sale and leaseback arrangements for which the
associated right-of-use assets are classified as investment property (leased). Investment property (leased) is measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of the investment property (leased) includes the amount of lease liabllities recogrised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Investment property (leased) is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

e sy e

* investment property (leased}): 15 to 35 years.
Investment property (leased) is also subject to impairment in accordance with accounting policy 3.4.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of the right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liatilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets, as follows:

» office properties: five to 25 years; and
* motor vehicles: three years.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment in accordance with accounting policy 3.4.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of

lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentive
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses a company-specific incremental borrowing rate

at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lgase is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced far
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a medification,

a change in lease term, a change in lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments, or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment
for a term of 12 months or less. it also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value, being those with a value on acquisition of less than £10.000.

Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negetiating and arranging an operating lease are added

- - - tothe carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. ___
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the periad in which they are earned.

PRPRR S —
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17. Leases continued
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Investment
property Motor

(leased) Offices vehicles Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost e
At 30 Septemnber 2020 411 172,236
Additions/adjustment 721 977
Disposals 7} - (478)
At 30 September 2021 161,629 10,132 172,735

Disposals (78,038) Z 591)  (78.629)
At 30 September 2022 83,591 13,251 1,556 95,398
Depreciation

A......_,5.1,I072

4504

57182

Disposals - = (439)
At 30 September 2021 57,364 5,785 64,002
Chargefortheyear it e e e et <+ e 6156 R cor ?.105
Dlsposals e e Rt L et s e et et o« oo et erss <+ et hnne e anne e e (12,958) e (518) - (13.476}
Al 20 September 2022 50,562 6,476 593 57,61
Impairment
AtaoseptemberZD‘ZO 5698 e e 5698
Chargefortheyear e L o
021 5,698 — —
= wrotor eyearm i i e - -
At 30 September 2022 5,698 - -— 5,698
Net book value
At3059ptember2022 e e e b e o oo rppre et e+ o < oo - 27.331 3'7?5 N 96332.069
A 1 8 4,347 121 103035

Al

eptember

10

4217

346 108,386

Investment property {leased) assets relate to the Group's four (2021: six) student leasaback arrangements. Each of the four leaseback
arrangements are considered to be a separate CGU. The Directors have reviewed the carrying value of these leases where there is an
indication of impairment and compared them to their respective recoverable amounts. No impairment charge (2021: no impairment

charge) has been recognised during the year.

The recoverable armount for each CGU has been calculated as its value in use. The valuation technique used is a discounted cash
flow. Due ta the bespoke nature of these arrangements, these valuations are also considered to represent the fair value of each of

the investment property (leased) assets. The key inputs into the valuation are gross rental income, operating costs, lease term and an
estimated discount rate reftecting the market assessment of risk that would be applied to each asset. The estimated discount rates for
- each property, together with their value in use, areincluded in the nexttable. - - —— v oo © 0 o 0 [ e e
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Impxirment charge/(reversal} £'000 Value inuse £'000

Year ended Year ended Lease Year ended Year ended

30 Seplember 30 September Discount termination 30 September 30 September

2022 2021 rate date 2022 2021
Callegelands, Glasgow o - - 5.5% 6 September 2026 1,129 12,328
Europa, Liverpool - 7 7 es5% 48 Marchz030 10317 10,756
Optima, Loughbareugh  —~ T 60% 18 March2030 1,785 2166
Glassyard Building, London  — T 508 10 September 2034 9,854 0984
Total — - 33,085 35,234

These impairment calculations are sensitive to changes in the assumptions around discount rate. Reasonable sensitivities have been

. applied to these assumptions, in each case being an increase in the discount rate applied of 1.2 percentage points. In this scenario there

remained headroom against the catrying value of the assets held.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, two previously leased investment properties (Dunaskin Mill and New Bridewell) were disposed.
A profit on disposal, following the release of net liabilities and adjustments for rent and operating cost apportionment, was recorded of
£18,253,000.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and movernents during the period:

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£'000 €000
At the start of the period 129,252 134,453 )

Additions T 1,292 a77
Disposals (76,728) (33
Accretion of Interest 4,479 4,895
Payments (9,195} (11,040)

At the end of the period 49,099 129,252
Current 6,248 6,113

Non-current ‘ 42,851 123439

Group as lessor ~ operating lease rentals receivable

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021

£'000 €000

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are receivable as follows;

HL'ater 1ha'|:1”one year and less than fiv, 12,747;'7”
After five years 63 16,457
B.860 42,718

The Group acts as lessor in respect of certain commercial property and for the student accommeodation properties operated under the
sale and leaseback arrangements detailed above. The decrease in operating lease rentals receivable at 30 September 2022 compared to
the prior year has arisen as & result of the disposal of the Dunaskin Mill and New Bridewell properties.
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18. Property, plant and equipment

-G-0-0H) Accounting policy
e Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost represents
p— expenditure that is directly attributable to the purchase of the asset.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,

on the following basis:

Plant and marhinery’ o _
cranes: 6.7% reducing balance

other: o " 20% reducing balance

Motor vehicles: 25% reducing balance

The assets’ estimated usefu! lives, depreciation rates and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the’
carrying amount of the asset and is recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Plant and Motor
machinery vehictes Total
£'000 £'000 £000

Cost
AtSOSeptember2020 8548 T Cahts
ome T o
D:sposals e et st e et ¢ St teees eettees ee 1 trt 2 s ren st e e+ ¢+ e (483) B T (483)
At 30 September 2021 8,573 157 8,730
L e i b
D|spcsals (5936) R (2) (5,938)

3,297 155 3,452

Chargefortheyez{r"mm i

Disposals

At 30 September 2021
ar

Di posals
At 30 September 2022

Net book value

At30 Septemper2022
At 30 September 2021

A130 Septerber 2020

Plant and machinary
The carrying value of plant and machinery subject to security under other interest-bearing loan agreements at 30 September 2022 was
£Nil (2021: £593,000). Additions during the year include £Nit {2021: £Nil) of plant and machinery financed vsing other interest-bearing loan
agreements.
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19, Subsidiaries

The Group halds 100% of the share capital of the following, unless otherwise stated:
Narme Class of shares Nature of business

Anderson Wharf (Student) Limiteds Ordinary Property developer
Baltersea Park Fload London lelted5 T D o OrdmaryProperty developer” ¥
Brldge Road Bath Llrnlted5 Ordmary o ""Property developer“

Orclmaryv N
Ordmary ] WPropeny developer
Ordxnary

Property developer

Gas Lane Bristol L:mntr-;»c;t5 ) o o O"di”ar;" Property developer
Gladstone Road Exeler |_|ri'1|tecis Ordmary Property developer
_ Ordinary Property developer *

Ordinary _Pr

Gorse Stacks Development l.lmma-d5 . ‘ e T Ordinary :Property developer
Headrow House Leeds Limited®s Ordinary Properly developer
Ordinary ) Properly developer__

Ordinary

“ Ordinary S ]
Ordinary Property developer

h QOrdinary Property developer
i developer”

roperly developer )

Onega Centre Bath lented5 o e o . Ordmary ‘F’roperly developer
Pirrie Be[fasl lenledf‘ ] ~ Ordinary Property developer
Ordlnary F’roperty developer

Stylegood leltecl5 ' Ordunary o k lProper‘ly developer:

Superscheme L|mzted5 Co T e I _ Ordinary Property developer
Walnut Tree Close Gunldford anltedﬁ ' Ordinary Property developer
Watkln Jones & Son Limited* Ordinary Property developer

Ordlnary

-Fresh Property Group Ltdg-—"- e Ordmary ' Accon;lrnoda-ti-on nweneoemenl ;

Fresh Property Group Ireland L|m\ted‘° R T Ordmary Accommodahon management
DR (Student) leﬂecF Ordinary Holdnng company
Ordinary ~_Hoalding company -

-Ordinary o Holdlng company:

Newmark Developments l_lmlled5 T e e Ordinary - Holdmg company and property
development servuces

Walkm JQHES AM L|m|ted5 T Co o e Ord|nary Pl’opel’t\j fund assel manager
Dunaskm Sludent lemad5 ST Ordmary R Property Iemng"
Fmefashmn L|m|len:ir> o Coommmmmmmm Ordmary o -"“Property Iet!mg”
New Bridewsll imited® T T ey Broperty lelting.
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19. Subsidiaries continued
Name Class of shares Nature of business

N1C8|00k Llrnlted5 N o 7”WOrdinaryMWW_m P,',",peﬂ,Y,,'?t,ﬁ”Q,,

F’olarpeak L|n'utos,-c!5 ' o ' Ordlnary ] ~ Property letting
Quahtyoffer Limited® Ordmary __ Property letting
Drcinary ..o FTOREY letting

“orainary T broperty letting.

Blackhorse Lane Student L|rn|te Ordmary' Dormant“
Bridge Street Student‘UmnedS o ST e mmOrdmarym' 7 T Dormant
ChnstchurchRoadBournemouthL|mned= e e+ et et e Ordmary S
Dartey Student Accommodation Limited? | T riary T Gmant
Eehaisp e -_ e LI e R e e+ Ordmary “Dormant

Qrdmary

Dorrnant

Fwe Nme Llwng lelte{f‘ . i Dormantr

Forest Road Studenl lexted“ o Ordmary " “Dormant

Garthdee Road Aberdeen lened5 T Ordmary Dormant"
Goldcharm Student Lettmgs L|m1'(ed5 Ordlnary S Darmant

Dormant

Ordinary
Crdinary o

L verpooi Road Chester lelted5 Dormani:

Lc;wer Br|stor Road Bath Llrmteds o “-MOrdmary' o Dormant

Lucas Student LE"IF‘IQS lelted5 o e Ord:nary Dorman!

MJI:tary Road Canterbury lelted5 i o Ordmary o Dormant"

Ordlnary N Dorm_a_int

Ordinary

Dormant

B WO}dinary o

Ordinary o . Dommant

Sutton Court Hoad Llrnlted5 Ordinary Dormant
TG Southall lenedn Ordinary Dormant

Ordinary Dormant
Ordmary Dormant

venue Ed\nburgh L| .

Wlsedeﬁd L|m11ed5 o ”Ordinén‘:‘ ' Dormant
wJ Developments (Resndenlnal) lelted5 Ordinary Dormant

Incorporated during the year,

Wholly owned by Watkin Jones plg.

Whotly owned by Watkin Jones Group Limited.
Wholly owned by Watkin Jones Holdings Limited.
Wholly owned by Watkin Jones & Son Limited.
Whelly owned by Newmark Developments Limited.
Wholly owned by DR (Student) Limited.

Wholly owned by New Bridewe!| Limited,

Wholly owned by Fresh Peoperty Group Holdings Ltd.
Wholly awned by Fresh Property Group Ltd.

PEARR

semN

e
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All of the Group’s subsidiaries have the same registered office address of 3 Llys y Bont, Parc Menai, Bangor, LLS7 48BN, with the exception

of Fresh Property Graup Holdings Ltd, Fresh Property Group Ltd and Five Nine Living Limited, whose registered office address is 7-9

Swallow Street, London W18 4DE, and Fresh Preperty Group Ireland Limited, whose registered office is One Spencer Dock, North Wall

Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland.

20. Joint ventures

Accounting policy

G
&
o

‘&
o

to the net assets of the arrangement.

Il

the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The Group’s investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the

investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition

date. Goodwill refating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for
impairment separately.

The statement of comprehensive income reflects the Group's share of the results of cperations of the joint venture.
Any change in other comprehensive income {OCI) of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL

In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises

its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the [oint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in
the joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or l0ss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of
comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and OCI of the joint venture.

When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies of joint ventures in line with those of
the Group. After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recagnise an
impairment loss on its investment in joint ventures. Al each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is

objective evidence that the investment in joint ventures is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group undertakes an
impairment test and calcuwlates the amount of any impairment as-the difference between the recoverable amount of the
joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘share of profit of joint ventures' in the statement of

comprehensive income.

Upan loss of joint contral over a joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture upon lass of joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

At 30 Seplember 2022, the Group had the following joint ventures, whose principal place of business is the LI

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about

Percentage share Financial
Name Class of shares capilal held year end Activity
Deinicl Developments Limited! Ordinary 50% 30 September Prrrppertryrdevelopmem
Lacuna Belfast Limited®? Ordinary 50% 31 March Darmant
Lacuna WJ Limited'? Ordinary 50% 31 March Darmant
Spiritbond Finsbury Park- - - - - e - — - - e o = [
Limited' COrdinary 50% 30 September Dormant
Spiritbond Elephant & Castle
Limited' Ordinary 50% 30 September Dormant
Freshers PBSH Chester (General Property fund
Partner} Limited® Ordinary 50% 30 September general partner
1. Held by Walkin Jones & Son Limited.
2. Liquidated during the year ended 30 September 2022
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. 20. Joint ventures continued
Summarised financial information of the joint ventures and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the consolidated
statement of financial position is set out below:
Lacuna All other
Belfast Lacuna WJ joint
‘Year ended Limited Limited ventures Total
30 September 2022 £000 £'00C £'000 £°000

Revenue - - - -

Lass hefore tax 2 ® .. an
SRR taxgaln e e e e s s e i e e S e e -~
Loss for the year {12) (6) {11) 29)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (12) (6) {11) (29) -
Group share of loss for the year {6) (3} (7) (16)
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents - T L T

Non-current assets - - 43 43.
Current liabilities, including financial liabilities - D

Non-current liabilities, including financial liabiliies - — (52) {52)

Net assets - - 2 2
Equity ;

At 1 October 2021

Loss for the year

At 30 September 2022 - -y 2

Remove joint venture partners’ share of net assets - - (1) M

Group’s carrying amount of the investment = - 1 1

—_— e - e e e e e e — e - - - - C e o= - oo — ——m mm— o e e i —m e e e o
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Lacuna Lacuna Laguna All cther

Academy Street Belfast Dublin Read Lacuna W.J joint
Year ended Limited Limited Limited Limitad ventures Total
30 September 2021 £'000 £000 £'006G £'000 £000 £000

Revenue - —
Q gloss
Finance incomey|

Losé béfore tax - 30 - .

Income tax gain
Loss tor the year (14) (30} (118) {10) 2) (174)

Total comprehensive loss far
the year (14) (30) (118} (10) {2} (174)

Group share of loss for the year 7] (15) (59) {5) (1) (87)

Current assets, including cagh
and cash equiva|

Non-current ass
Current liabilities, including
tinancial liabilities - - —_ — (56} (56)

Nor-currert frablhtlesmcfudmg
financial habilities - — —
Net assets — 12 — = 13

Equity

At 1 October 2020
Loss for the year
Dividend distribution’
Capnalcontnbuhon vt e s oo+

At 30 September 2021 — 12 — & 13 3
Remove joint venture partners’
share of net assets — ) — (3} {5) (14)
Group's carrying amount of
the investment - B — 3 8 17
1. During the year ended 30 September 202+ and pricr to entesing inta members' votuntary liquidation, Lacuna Academy Street Limited, Lacuna Belfast Limited,
Lacuna Dublin Road Limited and Lacuna W.J Limited declared dividends which ware set off against amounts owed by the joint venture parties.
21. Inventory and work in progress
HHH- Accounting policy
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs directly atiributable to the
— purchasing of land and buildings and the development of property, including legal costs, attributable overheads,
— attributable finance costs and the cost of bringing developments to their present condition at the balance sheet date.
Net realisable value is based an esfimaled seffing price less the estimated cost of disposal. Frovision is made for any
Aemomm - — o e . ... — - —obsolete or slow-moving inventory where apprapriate. _ . . _ .. ___. __ e e —m o e e e e e
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septernber
2022 2021
£'000 £'c00
Development land 66,858 53,220
Stock and work in progress 80,260 74,373
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 147,118 127,593
137
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22, Contract assets and liabilities
(&) Current contract assets

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£'000 £'000
At3October 13810 41,522
Transferred to receivables (13,259) {40,861}
Balance remaining in relation to contract assets at the start of the year 551 661
increase relating to services provided in the year 50,270 13,149
At 30 September 50,821 13,810

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to consideration for construction work completed but not invoiced at the balance
sheet date. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the amounts are certified by the customer. Most of tha Group's
contracts for student accemmodation and build 1o rent developments are structured such that there is a significant final payment which only
becomes due upon the practical completion of the relevant property. Most of the Group's developments span at least two financial years,
which resuits in the recognition of a contract asset up until the practical completion of the property, at which point it is transferred to trade
receivables. None of the contract assets at the end of the year are past due, and taking into account the historical default experience, an
assessment of credit risk and the future prospects in the industry, the Directors consider that no contract assets are impaired.

{b) Current contract liabilities

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2024

£'000 £'000

At 1 October 2,845 8,967
Revenue recognised in the year that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year o (2.845)(6132)
Contract liabilities repaid - (2,835)
Balance remaining in refation to contract liabilities at the start of the year — =

Increase due to costs associated with performance obligations which have not yet been fully satisfied 5,052 2,845

At 30 September 5,052 2,845

The contract liabilities relate to costs associated with performance obligations which have not yet been fully satisfied.

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the {uture refated to performance obligations that arg unsatisfied or
partially satisfied at the reporting date in relation to the development of student accommodation, build to rent, affordable homes and
commercial projects:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September
2023 2024 2025 Total
30 September 2022 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Construction contracts 286,944 242,989 113,703 643,636
Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September
2022 2023 2024 Total
30 September 2021 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Construction contracts 141,399 43,014 5,284 189,697
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23. Trade and other receivables

O-0-0-0-0r Accounting policy
—_— Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective
p— interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment in trade receivables is established when
— there is an expectation of cash shortfalls over the expected life of the amounts due. The movement in the provision is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Trade recewables 20,534 17,101
Less provision for |rnpa1rrnent of recewables - -

Trade recelvables nel 4 17101

Prepaymems and olher reCewabaes T mmm——m— 6 164'
Equity ins umne! - 130 o 130
Hefund.able Iand deposits paid i 3 757 T 4 8(]3”
Total trade and other receivables 28,628 28168

The fair value of the Group's equity interest in shared ownership schemes, included within equity instruments designated at fair value
through QCI, is materially equal to historic cost.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 Septamber

2022 2021

£'ooe £'eo0

Nelther past due ner lmpalred 20,502 17,071
Past due but not lmpalred

Not more than 1hree months - —

Greater than three months 32 30

20,524 17,101

The Group estimates expected credit losses on trade receivables by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of
the debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific 1o the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the deblors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. As
at 30 September 2022 and 2021, trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a number of debtors for whom there
is no recent history of default and the future credit risk is considered ta be low. The cther classes of trade and other receivables do not
centain impaired assets.

24. Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policy

_Cash and cash equivalents in_the statement of financial position comprlses ¢ash at bank and in hand and short-term
hrghly liquid deposits with a maturity of three manths or less, thal are readlly convertiblé to a known amount of ¢ash ~
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

||l||!§

Cash at bank and in hand as at 30 September 2022 includes £53,000 of cash deposited by the Group in an escrow account in connection
with a development in progress, access to which is contingent upan the completion of certain development works (30 September 2021:
£53,000). For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand. The Group had
not drawn on any overdraft facilities at the year end.
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25. Trade and other payables: current.

- Accounting policy
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

f— effective interest method.
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
£000 2£'000
Trade payables

Deferredland payments ’ - — 3600
Accruals and other payables 27,515 18,200
Tota! trade and other payables 89,717 89,198

26. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Accounting policy

Aiter initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrewings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amartisation is included in finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Yeur ended Year enced
30 September 30 September
2022 2021

£7000 £000

Bte

HSBC Bank ple RCF arranger;lent fees T e — (200}
Other interest-bearing loans - 385
- 4,653

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

£°000 €000

MNan-current

* Svenska Handelsbanken ABterm loan

- ...3885 -

Cther interest—bearing |03.|'\-S ’ T o o i - 4

There is no material difierence between the fair value of the Group’s borrowings and their bock values.

The Group holds a five-year revolving credit facility {RCF) with HSBC to a value of £100.0 million. The maturity date of the facility is

15 May 2025. At 30 September 2022, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities of £85.2 million {2021: £102.2 million} with HSBC Bank
olc, comprising its RCF andg a £10.0 million on-demand and undrawn overdraft facility. As is the case in most loan agreements, the RCF
includes a Material Adverse Event clause but management believe the risk of this clause being exercised is very remote.
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The RCF is secured by a debenture over Watkin Jones Group Limited, Watkin Jongs Holdings Limited, Watkin Jones & Son Limited,
Ellen Street Hove Limited, Goldcharrm Residential Limited, Gorgie Road Edinburgh Limited and India Street Glasgow Limited. For the
year ending 30 September 2021 and the period from 1 October 2021 to 31 Decemnber 2021, the applicable interest rate was 2.25%
over one-manth LIBOR. from 1 January 2022, the applicable benchmark rate has been changed to SONIA, with the margin remaining
at 2.25%. . - .

The loan with Svenska Handelsbanken AB, which had been due to mature on 15 March 2022, was renewed during the year. The loan has
a 30-manth term secured by a legal charge over certain operating property stock assets. The maturity date is 30 August 2024 and the
applicable interest rate is 2.75% over three-month | IROR

27. Provisions

Accounting policy )

Provisions are recognised when three criteria are met: 1) the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
2} it is probable that an outflow of réscurces will be required to settle the obligation; and 3) areliable estimate can be
made of the obligation.

Building Safety Act provision {formerly Cladding Provision)

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Current
At 1 October
d

A

Utilised 6.316) (1,023)
Transferred from/{io} non-current 1,464 (1.,145)
At 30 September 7,713 4,667
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septembar
2022 2021
£7000 £000

1145 .
At 30 September 25735 4,732

In the financial year ended 20 Septermber 2020, the Group made a provision in reésponse to government guidance, issued in January 2020,
an the suitability of certain ¢cladding solutions used on high-rise residential buildings. Following the introduction of the Building Safety Act
2022 {the ‘BSA’) during the year ended 30 September 2022, the scope of requirements arcund cladding and firestopping measures on
such buildings has been increased.

The Group has been working with the owners of certain of its previously developed properties to remediate certain items now in scope

of the BSA and to share the costs. A provision of £9,389,000 was beld at 30 September 2021 for the Group's anticipated contribution - -
towards the cost of tha fire safety recladding warks. A further provision of £30,365,000 has been rnade during the year ended

30 September 2022 to reflect the increased scope of the BSA. The judgements surrgunding this provision are discussed in more detail

in note 4,

The provision at 30 September 2022 amounts to £33,448,000, of which £7,713,000 is expected to be incurred in the year ending
30 Septermber 2023 and £25,735,000 is expected ta bhe ingurred between 1 October 2023 and 30 September 2027,
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2B. Deferred tax

a4 Accounting policy

Deferred tax is provided on temporary ditferences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the year end and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extant that it is probable

that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The movement on the deferred tax account is shown below:

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
£'000 £000
At the start of the penod 2,914 2,273
Included drreclly in equity 141 {59}
Statement cf comprehensive income (deblt)/credrt {1,114) 700
At the end of the period 1,941 24914
. Comprising'
Deferred tax asset 2 677 4 057
Deferred tax Irabalny (736) (1 143)
At the end of the period 1,941 2,914
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown below:
Sheort-term Accelerated
timing capital
differences allowances Total
2000 ' £'000 £000
At 1 Octecber 2021 3, 366 452) 2914

ant of comprehensrve income debrt

7 (8307” ]
141 - 141

lnc uded diractly in equity
At 30 September 2022 2,677 {736) 1,941
Short-term Accelerated
timing capital
differences allowances Total
£'000 £'000 £'00C
At 1 October 202() 2 341 {68) 2,273
Statement of comprehensrve mcome credut/(debﬂ) 1 084 o (384) o 700
Inciuded d:rectly in equity (59) — 59)
At 30 September 2021 3,366 (452) 2,914

In the year ended 30 September 2022, deferred tax credited directly to equity of £141,000 (2021: debited £59,000} related to the Group's
share-based Lo_ng Term Incentive Plan the comprehenSWe mcome charges for Wthh are recognlsed asa movement in the share- based

payment reserve.

142
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29, Other financial assets and liabilities
Other financial assets

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021

£'000 £'000

lue

come

- 1,,

Other financiai assets 1,366 1,241

Equity instrurnents designated at fair value through other comprehensive income camprise the value of units held by Watkin Jones & Son
Limited in the Curlew Student Trust (CST), together with the value of the carried interest held by Fresh Property Group Ltd in CST and
Curlew Student Trust 2 {CST2). CST and CS8T2 are Guernsey-registered unitised funds established to invest in student accommodaticn.
Watkin Jones & Son Limited originally made an investment in CST, as part of an agreement to develop thres student accommodation
properties for the fund, and Fresh Property Group Ltd made a carried interestinvestment aligned to its role as preferred property manager
for the fund.

Fresh Property Group Ltd subsequently made a carried interest investment of £350,000 in CST2 on its establishment, aligned to its role as
preferred property manager for CSTz2.

The Group recelved £Nil distributions against the carrying value of its investrnents in CST or CST2 in the year ending 30 September 2022
(2021: £Nil).

The Group’s investment in CST and CST2 comprises the following:
Price Value

30 September 2022 Units £ £'000
Curtew Student Trust

Units held by Watkin Jones & Son Limited

Carried interest investment held by Fresh Property Group Ltd
Curlew Student Trust 2

Carried interest investment held by Fresh Property Group Ltd T 350
Group’s carrying amount of the investment 1,366

. Price Value
30 September 2021 Units € £'000
Curlew Student Trust o
Un:ts held by Watkin Janes & Son Limited i o 1689991 " ou4se2 ?93 )
Carried interest investment held by Fresh Property Group Ltd T T T
Curlew Student Trust 2 -
Eérried interest investment held by Fresh Propeny Grm;;L[d T o e e 350 7
Group’'s carrying amount of the investment 1,241

The fair vatue of the units held by Watkin Jones & Son Limited in the Curlew Student Trust, included within equity instruments designated

at fair value through other comprehensive income, is based on a quoted fund unit price (Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy). This is an

investment and is not related to any individual property. The carried interest investments heid by Fresh Property Group Lid are stated at
fair value (Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy).
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30. Financial risk management

144

Accounting policy
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprises cash at bank and in hand.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, depending on the financial assat’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently measures it at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income {OCI). Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method with an appropriate allowance for estimated irecoverable
amounts recognised in the income statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

The Group's investments in unit trusts and equity interests held under sharad ownership schermes are classified as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI. Gains and losses on these assets are never recycled to profit or loss.
Dividends are recagnised as other income in the statement of comprehensive income when the right to payment has
been established. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCi are not subject to impairment assessment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables, contract assets and loans to joint
ventures. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated based on the Group's historicat credit
logs experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the current as well as
forecast direction of economic conditions at the reporting date, including the time value of money where appropriate.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings or payables. They are initially
recognised at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group's financial liabilities in¢luds trade and
other payables and loans and borrowings, including bank overdrafts. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial lability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantizally different terms, of the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised ~

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 - quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

= Leve! 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and

s Level 3 —valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
uncbservable.
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The Group is exposed to a variety of risks, such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's principal financial instruments are:

* loans and borrowings; and
+ trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, and cash arising directly from operaticns.

This note provides further detail on financial risk management and includes quantitative information on the specific risks.

The Group recognises that movements in certain risk variables might affect the value of its loans and alse the amounts recarded i ils
equity and its profit and loss for the period. Therefore, the Group has assessed the following risks:

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk; currency risk; andg other prices risk, such as equily price risk.

The Group’s exposure is primarily to the finangial risks of changes in interest rates in relation to lpans and borrowings.
}4 G g

Interest rate risk

Due to the levels of interest-bearing loans and borrowings at 30 September 2022, the Group had no material exposure ta interest rate
movements. The Group holds an RCF with HSBC with an amaount available under this facility of £100 millian, which means that the Group
could potentially be exposed to increased interest rate risk in the future. The Group has a treasury and hedging policy under which it
determines the value at risk that it is willing ta accept from a foreseeable movement in interest rates. Interest rate hedging contracts will
only be used to keep its interest rate risk exposure within these parameters and there were no hedging contracts utilised during the year
ended 30 September 2022 {2021 none).

A 0.5% movement in the interest rate applied to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings would have an impact an the Group's profit

before taxation as below:
Effect on profit before tax

Year ended Year ended

3G September 30 September

2022 2021

0.5% change in interest rate £'000 £7000
Impact on profit before tax 141 61

Foreign currency risk

Capital itemns that are ncn-sterling priced are monitored to review the requirernent for appropriate hedging. The Group has minirmal
exposure to foreign currency risk as it rarely carries out transactions in foreign currencies.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is regularly monitored and the relevant subsidiaries are aware of their working capital commitments. The Group reviews its
long-term funding requirements in parallel with its long-term strategy, with an objective af aligning both in a timely manner.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s gross, undiscounted financial liabilities at 30 September 2022 and
30 September 2021;

ELess than Between one dore than
QOn demand one year and five years five years Total
Liquidity risk - 30 September 2022 £1800 £'000 €000 £'000 £0060
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings — — 28,288 - 28,288
Trade and other payables — 89,717 - _ 89,717
- 89,717 28,288 — 118,005

Less than Between one More than
On demand one year and five years five years Total
Liguidity risk — 30 September 2021 E'¢og | olelt] £000 £'000 £'eos

+ - B

Interest-bearing loans and borrewings - 4,853 7833 = 1286
Trade and other payables - 89,198 — — 89,198
—_ 94,051 7,833 — 101,884

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by depositing with reputable finangial institutions, from which
management believes the risk of loss to be remote. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of
financial position is the carrying amounts of cash at bank and in hand.
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30. Financial risk management continued

Credit risk continued

Qur customers are predominantly blue-chip institutional funds and the risk of default on the trade receivables they owe the Group is low.
In many cases, the funds for a farward sold development are ring-fenced, placed in escrow, or backed by committed debt funding which
reduces the risk of default. Credit evaluations are performed for all customers. Management has policies and procedures in place o
monitor the Group’s exposure to credit risk and the payment performance of the Group's customers,

At the year end there were no significant concentrations of risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Capital management palicy

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it has the capital required to operate and grow the business at
a reascnable cost of capital withiout incurring undue financial risks. The Board periodically reviews its capital structure to ensure it meets
changing business needs. The Group defines its capital as equity plus loans and borrowings. The Directors consider the management

of debt to be an important element in controlling the capital structure of the Group. The Group may carry moderate levels of long-term
borrowings to fund cperations and working capital requirements. The net cash of the Group is analysed in note 34,

31. Share capital and other reserves

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of one pence each 2,664 2.562

The number of ordinary shares in issue at 30 September 2022 was 256,430,367 (30 Septernber 2021: 256,163,459).

in addition to share capital and premium, the Group holds a Merger reserve, which was created in prior periods in accerdance with merger
accounting principles as a result of Group restructuring.

32, Employee benefits — long-term incentive plans

Accounting policy

The Graup operates a long-term incentive plan for certain members of the senior management team under which
those employees receive remuneration in the form of share-based paymenis, whereby employees render services

as cansideration for equity instruments (‘equity-settled transactions’). The cost of the equity-settled transactionsis
determined by the fair value at the date the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model, further details of which
are given in the note below.

[E:

That cost is recognised in staff costs, together with a carresponding increase in equity over the periad to which

the service and performance conditions are fulfilled {'the vesting period’). The cumulative expense recognisad for
equity-settled transacticns at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments which will ultimately vest. The expense
or credit in the statement of comprehensive income for a period represents the movement in cumulative expenses
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and nan-market performance conditions are not taken into account when dstermining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelhood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the

; ~ ~_number of equity instruments which will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant

date fair value. - Dl I

Where awards are linked to non-market perfarmance conditions, no expense is recognised if the performance
conditions are not met and/or service conditions are not met. Where awards include a market conditicn, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the markat or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all ather performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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The Watkin Jones plc Long Term Incentive Plan {the ‘Plan’) was approved by shareholders at the AGM held or: 13 February 2018. Details of
the Plan, the vesting requirements and the performance targets applicable to the awards are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report
on pages 94 to 101. The aggregate total awards granted under the Plan are as follows:

Year ended Yearended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

Share awards granted . Number Number
At 1 October ] ] 2951955 2,991,283
Granted in the year 959,8QB 1,230,560
Exercisedinthe year L eensn -
Lapsed in the year {727,975) {1,269,888)
At 30 September 2,902,491 2,951,935

There were 281,297 awards exercised in relation to the 2019 award during the year (2021: no awards exercised). The weighted average
share price at the date of exercise for the awards exercised during the year was 231.5 pence. The weighted average exercise price for all
awargds is one pence per share.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the awards outstanding at 30 September 2022 was 1.1 years (2021 1.7 years).

The fair value of the share awards granted subject 1o earnings per share (EPS) performance conditions is the market price of an ordinary
share of the Company at the date the award is granted, less the exarcise price. The fair value of the share awards granted subjectto
absolute and relative total shareholder return (TSR) performance conditions have been estimated at the grant date using a Monte Carlo
valuation mode!. The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the shars awards granted in 2022 and 2021:

2022 LTIP 2021 LTIP
Share price at grant 266.0 pence 195.8 pence
Exercnsepnce .................................. e et e e et e s e et e srens e o e Onepence Onepence
Expected term (years) T T T T qhree | Thees
Expectedvolanlny(%) ............ e e bR st AR+ e e s & SRR 48 oottt et e 310 e
Rigk-free interestrate %) . oo om0 e o7
Are dividend equivalents receivable for the award holder? 7 Yes  Yes

The fair value of the share awards granted under the Plan is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period
of the awards, provided that the service conditions attaching to the awards continue to be met. The cumulative charge to the statement
of comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of financial position as a ‘share-based payment reserve’. For the year ended
30 September 2022, the amount charged to the statement of comprehensive income and credited to the share-based payment reserve
was £209,000 (2021: £476,000).

Historic charges of £2,507,000 (2621: £Nil) related to share awards which have now vested and been fully exercised or lapsed have been
recycled from the share-based payment reserve to the profit and loss reserve during the year.
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33. Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash flows from operating activities

Year ended Year ended

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

2000 2000
__F_’__r_Ofii _I_JE__fore tax 18383 51 d21
_Qg_r)_ﬁg@hon of leased mvestment properhes and nght-of use assels ] 7105_ 7289 )
Depreciation of plant and equipment e o 839 )

Amortisation of |ntang|ble assels o ) 559 560

Increase in trade and other recervabies - e (430) “ 550},
Increase/(decrease) in contracr Ilabuhtles
Decrease in 1rade and other payables

(decrease) in provnsmns

Inc ease in share- based payment reserve

Net cash (outfiow)/inflow from operating activities (19,592)

Major non-cash transactions
There were no major non-cash transactions during the perice.

34. Analysis of net cash/{debt)

At beginning Other
of year Cash flow movements At end of year
30 September 2022 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand e JJaseees @84S T 0dd
Otherlntefést bearmg loans T {389) 389 - -
Bank loans e T Tmsty T peste) o0y (28,288)
Net cash before deducting lease liabilities 124,332 (41,579) {200} 82,553
Lease liabilities (note 17) {129,252} 4,717 75,436 {49,099)
Net cash/(debt) . {4,920) {36,862} 75,236 33.454
At beginning Other
of year Cash flow movements At end of year
30 Septamber 2021 £'3900 £000 £000 £000
and in hand 134,513 1780 - 136, ,293
: ' (631) o 242 . o (seY)
""Bark loans e = U- 0 @epas) -~ 27664 - - (200)° - - ~(11572)
Net cash before deducting lease liabilities 84,846 29,686 {200) 124,332
Lease liabilities (note 17) (134,453) 6,145 {944) (129,252}
Net cash/(debt} {39,607) 35,831 (1,144) . (4,920)

Cash at bank and in hand as at 30 September 2022 includes £53,000 of cash deposited by the Group in an escrow account in
connection with a development in progress, access 1o which is contingant upon the completion of certain development works
(30 September 2021: £53,000). Non-cash movemenis relate to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment under other
interest-hearing loans, the amortisation of bank loan arrangement fees and changes to the value of lease liabilities as a result of
leases entered into or terminated in the period or due to movements in the rent inflation rates assumed.
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35. Capital and other financial commitments
There were no material capital commitments at 30 September 2022,

At 30 September 2021, the Group had a contractual commitment te make a payment of £16,625,000 on 1 October 2021 to complete the
acquisition of a land site. In addition, the Group had a contractual commitment to make a payment of £3,600,000 on 17 December 2021
in respect of deferred cansideration for the acquisition of a land site. Both of these payments were made.

36. Contingent liabilities

The Group has contingent liabilities of £17,249,000 (2021: £2,478,000} in respect of performance bonds entered inte with HCC
International Insurance Company PLC, Euter Hermes Europe S.A. (NV), Aviva Insurance UK Limited and the Electrical Contractors'
Insurance Company Limited.

Watkin Jenes Group Limited, Watkin Jones Holdings Limited, Watkin Jenes & Son Limited and certain subsidiaries thersof have given
debentures containing fixed and floating charges and have entered into a corporate guarantee of the Group's bank borrowings from
HSBC Bark plc, which at the balance sheet date amounted to £28,813,000 {2021: £7,829,000).

No material liabilities are expected to arise as a result of the above arrangements.

37. Related party transactions

The Group paid rent and service charges to Planehouse Limited and its subsidiary companies amounting to £228,000 (2021: £318,000).
No amount was owed to or from Planehouse Limited and its subsidiary companies at 30 September 2022 (30 September 2021: £Nil).
Planehouse Limited is owned by Watkin Jones family trusts. Gertain of the trusts controlled by the Watkin Jones family are shareholders
inthe Company.

During the year the Group paid an amount of £1,177 to Richard Simpson (2021: €Nil) to cover the costs of a corporate hespitality event
which he hosted.

As referred to in note 29, Watkin Jones & Son Limited holds an investment in units in the Curlew Student Trust (CST) and Fresh Property
Group Ltd has a carried interest investment in CST and in CGurlew Student Trust 2 (CST2). Fresh Property Group Ltd is the preferred
property manager for both CST and CST2. The Group did not receive a distribution against the carrying value of its investments in CST or
CST2 in 2022 or 2021. The fair value of the units held in CST by Watkin Jones & Son Limited at 30 September 2022 amounted to £618,000
(2021: £793,000) and the fair values of the carried interest investments in CST and CST2 held by Fresh Property Group Ltd amounted to
£98,000 (2021: £98,000} and £350,000 (2021: £350,000) respectively.

Under a joint venture agreement the Group was owed £8,000 at 30 September 2022 from Deiniol Developments Limited (2021: £8,000 due
from Deiniol Developments Limited). During the year the Group received a payment of £Nil from Deiniol Developments Limited and made a
capital contribution of £Nil to Deiniol Developments Limited. The Group owns 50% of the share capital in Deiniol Developments Limited.

The Group had a 50% interest in Lacuna Belfast Limited prior ta its liquidation (see note 20). During the year, Lacuna Belfast Limited made
a dividend distribution of €Nil (2021: £118,000) to each joint venture party, which was set off against the amounts owed by them to Lacuna
Belfast Limited. The Group made payments of €Nil to Lacuna Belfast Limited during the year (2021: made payments of £54,000 to Lacuna
Belfast Limited). At 30 September 2022, no amount was owed to or from Lacuna Belfast Limited (2021: ENil owed to Lacuna Belfast
Limited). The company has now been liquidated.

The Group had a 50% interest in Lacuna WJ Limited prior to its liquidation (see note 20). During the year, Lacuna WJ Limied made

a dividend distribution of ENil (2021: £1,680,000) to each joint venture party, which was set off against the amounts cwed by them to
Lacuna WJ Limited. The Group received payments of £Nil from Lacuna WJ Limited during the year {2021: received payments of £7,000).

At 30 September 2022, no amount was cwed to or from Lacuna WJ Limited (2021: ENil owed to or from Lacuna WJ Limited). The company
has now been liquidated.

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on an arm’s length basis.

38. Subsequent events

On 9 January 2023, the main contractor on one of the Group's live third party-developed BIR sites entered liquidation proceedings.
The Group intends to take on the remaining obligations under the build contract as main contractor, This is a non-adjusting event under
IAS 10 “Events after the reporting period”™. The replacement of this main contractar will result in certain additional costs to the Group,
however due to the proximity of this event to the approval of the financial statements an estimate of the net impact of these changes
cannot be made at this time.
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Company statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2022

30 September 30 September

2022 2021

Nates £'000 £'000

Fixed assets et e e e e e e .

S . i ‘253,808 . 258,599

Current liabilities e+ e+ e 1

e payables e (1'15.043) (93,269)

Total liabilities {115,048) (93,2569)

Net assets 143,760 165,330
Equity

562

Share capital s
84,612

Share premium 34'61 2

Share-based payment reserve 28 2824
Retained earnings 56,058 75,332
Total equity 143,760 165,330

" The notes on pages 152 to 154 are an integral part of these Company financial statements.

No incame statement has been presented as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Company's profit for the year
after taxation was £Nil (2021: £Nil}.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 January 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Richard Simpson
Director
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 September 2022

Financial statements

Company information

Share-based
Share Share payment Retained
capital premium reserve Barnings Total
£°000 £'000 £'300 £'000 £C00
Balance as at 30 September 2020 2,562 2,348 190,338

25,484}

éhare-based payments — — "“;476 o o 476
Balance at 30 September 2621 2,562 84,612 2.824 75,332 165,330
Dividend paid (note 41) - - - {21,781) {21,781)
Share-ba e et + 4 e s L it o et e 2 - L
Recycled reserve for fully vested share-based
payment schemes e — {2,507} 2,507 -
Balance at 30 September 2022 2,564 84,612 526 56,058 143,760
151
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39. Accounting policies
General information
Watkin Jones plc (the *Company?) is a public limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006
{registration number 9791105) and its shares are listed on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange. The Company
is domiciled in the United Kingdom and its registered address is 7-9 Swallow Street, London, England, W1B 4DE.

Basis of preparation

The Company's financizal statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reparting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
{FRS 101). In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of
International Accounting Standards n conformity willi the requirerments of United Kingdom adopted Internationat Accounting Standards
('‘Adopted IFRSs’), but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where
advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken. '

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures:

* aCash Flow Statement and related notes;

* comparative period reconciliations for share capital, tangible fixed assets, intangible assets and investment properties;

* disclosures in respect of transactions with whally owned subsidiaries;

» disclosures in respect of capital management;

* the effects of new byt not yet effective IFRSs; and

* disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel.

No income statement has been presented as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Company's profit for the year
after taxation was ENil (2021; £Nil).

The Company has provided parent company guarantees to the following of its subsidiaries at 30 September 2022 under Section 479C of
the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’). These entities are exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual accaounts
by virtue of Section 479A of the Act.

Company name Company number  GCompany name Campary number
06126636  Kelat

1316345& 'L'Everpool Road Chester Limited 10_59?515"

Brtraell et 124450“ LowerBrlstoHoadBath L|m|ted ............................................... 12136588

Ccmmg!on Road Lewls;ham L|m|ted o 128?0250 LPS Nottmgham Llrmted --------------------------------- 1 3206896

Crown Place Woklng L;m:ted 11826151 nited
Dalby Avenue Bedmmster Lirmited o 1372407"5" Mllltary Ftoad Canterbury Lumned 1156?676 :

Darley Student Accommodauon L|m|ted casenon New Mart Hoad lelted 12738337

DFI (Student) lelted T 06472?39 Newmark Developments L|m|ted N 05614426

09694863 NO
12044774 On
E|I|ott Road Selly Oak Limited 11165995 Oxferd House Bournemouth letted 09162377

Falr!eague Limited 05282761 Pirrie Belfast L|rn|ted
12482112 Handalls Rd Leatherhead lelted

09815704 Stylegood lened
Gorgne Hoad Edmburgh leJted 12798143 Sutten Courr Hoad lened

Gorse Stacks Development Limited 04351332 TG Southall Limited

Heol Santes Helen Llrmted T 0625680; Walnut Tree Close Guwldford leuted” 12251752
ngh Street Swansea L_|m1ted 13113187 Watkm Jones AM lelted 07321534
Ho1denhurst Hoad Bournemou!h lerted 09162309 Westfleld Avenue Edlnburgh lerted 127069586

09501786 Wllmslow Hoa |

llltujrnauétreé-t- Edmburgh Limited S - 1087278.;{
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40. Employee costs

The only employees of Watkin Jones plc are the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Details of the employee costs associated with
the Directors are included in the Directors’ remuneration report and summarised below. All employee costs incurred by the Company are

recharged to Watkin Jones & Son Limited, the Company's principal trading subsidiary.

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Wages and sataries 1728 1450
Employee incentive — tong-term incentive plans 155 269
Cocial security casts 318 188
Pension casts 100 103
2,297 2,010
41. Dividends
2022 2021
£'000 £000

7.436

21,781

25,484

An interim dividend in relation to the year ended 30 September 2022 of 2.9 pence per ordinary share was paid on 30 June 2022

(2021: 2.6 pence per ordinary share).

The final dividend proposed for the year ended 30 September 2022 is 4.5 pence per ordinary share (2021: 5.6 pence). This dividend was
declared after 30 September 2022 and as such the liability of £11,539,000 (2021: £14,345,000) has not been recognised at that date.

At 30 September 2022, the Company had distributable reserves available of £56,058,000 {30 September 2021: £75,332,000}

42. Investments in subsidiaries

Accounting policy
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less accumutated impairment losses.

Subsidiary

undertakings

£'000

Cost )
At30 September2020 258123
Capital contribution relating to share-based payments T mmnmmmmmmmmm e ame
258,599

ribution relating to 5 209

At 30 September 2022 i ’ o T Tt T - b ~—258,808

The Company owns 100% of the issued shares in Watkin Jones Group Limited, a company incsrporated in England and Wales (note 19).

The principal activity of Watkin Jones Group Limited and its subsidiary companies is that of property development.

43. Trade and other payables: current

2022 2021
£000 £'000
Financial liabilities
Amounts awed ta Group undertakings 93,269
Amounts owed to Group undertakings are repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 September 2022

44, Share capital

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordirary shares of one pence each 2,564 2,562

The number of ardinary shares In issue at 30 September 2022 was 255,430,367 (30 September 2021: 256,163,455).

45, Share-based payments

154

Accounting policy

Details of share awards granted by the Company to Executive Directors a2nd to employees of its subsidiaries, and

that remain outstanding at the year end over the Company’s shares, are set out in nate 32 to the Group financial
statements. The Company did not recognise any expense related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions
in the current or preceding year,

The cost of the equity-settled transactions is getermined by the fair value at the date the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model, further details of which are given in note 32 to the Group financial statements.

That cost is recognised in staff costs, together with a corresponding increase in equity over the period to which

the service and performance conditions are fullilled (‘the vesting period’). The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Gempany's best estimate of the number of equity instruments which will utimately vest. The
expense or cradit in the statement of comprehensive income for a peried represents the movement in cumulative
expenses recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value
of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments which will ultimately vest. Market performance conditiens are reflected within the grant
date fair value.

Where awards are linked to non-market performance conditions, no expense is recognised if the pertarmance
conditions are not met and/or service conditions are not mel. Where awards include a rarket condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespactive of whether the market or non-vasting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Advisers

Nominated adviser and broker
Peel Hunt LLP

Tth Flocr

100 Liverpool Street

London EC2M 2AT

Joint broker

Jeffenies Internalivog! Limited
100 Bishopsgate

Lendon ECZN 4L

Auditor

Deloitte LLP

The Hanover Building
Corporation Street
Manchester M4 4AH

Governance

Financial statements

Solicitors to the Company
DLA Piper UK LLP

Victoria Square House

Victoria Square

Birmingham B2 4DL

Company registrars
Link Group

10th Fioor

Central Square

29 wellington Street
Leeds LS1 4DL

Financiat PR
Buchanan

107 Cheapside
London EC2V 6DN

Shareholder information

Country of incorporation and main
country of operation

Watkin Jones plc is incorporated in
England and Wales. The Company
cperates in the UK.

Number of securities in issue

As at 22 January 2023, the Company's
issued share capital consists of
256,430,367 ordinary shares with a nominal
value of one pence each. The Company
has no treasury shares.

Details of any restrictions on the
transfer of securities

There are no restrictions on any of the
Company’s AlM securities,

Securities not in public hands

As at 22 January 2023, the percentage of
the Company’s issued share capital that is
not in public hands is 6.3%.

Details of other exchanges or
trading platforms

The Company's shares will only be traded
on the London Stock Exchange's AlM
market at present.

Company registration
Registered office: 7-9 Swallow Street,
London W1B 4DE.

Registered in England and Wales
{company number 3791105},
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Glossary

AGM
APM
AlM
BSA
BTR
cGU
CST
CS8T2
EBITDA

EIR
EPS

Arnuai General Meeting
alternative performance measures
Alternative Investment Market
Building Safety Act 2022

build to rent

cash-generating unit

Curlew Student Trust

Gurlew Student Trust 2

earnings before income tax, depreciation
and amortisation

effective interest rate

earnings per share

Financial calendar

Annual general meeting (AGM}
The Company's AGM will be held at 10.30am on Tuesday

28 February 2023 at the offices of Buchanan, 107 Cheapside,
London EC2V 6DN. The notice of meeting is available on the

Group's website watkinjonesplc.com.

156

Fresh or FPG Fresh Property Group

FVOC
GDPR
HSE
IFRS
IPO
Qcl
PBSA
RCF
SDGs
TSR

fair value through other comprehensive income
General Data Protection Regulation

health, safety and environment

Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards
initial public offering

other comprehensive income

purpose built student accommaodation
revolving credit facility

UN’s Sustainable Development Goals

total shareholder return

Final dividend

The final dividend will be paid on 2 March 2023 to shareholders
on the register at the close of business on 3 February 2023.
The shares will go ex-dividend on 2 February 2023.
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